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Chairman and Chief Executive’s Overview

Welcome to our 2016/17 annual report. This report summarises some of our main
achievements and challenges over the last year. It covers our finances and other
important measures of our overall performance. We recommend reading this report
alongside our Quality Account, which looks at the quality of our services over the
same time period.

Our ongoing challenge is to deliver the best possible care for all our patients within
our available resources. The recurring theme of the year was pressure on the urgent
care system and its impact across the hospital. Against a national backdrop of
unprecedented strain on NHS services, our emergency department treated more
patients than ever before. The increasingly complex medical and nursing needs of
our patients, particularly our older patients, meant we also admitted people in greater
numbers than before for assessment or treatment.

There was a relentless focus through the hospital on ensuring our patients were safe
and maintaining patient flow so that we could admit those patients in need of our
care.

Our urgent care working group infroduced significant changes during the year to
strengthen our position. The group’s main areas of focus during the year were:

¢ the introduction of the SAFER patient flow bundle — a set of simple rules to
improve patient flow and prevent unnecessary waiting for patients

s the Red to Green initiative which sets out standards clarifying the expected
time periods in which interventions and procedures should be performed.

« the development of the Dickens Therapy Unit, a therapy-led model of care for
providing rehabilitation to help patients to go home, or move onto a suitable
place of residence, as independently as possible

The impact of our urgent care pressures reverberated across the hospital, including
our financial services. Thanks to the outstanding performance of our finance team,
alongside our improving quality and efficiency (IQE) programme and a concerted
drive across all departments, we finished the year well within the agreed financial
targets. We achieved a year-end position £1.3million better than plan.

Sustainability and transformation plan

Caring for higher numbers presents enormous challenges for a hospital in one of the
UK’s biggest population growth areas and one of our key priorities is to work with
partners locally and the wider NHS economy to look for realistic and sustainable
solutions.

During the year Northamptonshire’s sustainability and transformation plan (STP) was
published outlining how health and social care services in the county will be
reshaped to focus on keeping people well — and giving them the right help as close
to home as possible.

The STP is designed to ensure that services can meet the needs of local people in
the future. To achieve this, there needs to be change. Without change, we will not be




able to deal with the significant challenges we are now facing. The plan is ambitious
in scope and will require significant and fundamental changes to the way the health
and social care system works.

National events

During the year we were affected by a number of national events and developments,
the most significant being the outcome of a referendum in favour of a British
withdrawal from the European Union. In the immediate aftermath of the result, we
faced much uncertainty about the implications for our international employees. Just
over a quarter of our staff were born outside the UK, spanning 91 separate countries
or states. It is universally recognised that the entire NHS is dependent on the
contribution of non-UK employees but it remains unclear at the time of producing this
annual report what the impact of Brexit negotiations will be.

We also started the year with a continuation of the national dispute between junior
doctors and the government about the imposition of a new employment contract. A
mammoth effort involving teams across the hospital saw us develop plans for dealing
with industrial action and we were proud to see that elements of our planning
process were adopted as best practice nationally.

Our workforce

With the junior doctors contract dominating the national media agenda, we were
approached by Two Four, an award-winning production company commissioned by
Channel 4 to produce a documentary series celebrating the work of junior doctors.
The four-part series, Confessions of a Junior Doctor, was filmed between August
and December and when broadcast, it generated overwhelming support from our
local community and the wider medical community in the UK.

One of our motivating factors for agreeing to take part in Confessions of a Junior
Doctor was our pride in the support we give our junior doctors, academically,
professionally and pastorally. We recognise that in responding to the sustained
pressures across our services, alt of our staff have given above and beyond the call
of duty every day and so we took steps to bolster the support available to them.

In April 2016, we set a target that at least 10 per cent of our staff should have taken
up some of the health and wellbeing initiatives on offer. By the end of the year, 27
per cent of staff had participated in a health and wellbeing initiative - approximately
1,355 staff.

As part of our health and wellbeing strategy, we identified that one of the key areas
of employee support that we needed to focus on was mental wellbeing. This year,
alongside our physical activity agenda, we will be doing more to tackle stigma and
discrimination associated with mental health.

To this end, we have been working with Time to Change, a national campaign run by
charities Mind and Rethink Mental iliness. in February, we joined the 473 other
organisations which have signed the Time to Change Employer Pledge,
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demonstrating our commitment to addressing stigma and discrimination in the
workplace. Our pledge is to create a culture where our staff feel they can openly
discuss and manage their mental wellbeing. We will raise awareness of the
importance of mental health and wellbeing at work and provide the resources and
tools our staff need to help them lead healthy lives, cope with the daily pressures,
have positive relationships and achieve their full potential.

Our aim is not solely to be a hospital that responds to our patients’ needs, but to be a
health-promoting organisation making an active contribution to improving the wider
health and wellbeing of our staff, our patients and those with whom we come into
contact.

The launch of a new nursing and midwifery strategy was a defining moment for those
professions at our hospital. Nearly 2,000 nurses, midwives and health care
assistants were directly involved in the development of Our Journey to Pathway to
Excellence.

{t followed a three-month consultation period where nurses and midwives contributed
their ideas and suggestions via suggestions boxes, consultation meetings and
workshops.

The three-year strategy sets out the principles underpinning the delivery of nursing
and midwifery services at the hospital:

Excellence in patient care

Building and strengthening leadership at all levels

Recognising the work of nurses and midwives

Protecting and promoting wellbeing in a positive practice environment
Providing opportunities to develop skills and knowledge empowering nursing
and midwifery teams to make decisions about clinical practice

» Establishing nursing and midwifery roles that are fit for the future

The strategy followed the announcement earlier this year that we are the first NHS
hospital in the UK to sign up to an interhationally-recognised programme for nursing
and midwifery standards. The Pathway to Excellence programme recognises
hospitals for the quality of patient care and professional satisfaction of the nurses
and midwives who work in them. The programme is delivered by the American
Nurses Credentialing Center (ANCC).

Achieving Pathway to Excellence accreditation mirrors what we’re working to
achieve here in Northampton, a culture where our nurses and midwives feel inspired
and valued and where we aim to deliver the best possible care for our patients. It
opens up exciting new opportunities to learn from a global community of healthcare
settings, all sharing a common aim of achieving excellent standards of care.

During the year, we welcomed a group of history-making students who are leading
the way in shaping the nursing workforce of the future. Thirty eight nursing associate
students were recruited fo a landmark pilot scheme, and the group began their
studies at the University of Northampton in the Spring. The new nursing associate
role is a key part of national plans to create a strong, sustainable nursing workforce




for the future. The nursing associates will work alongside existing health care
support workers and registered nurses to deliver hands-on care for patients.

We introduced a new student placement model transforming the way student nurses
are trained at the hospital following a successful pilot on two of our adult wards.
Working with the University of Northampton we designed the programme, known as
PL@N (Practice Learning at Northampton General Hospital). it incorporates the
principles of supportive collaborative learning and coaching which means that the
whole ward team is involved in our student nurses’ development and training.

The strength of the support we give our student nurses means we were among the
top-performing NHS employers in the country when it comes to mandatory
accreditation of overseas nurses and midwives. Although the nurses we recruit from
abroad are qualified in their home country, there is another layer of accreditation
they have to undertake before they can register to practice here, to demonstrate they
have the necessary clinical skills. We are one of only three NHS employers
nationally to boast a 100 per cent pass rate among its overseas nurses who sit the
OSCE examination, a test of competence that must be passed before a nurse from
outside the EEA (European Economic Area) can practice in the UK.

Our patients

A significant amount of the feedback we receive from patients is not directly related
to the medical or nursing treatment they received, it's about how we made them feel.

This year, we saw sustained improvement and achieved our highest ever score in
the national Friends and Family Test (FFT), a survey recording the percentage of
patients who would recommend to friends and family the hospital in which they had
received freatment.

A development for 2016 was our inaugural patient listening event in which we posed
the question to a group of former patients and their families: “If you had a magic
wand, what changes would you make to improve the experiences of care for other
patients and families?” A random selection of 26 patients who were inpatients in May
were invited to attend the event with their families.

The listening event is just one way we used patient feedback to drive improvements.
We started real-time patient surveys on our wards in a bid to ensure that feedback to
our wards is timely and meaningful.

We're one of only six NHS organisations taking part in a research project to develop
a national toolkit for using patient experience data to improve care. The collaborative
research project will examine how frontline hospital staff use patient experience data
to improve care. The project is led by the University of Oxford's Nuffield Department
of Primary Care Health Sciences and Picker Institute Europe and funded by the
National Institute for Health Research HS&DR Programme.

The aim of the project is to build an understanding of which types of data or quality
improvement approaches are more or less likely to be useful with frontline teams in
making health care more person-centred. The two-year project will result in the




production of a practical toolkit for the NHS on strategies for making patient
experience data more convincing, credible and useful for frontline teams and Trusts.

During the year, we strengthened our support for patients at risk of domestic abuse
with the creation of a new role of Independent Domestic Violence Advisor (IDVA)
employed by Northamptonshire Sunflower Centre and based with us to offer advice
and guidance to adults who have experienced domestic abuse and are at risk of
injury, harm or homicide.

Based initially in the hospital's maternity offices, the role works alongside the
hospital’s safeguarding midwives. One in six pregnant women will experience
domestic violence and around 30 per cent of domestic violence starts or worsens
during pregnancy. This means our maternity team is uniguely positioned to identify
women who are victims of domestic abuse and to offer support or make a child
protection referral where appropriate.

However, we have lots of other departments providing treatment and care to
domestic abuse victims, most obviously our various emergencies teams but by no
means limited to those. We also know that our ward staff sometimes witness
controlling or abusive behaviours towards an individual in-patient from a relative.
Those situations can be very difficult for any member of staff to deal with; one of the
aims of this new role is to give exira support to our staff in responding to situations
where we have concerns that a patient is experiencing abuse.

A considerable amount was achieved during the year for the benefit of our patients
who have dementia and their families. We launched Do If For Dementia as our

primary fundraising campaign.

QOver 7,000 people in Northamptonshire have dementia. The Department of Health
estimates that only 59 per cent of people with dementia have a formal diagnosis. For
patients with memory problems such as those with dementia, a hospital can feel like
a chaotic and frightening environment.

With an initial target of £50,000, Do it for Dementia is raising money help create
dementia-friendly spaces and to buy equipment and resources that will help to
reduce confusion, anxiety and distress for patients who have dementia. It also
supports our work around preventing depletion in life skills when patients come into
hospital.

As part of the Do If For Dementia campaign, a 19-metre reminiscence mural of
Abington Park was installed in the corridor to our elderly care wards. The spectacular
image also triggers memories using the sense of smell and sound. Noises from the
park are played through the corridor and the smell of cut grass can be pumped to
transport patients away from the reality of the hospital environment to their memories
of the park. ‘

Other projects include the refurbishment of a kitchen and therapy area as well as
plans for a redesign for dedicated garden area so patients with dementia can spend
time outside in the fresh air. As well as those big ticket items, there are lots of
resources that we'd like to see on wards across the hospital such as special clocks,
memory boxes to encourage soothing reminiscences and calming activities and
games.




During the year, nutrition, catering and nursing staff worked together to create a
finger food menu for any patient who has difficulty eating a more conventional hot
meal and has particular benefits for patients with dementia. The food boxes,
providing a selection of finger foods, meet a calorie count of 400 across the required
food groups.

Our patients with dementia can often have difficulty eating and drinking in hospital:
it's an unsettling and confusing environment and the food we serve might not be
familiar to them. As dementia progresses, people often find cutlery difficult to
manage and they can lose the ability to identify their own thirst and hunger.

The food isn't wrapped, so it's easier for patients to pick the food up, and to eat when
they want, not when we say it's time to eat. It gives them independence to make their
own choices around when to eat. It empowers them. It's also good for our nurses
because they can be confident that our patients are getiing the right nutrition.

We further strengthened the support we give to patients with dementia and their
loved ones with to the introduction of John's Campaign on our adult wards.

The aim of John’s Campaign is to give relatives of patients with dementia more
involvement in their care when they're admitted to hospital and this includes
acknowledging the need for more flexible visiting times on wards.

Carers know all the little things about a patient that can make a big difference to the
quality of their care. They know the patient best, they know their routines, what they
like and dislike. When we involve carers, the patients are more likely to engage
better with their treatment so it can reduce the length of stay. That’s really good
news for our patients because it means they can be back at home sooner.

Our local community

Two events in particular took place during the year that showcase the wonderful
support we get from our local community:

« |n autumn, we were inundated with donations when we called on local knitters
and knitting groups to knit and donate twiddlemuffs to help reduce agitation
and restlessness in patients with dementia. A twiddlemuff is a knitted
handmuff with bits and bobs like zips and buttons added and incorporating
different textures. Dementia can result in restless hands and agitation and
twiddiemuffs can provide visual, tactile and sensory stimulation for people with
dementia - as well as keeping hands cosy and warm.

« On World Book Day we launched our Bedside Book Club, a mobile library for
our adult in-patients. It followed a town-wide campaign where we asked
people living and working in Northampton to donate a copy of their favourite
book. Thanks to the support of many Northampton businesses and
employers, as well as individual donations, we collected an amazing 5,000
books. The library has been extremely well received on the wards taking part
and we plan to roll it out to all adult wards before the end of the year.
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Qur volunteers

The volunteer service aims to support clinical staff to provide the best possible care
to our patients.

In April, we appointed a volunteer services manager to oversee the service and
increase the presence of volunteers across the hospital. In the course of the year, a
new volunteer policy was ratified, confirming our commitment to a robust process
ensuring that volunteers are recruited safely and are trained to ensure patient safety.

Following a number of recruitment events and promotions, we recruited an additional
160 volunteers, an increase of 75 per cent on the previous year. We ended the year
with a volunteer presence in 23 wards and support services. In addition, 237
volunteers received mandatory training and various other bespoke training packages
were created.

We introduced a new volunteer uniform to demonstrate that we value our volunteers
as well as making it easier for colleagues, patients and visitors to recognise them.

Our buildings, facilities and IT infrastructure

We now boast the most advanced cancer centre in the UK thanks to a £5.5 million
upgrade of our radiotherapy service. Patients receiving radiotherapy treatment now
benefit from a greater range of therapies, better accuracy in targeting cancer cells
and reduced side effects thanks to the purchase of three new linear accelerator
(LINAC) machines, the most sophisticated cancer machines in the UK.

A linear accelerator (LINAC) is the device most commonly used for external beam
radiation treatments for patients with cancer. The linear accelerator is used to treat
all parts of the body by delivering high-energy x-rays to the region of the patient's
tumour.

The upgrade has taken place in tandem with increased collaboration with University
Hospitals of Leicester NHS Trust to develop a centre of regional excellence in
oncology services for the East Midlands region.

Our partnership with Boots UK enjoyed a successful first year, with the outpatient
pharmacy improving services and reducing waiting times for patients. During the first
year of operation, over 35,000 patients visited Boots pharmacy. The turnaround on
dispensing medicines since the partnership was established in June 2015 increased
in speed, with 75 per cent of patients in the area receiving their prescriptions within
15 minutes compared to 29 per cent in 2015. We aiso saw a significant drop in the
average wait time for patients in the same time period from 67 minutes to 41
minutes. |

Despite the high levels of activity, we were able to make significant progress in
planning, re-developing and improving our clinical areas including:

¢ The last phase of improvement works within our A&E department was
completed. The phased re-development programme, taking place over the
past four years, has seen the whole area brought up to latest standards,
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capacity increased considerably, additional clinical facilities such as a new
ambulatory care centre, a state-of-the-art resuscitation area and clinical
observation unit developed — all while maintaining business as usual

¢ A much-needed expansion to the chemotherapy suite began following a
highly successful fundraising campaign. We're seeing increasing numbers of
patients receiving cancer treatment and that’s largely because treatments are
getting better, we have a greater range of options for treating patients and we
have longer treatment cycles. That's really good news for our patients - but it
means that we've outgrown the facilities for our day patients and we needed
to invest in an upgrade of the chemotherapy suite to make their stay more
comfortable and improve the working environment for the team.

+ A new permanent CT scanning suite was installed, which means we no longer
need to utilise a mobile unit which was previously brought to site for two or
three days every week.

» During the year, we carried out extensive planning and design work for a new
B0-bed assessment hub. The new unit will will be sited on the car park at the
front of the A&E department and construction work will commence in the
summer of 2017.

« Plans were also developed to provide a GP led streaming unit at the
Springfield building adjacent to the A&E department. Its co-location to our
emergency department will ensure that patients in need of primary care
services can receive these in the most appropriate setting and help alleviate
pressure from the increasing attendances in at A&E.

We have continued throughout the year to replace essential services such as
heating, ventilation, electrical and water pipework services across the site, as well as
ensuring that our public spaces throughout the hospital are kept bright and fresh
looking to provide a welcoming environment to our patients and visitors.

Throughout the year, we benefitted from our investment in a robust |T infrastructure,
continuously developed to meet the increasing demands of our systems and
services. Our previously built-in resilience has reaped huge dividends in zero
network downtime and only scheduled server downtime over the course of the year,
critical in giving clinicians confidence to move towards “paper-lite” working by 2020 in
line with the National Information Board’s vision for the NHS. Indeed our emergency
department is already working in a paper-lite way. As we produce this annual report,
we are in the final stages of procurement to refresh our wireless network, further
enabling clinicians to access information on the move.

Excellent progress was made with our best of breed approach to electronic patient
records:

¢ electronic prescribing and medicines management is now in use throughout
medicine (including the emergency department) and trauma and orthopaedics
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» all discharge summaries and clinical correspondence are sent electronically to
primary care

« all vital signs and some nursing assessments are recorded electronically

¢ full electronic order communications for pathology, radiology and a significant
number of other services has been in use for quite some time.

Our new core Emis patient administration system is due to go live in June and this
will link our suite of Emis products, ED Symphony, Pharmacy, ePMA and PAS in the
first instance through a health application portal improving our patient-centric view of
clinical information.

As a member of the EMRAD Vanguard consortium since its inception, we worked to
improve radiology systems and services across the East Midlands in collaboration
with six other hospital trusts. This project made good progress over the year and is
enabling sharing of images across the sites, moving towards cross site reporting for
the benefit of our patients.

Priorities for the coming year include the PAS go-live and the potential for further
integration and clinical noting. We will support greater use of our EMC vendor neutral
archive for image storage and further digital records scanning and we will begin the
process of replacing our laboratory information management system in collaboration
with neighbouring NHS trusts.

Due to the increased focus of cyber-attacks on healthcare, security is paramount on
our agenda. In May 2017, a global cyber attack infected many NHS organisations;
we were not infected but we took precautionary measures to protect our systems.
Thanks to our robust business contingency planning, there was no disruption to
scheduled activity. While A&E saw an increase in activity as a result of GP surgeries
being affected by the attack, our resilience plans ensured that patient safety
remained our top priority.

QOur awards

In a year in which we cared for more people than ever before, we had so much to
celebrate and the nominations flooded in from members of the public, patients and
staff for our 2016 Best Possible Care Awards - which made shortlisting the entries a
very difficult task.

We hold these awards to recognise our employees and voiunteers who make an
exceptional contribution to patient care — and they took place last year thanks

to funding from the Northamptonshire Health Charitable Fund and sponsorship from
Johnson & Johnson, Avery Healthcare and the BGL Group.

in the midst of all the discussion around pressures on NHS services, our Best
Possible Care Awards are an opportunity to take stock of and celebrate the
competence and commitment, the professionalism and pride, the exuberance and
enthusiasm that we see every day in every ward and every department.

As well as our own awards, we were delighted that a number of our employees were
recoghised on the national stage for their exceptional achievements:
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Our Chit Chat group was set up as a way of tailoring antenatal education,
parenting advice and peer support to women with additional needs including
learning disabilities or anxiety. The safeguarding midwives who set up the
group won the Enhancing Patient Dignity category of the Nursing Times
Awards as well as being finalists in the Royal College of Midwives awards and
the Patient Experience Network awards.

A successful campaign to recruit nurses onto our staff bank won a Public
Services Communications gold award celebrating excellence in
communications in the public sector. We were the only acute NHS Trust
shortlisted for the awards and one of only four organisation nationally to
achieve a gold award.

The nurse bank campaign, entitled "Join our bank and we'll invest in you" was
also shortlisted in the communications category of the HSJ Value in
Healthcare Awards and the staff engagement category of the HSJ Awards.

Three of our nursing staff were shortlisted for the East Midlands Leadership
Academy award. Safeguarding midwife Emma Fathers, ward sister Stacey
Cheney and pre-operative assessment sister Sharron Matthews were all
finalists in recognition of their outstanding leadership qualities and
commitment to improving patient care.

We were recognised by the NHS for excellence in sustainability reporting, by
the Green Organisation with their Golden Apple award for healthcare
environmental best practice and we maintained our Investors in the
Environment green accreditation, with Best Green Champion (Large
Organisations) awarded for the second year.

Our catering team maintained our bronze Food for Life accreditation for
patient meals and extended it to the food served to staff and visitors in the
restaurant.

Our procurement team was highly commended in the sustainable
procurement category at the Health Care Supply Association awards. The
team have shown how refurbishing condemned furniture such as overbed
tables and patient lockers can cut costs in half, which producing
environmental and patient experience improvements.

A quality improvement project which halved the length of time for an
emergency gynaecological examination was shortlisted in the HSJ Value in
Healthcare awards. Doctors introduced gynaecology emergency assessment
bags into the emergency department so that the specialist equipment for a
comprehensive gynaecological assessment would be immediately available.
As a result, the length of time a patient waits in the department for an
examination has been more than halved. It was very simple and inexpensive
solution that's significantly reduced waiting times for our patients.

We scooped a prestigious baby friendly award from children’s rights
organisation Unicef. The Baby Friendly Initiative, set up by Unicef (United
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Nation’s Children’s Fund) and the World Health Organisation, is a global
programme which provides a practical and effective way for health services to
improve the care provided for all mothers and babies.

In Northampton, just under 80 per cent of mothers choose to breastfeed their
babies. We know that breastfeeding helps protect babies from a range of
illnesses like gastroenteritis, chest infections, ear infections. The Baby
Friendly award means we have best practice standards in place to strengthen
mother-baby relationships and to support mothers who chose to breastfeed.

e \We were shortlisted for the Northamptonshire Sports awards in the Active
Workplace category. WWe were recognised for our activity programmes to
improve staff health and wellbeing which include nutrition and fitness
programme, taking part in local and national fitness challenges and lunchtime
dance sessions.

e We won the staff engagement category of the Patient Experience Network
Awards in recognition of our work in engaging with staff, collating feedback
and using the intelligence gathered

e \We won a Patient Experience Network Award for improving the experience of
people with a disability. This came hot on the heels of receiving a Getting On
Board award from the Northamptonshire Learning Disability Partnership
Board in recognition of our work in supporting patients with a learning
disability

It's heartening to see individuals, teams and departments across the full spectrum of
our services being recognised for their outstanding contribution.

Inspection

As the end of the financial year approached, and still in the grip of our winter
pressures, we were inspected by the Care Quality Commission. The inspection
results have not been published at the time of producing this annual report but the
informal feedback from inspectors was that care for patients was seen to be the
priority, A&E felt calm despite the huge pressure we're under, and staff ware
positive, confident and proud of their work.

We know we have improved in almost every way since the last inspection three
years ago. Our hospital in many ways feels like a very different place and there's a
tangible sense of pride in Team NGH.

f\ t Sme L | J
BQ(\ LA~
Debbie Needham Paul Farenden

Deputy Chief Executive Officer Chairman
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AN INTRODUCTION TO NORT.HAMPTON GENERAL HOSPITAL NHS TRUST

Who We Are

Northampton General Hospital is an acute NHS hospital trust that offers a full range
of hospital services from the main hospital site close to the centre of Northampton.
We also provide day case and outpatient services at Danetre Hospital in Daventry.

We have formally pledged our commitment to continuous improvements in the
quality of care we provide and patient safety by strengthening our focus on corporate
accountability for clinical performance. We are committed to providing the best
possible care for all our patients and this is central to our strategy for the future.

What We Do

We provide general acute services for a population of 380,000 and hyper-acute
stroke, vascular and renal services to 692,000 people fiving throughout the whole of
Northamptonshire. We are an accredited cancer centre, providing services to a
wider population of 880,000 who live in Northamptonshire and parts of
Buckinghamshire. For one highly specialist urological treatment we serve an even
wider catchment.

Our principal activity is the provision of free healthcare to eligible patients. We
provide a full range of outpatients, diagnostics, inpatient and day case elective and
emergency care and also a growing range of specialist treatments that distinguishes
our services from many district general hospitals. We alsc provide a very small
amount of healthcare to private patients.

Our Vision and Values

Qur vision is to provide the best possible care for all of our patients. This means we
deliver safe, clinically effective acute services focused entirely on the needs of the
patient, their relatives and carers. These services may be delivered from our hospital
sites or by our staff in the community.

Our values underpin all we do and were developed following discussion and
consultation with our staff. They are:

¢ We put patient safety above ali else

e We aspire to excellence

o We reflect, we learn, we improve

¢ We respect and support each another

For patients this means they can expect to:
s Receive the right treatment at the right time and in the right place in line with
national guidelines
Be kept safe from avoidable harm
Be treated as individuals and have their individual needs addressed
Be treated with compassion, respect and dignity
Be kept fully informed and share in decision making about their care
Have any concerns addressed as early as possible
Be cared for in a clean and safe environment

e & & & ¢ »
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Our Strategic Aims

Our Trust Board sets our overall strategic direction, within the context of NHS
priorities, and monitors our performance against objectives. It also provides financial
stewardship, clinical governance and corporate governance to ensure that we
continue to provide high quality care that offers value for money.

To support delivery of these organisational priorities we have developed five
strategic aims that are also aligned to our vision and values:

1. To focus on quality and safety
We will avoid harm, reduce mortality, and improve patient outcomes through a focus
on quality outcomes, effectiveness and safety

2. To exceed our patients’ expectations
We will continuously improve our patient experience and satisfaction by delivering
personalised care which is valued by patients

3. To strengthen our local services
Provide a sustainable range of services delivered locally

4. To enable excellence through our people
We will develop, support and value our staff to provide our patients with quality care
delivered by a highly trained and motivated workforce.

5. To ensure a sustainable future
To provide effective and commercially viable services for our patients, ensuring a
sustainable future for NGH

The current healthcare environment remains very challenging and the constrained
financial environment and difficulty in recruiting a substantive workforce are our main
strategic risks. However we continually focus on

« transforming the way that our staff work and how we deliver key services to
respond to changing patient needs, ensuring that we are able to respond to
the demands placed on our services and the organisation;

« maximising efficiency and reducing cost so that we are a high value
organisation;

« strengthening the way that we work with other organisations and partners, to
establish partnerships and strategic alliances where this is mutually beneficial
and improves the quality and efficiency of our services for patients;

Our Strategic Priorities
» Providing and strengthening our core hospital services through partnership

working with other primary and secondary care providers

e Continuing o improve urgent care services

¢ Coliaborating with other providers to provide care closer to home

¢ Developing partnerships with KGH in response to the challenged health
economy workstream
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e Become the hospital provider of choice for local GPs and patients
¢ Delivering excellence in patient care
e Developing health and wellbeing campus in partnership with Public Health

At the time of producing our annual report, our clinical strategy is under
review.
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PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS

Overview

The past year has seen increased collaborative working between us and other
service providers within the county to ensure that patients are provided with the best
quality care in the timeliest manner; quality of care always being at the heart of all

service provision.

We experienced some operational challenges throughout 2016/17 with a 2 per cent
increase in A&E attendances and a 10 per cent increase on the previous year for
emergency admissions, further compounded by high acuity levels of patient
presenting especially throughout the winter period. This resulted in increased time in
hospital for some patients and in particular longer lengths of stay for those patients
who require care or community services after discharge from hospital.

The acuity of our patients in the assessment areas and throughout the rest of the
hospital can be seen below with a marked increase during winter.

NGH Average Weekly Acuity

’ ’ -=-Assessment Units

~=Trust

Average Acuity

e

Week Cummen:lng

A number of changes have been put in place over the year to ensure increased
efficiency in all patient pathways with the aim of ensuring safety and quality of care
along with a reduced length of hospital stay and safe discharge.

1) Perfect weeks — we ran site-wide ‘perfect weeks’ during the year and
especially at Christmas with senior clinical and managerial staff supporting the
wards to ensure discharges were optimised. Elective operating for more
routine cases was reduced throughout these periods and key clinical staff
asked to prioritise working on the ward areas.
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2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

7)

8)

Proactive management of elective work over the winter period: Winter always
places a huge non elective medical demand on us and as such a plan to flex
down elective work and to convert Althorp ward from elective orthopaedic
surgery to medicine was agreed and planned. Althorp ward was converted to
medicine in mid-January and the ward was handed back to orthopaedics
during the first week of March. This clearly has had an impact on our elective
performance for orthopaedics but during this period we asked other providers
to help us with some cases who were clinically urgent while we focussed on
day case work.

Improved support for frail patients being admitted via the Emergency
Department via a dedicated frailty service ensuring patients have a CGA
(Comprehensive Geriatric Assessment) within the 24 hours of admission. The
fraiity service is supported by two full time frailty nurses who work with A&E
staff as well as the general wards - this has been and continues to be further
developed into a non-bedded area where patienis can be assessed with the
aim of transfer home unless admission is urgently required.

A new rehab model of care utilising capacity at Angela Grace nursing home
(Dickens Unit) By October 2017 we had 35 patients being supported with
intensive physio and occupational therapy with the aim to ensure a speedy
recovery and transition home without the requirement of ongoing care. The
effect of this new model of care and therapy has proved successful with many
patients now going straight home without the need for community care.

Expansion (FIT stop) within emergency department to ensure rapid see and
treat. This service opened during the first week of September creating 9
assessment bays and freeing up A&E capacity to increase the footprint to 42
cubicles (including children’s ED, resus, majors, minors and FIT stop} This
service is consultant-led seven days a week and has been instrumental in
ensuring we have the best ambulance handover figures in the region

Seven day working: during the year we extended our opening times in the
ambulatory care centre. The service now operates across 7 days and into the
evenings. The numbers of patients in the unit has continued {o increase and is
now exceeding the numbers it was originally designed for.

The weekend discharge team has expanded during the year to include 2
additional senior doctors with the aim of ensuring patients who are ready to
leave hospital are reviewed and discharged. At weekends both the on call
manager and on call director are also based on site during the day to provide
support to the clinical staff.

Development of a business case for a new assessment unit. Planning and
design work has continued on this large development over the winter period.

Additional staff and new ways of working for the emergency department have

been invaluable over the past year with the introduction of a social worker,
GP, pharmacist and therapy staff based in the A&E to ensure patients are
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receiving the most appropriate treatment, medication and can be rapidly seen
and discharged home

9) Additional consuitants in acute and general medicine were appointed to
support the assessment areas and ensure medical teams could manage the
increased numbers of medical patients admitted to our wards

10) S.A.F.E.R. patient flow principles were introduced by the end of October
2017 A daily SAFER dashboard is in place and now includes metrics on Red
to Green which shows daily if patients’ care plans are progressing, with the
aim that every patient should be on a green day with something taking place
to progress their care and discharge. The communications work on this
programme has been recognised nationally and internationally with our
SAFER posters being used as far away as New Zealand

11)We run a weekly senior review-and-challenge of all cases where patients are
staying in hospital for long periods. At the start of the process we had 40
patients over 100 days stay and the meeting has supported the discharge of
many of these patients yielding in excess of 10,000 beds days

12)The daily safety huddle was reviewed and refined jointly by the operational
and nursing teams with a new daily 8.30am huddle that all wards and
departments attend to update on patient safety, patient flow and any other
concerns. This meeting has been hugely helpful over the winter in monitoring
safety as well as galvanising the teams at times of immense pressure

13)The Dementia and Delirium team from NHFT joined our discharge team over
the winter period. This small feam of therapists have been instrumental in
supporting the discharge of some of our most vulnerable patients who can
often have longer stays in hospital.

14)Advanced Primary care streaming: The medicine division led a robust plan to
divert patients from the front door of ED into more appropriate services within
the community as approximately 30 per cent of patients who attend A&E do
not require our services. The GP triage staff rapidly assess patients and
stream them to

ambulatory care

gynae assessment unit

paediatric assessment unit

oncology assessment (EAB)

urgent care centre and GP out of hours off site

booking them a rapid appointment with their own GP

pharmacists

home
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Delayed Transfer of Care

Delayed transfers of care (DTOC) have been relatively static throughout the year.
The figures below identify that, on average, 12 per cent of our bed base is utilised by
patients recorded as being clinically fit for discharge but lacking facilities in the
community/primary care to support their discharge.

Average monthly Delayed Transfer of Care patients
(DTOC)
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ACTIVITY

The change in outpatient activity between consultant and nurse led is due to a
change in the recoding of the activity; taking collectively, first outpatients has
increased by 6.3 per cent with little change in the follow up figures.

Activity Comparison 2013-14 | 2014-15 | 2015-16 | 2016-17 Diff % Diff
Emergency Inpatients 35,907 | 40,349 | 43,456 | 47,701 4,245 10%
Elective Inpatients 7,329 6,208 5,824 5,634 -190 -3%
Elective Daycases 38,052 38,346 | 39,610 | 42,393 2,783 7%
New outpatient attendances - Consultant led 77,973 80,037 83,474 | 105,790 22,316 27%

Follow-up outpatient attendances - Consultant led | 152,425 | 149,977 | 155,562 | 208,420 52,858 34%

New outpatient attendances - Nurse led 39,775 38,571 42,127 27,758 -14,369 -34%
Follow-up outpatient attendances - Nurse led 81,535 | 114,953 | 154,412 | 101,938 -52,474 -34%
Total number of outpatient DNA's 26,525 30,350 34,770 36,708 1,938 6%
Patients seen in Accident & Emergency 107,786 | 109,305 | 114,179 | 116,183 2,004 2%
Number of babies born 4,573 4,685 4,726 4,867 141 3%
Average length of stay (in days) 4.60 3.55 4.36 4.52 0.16 4%

The reduction in elective inpatient activity is due to the increased need for
emergency inpatients to access our beds which has meant we cancelled operations
or on occasions where clinically appropriate we delayed operating in order that we
care for those most in need of our services.

During the year we ran transformation programmes across surgery and outpatients
with the aim of reducing the numbers of patients who do not attend (DNA), ensuring
the numbers of patients in each clinic and on each list are adequate and that time is
not wasted - ultimately improving the experience both of patients and our staff. The
transformation projects are continuing during 2017/18.

National Performance Standards

Despite the pressures on both the organisation and the health economy in general,
both locally and nationally, we fully achieved 9 of the 14 national targets throughout
2016-17 with a further 3 partially achieved, one of which was only missed in the first
quarter of the year (cancer: percentage of patients treated within 31 days).
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Performance Indicator Target Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4

A&E: Proportion of patients spending less than
4 hoursin A&E

95%

A&E: 12 hour trolley waits 0

Diagnostics: % of patients waiting less than 6
weeks for a diagnostic test

>99%%

Cancer: Percentage of 2 week GP referral to 1st
outpatient appointment

93%

Cancer: Percentage of 2 week GP referral to 1st
outpatient - breast symptoms

93%

Cancer: Percentage of patients treated within
62 days of referral from screening

90%

Cancer: Percentage of patients treated within

85%
62 days of referral from hospital specialist *

Cancer: Percentage of patients treated within
62 days urgent referral to treatment of all 85%
cancers

Cancer: Percentage of patients treated within
31days

96%

Cancer: Percentage of patients for second or
subsequent treatment treated within 31 days - 94%

surgery
Cancer: Percentage of Patients for second or

subsequent treatment treated within 31 days - 98%

drug
Cancer: Percentage of Patients for second or

subsequent treatment treated within 31 days - 94%
radiotherapy

RTT waiting times incomplete pathways 92%

RTT over 52 weeks 0

4hr A&E standard

2016/17 has been a challenging year for our urgent and emergency care services.
Our emergency department has seen an additional 2,000 patients (two per cent
increase) together with 4,000 more admissions than the previous financial year
representing a 10 per cent increase.

During the first five months of the year performance exceeded the planned trajectory;
however with the challenges of increased attendees to A&E and high acuity of our
patients we were unable to sustain the performance throughout the remainder of the

year.
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A&E Attendance / 4 Hour Breach Performance

Baselin  aprnte ""1363" Jun16  Ju-16  Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan17  Feb17
Total
Patients 9277 9895 10074 10129 10386 9655 9766 10138 9903 9652 9730 9602
Seen
aii':;’“r 1823 1143 1612 1519 1350 1352 977 811 1188 1255 1216 1104
. 88.45 8400 8500 87.00 86.00  90.00 88.00  87.00
Trajectory [P %, o % o o 92.00% % % 87.5% 88.5%

Actual
performan
ce

The external support required to reduce the number of patients who are delayed
continues to be a challenge and the constraints within adult social care have
impacted on performance within the hospital.

As we enter spring, a marked improvement in performance is identified in March
which has continued for the first part of April with 8 of the first 18 days exceeding the
95 per cent target.

Diagnostic waiting times

The six week diagnostic waiting times have been maintained across the year. All
specialities have responded well to the increase in activity and have been able to
sustain the target by offering additional spaces for our patients.

Cancer waiting times

We had a challenging year with regards to meeting the cancer waiting times
standards during 2016-17. This highlighted the need for an intense focus following
concerns that the 31 day and 62 day standards in cancer care were not being
delivered.

An interim cancer management specialist was recruited in August in order to support
the new cancer services management team. A refreshed cancer recovery plan and
tumour site action plans were produced with monthly oversight of these by the
clinically-led cancer board, underpinned by a newly launched access and operational

policy.

Performance prior to this intense focus saw us failing to meet the 62 day standard for
16 months, finally reaching target in December 16 at 86 per cent against the
standard of 85 per cent. We sustained the performance against the 31 day standard
meeting this each month from July 2016 onwards.

The number of patients exceeding the 62 day wait for a diagnosis/treatment in
September 16 was 115, as at March 17 this stands at 48 and has seen a reduction
of 58 per cent, however continued focus is required to ensure this is reduced to
acceptable levels and does not rise again.
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Pressures over the past year included access to medical records for weekly MDT
meetings, ability for radiology to sustain access to investigations and reporting within
seven days, staffing capacity in oncology and cancer services, availability of
histopathology for MDT meetings and timely reporting and winter pressures.

Referral to Treatment

We have successfully maintained the achievement of RTT ongoing target, despite
having to stop a significant proportion of elective work over the winter due to the
urgent care pressures.
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SUSTAINABILITY REPORT

During the year we approved our new sustainability strategy, Caring for the Future.
While emphasising the continued need to reduce our environmental impact, the
strategy moves beyond the traditional areas of energy and waste to the wider
sustainability aspects of healthcare delivery. It is aligned with both our clinical
strategy and the NHS Sustainability Strategy and includes both quantitative and
qualitative goals for the coming five years. All key performance indicators are on
target, with the exception of water use.

Carbon Management Plan
We reached the end of the first contracted year of our energy strategy which
achieved the guaranteed savings specified in the contract. Carbon emissions from

heat and power were down by 11.5 per cent compared to the previous year.

Our biomass boiler became fully operational in December. Woodchip for the boiler is
purchased from a local company that conducts tree clearances and tree surgery
work around the local area, including our site. Carbon emissions from buildings
have reduced by 31 per cent compared to 2010, which puts us close to requirements
for the national 2020 target; a major achievement. This is with only a part year of the
biomass operation.

Consumption of electricity continues to increase due to increased patient activity,
increased data storage requirements and increased cooling requirements.
Additional measures are therefore required to stay on target for 2020 and beyond.
The potential options will be determined and reviewed in the coming year.

Carbon Emissions
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onsu.hﬁ'a:t'lo'h' Data o EE
Gas kWh 29,250,909 22,683,936 18,937,723

Electricity kWh 14,611,750 15,222,263 15,657,244
*Biomass , 2,131,484
*Water m° - 127,781 136,464 151,982
Business Travel miles 977,976 943,475 894,928
Financial Data£ - S L R A

Gas ' 1,148,238 1,276,017 1,189,156
Electricity 1,131,103 477,196 246,904
*Biomass 64,456
*Water 268,190 263,083 297,080
Business Mileage 431,790 395,717 364,465
Carbon Credits 214,397 191,202 171,965
*Renewable Heat Incentive (73,343)

*approximate figures as full data not yet confirmed

Investment

Further improvements have been made to our lighting. Inefficient lighting has now
been replaced with LEDs in most stairwells, in staff restrooms and along corridors —
additional daylight and motion sensors have been added. This work has been funded
through an interest free Salix loan.

A review and some retuning of our building energy management system has been
undertaken resulting in improved comfort levels and reduced energy spend.
Following a successful change to the air handling unit in our pharmacy depariment,
which has reduced spend by approximately £4,000 a year, similar schemes will be
incorporated into the 2017 workplan.

Water Use

Water use increased significantly in the previous twelve months (11.4 per cent) due
to two separate underground water leaks, the first in five years. These have now
been repaired and water levels have returned to those of 2015. These water leaks
have put us behind our target of a 2 per cent year-on-year decrease, but additional
metering will be installed in the coming year to help target the installation of water
saving technologies.

In conjunction with Anglian Water we also launched an awareness campaign o
highlight the issue and cost of inappropriate items being flushed down toilets both
within our hospital and in the wider Northamptonshire area.
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Waste and Recycling

2016/17 saw a major push on waste. A multidisciplinary group now meets monthly
to set the forward agenda for waste reduction and improved recycling. Joint
meetings are held with Kettering General Hospital and our waste management
contractor. :

Regular waste audits are now conducted in conjunction with the infection prevention
team with follow-up training given as appropriate

700 '
600 -
500 -
W 2013/14
400 A W 2014/15
300 A m 2015/16
W 2016/17
200 A
100 7 |
0 . . . '
Clinical waste Domestic waste Recycled waste

e Waste production on site has increased; this is a result of increased patient
activity. Waste produced per patient decreased by 11.5 per cent compared with
2015/16.
e The level of recycling segregated on site increased by 6.6 per cent to 212 tonnes
(almost 27 per cent of non-clinical waste). Additional revenue was also achieved ‘
through sale of wooden pallets, and the destruction of a further batch of archived |
X-Rays. These resulted in a further 97 tonnes of recycling. |
e These figures do not include the furniture reused through two reuse initiatives. |
The Warplt platform is an online site that allows staff to advertise items no longer
required and to obtain items from other organisations. In addition, an innovative .
project undertaken with our procurement department to refurbish ward furniture
has saved over £20,000 and prevented approximately 5 tonnes of waste going to
landfill.
e In 2017 we will install a shredder baler which will reduce the confidential waste
bill and result in a further revenue. We will continue our work with our waste
management companies and improve recycling facilities aiming for a further 5 per
cent increase in the amount of waste recycled.
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Carbon footprint and procurement

The carbon footprint calculated using the Defra P4CR tool based on spend has been
calculated at 80,288 tonnes COZ,, a 6.6 per cent increase on the previous year.
This reflects some additional spend categories included in the data set and
increasing costs, particularly in construction materials, office equipment, and
chemicals and gases.

We have also started to question suppiiers about their own sustainability initiatives
and have discovered a number of potential waste reduction schemes as a result.

The greenhouse gas emissions from anaesthetic gases are slightly higher than in
previous years (2932 tonnes CO2,). This is mainly due to increased use of Entonox,

a gas used in A&E and maternity.

Other green initiatives

o Following the annual staff travel survey two further cycle shelters were installed
at opposite sides of the site.

o Staff are now offered discounts if they take their own cup to our retail outlets
rather than using a disposable cup.

¢ Over 9,000 Christmas cards were collected and taken to M&S who work with the
Woodland Trust to plant more trees in the UK.

¢ And in more tree-related initiatives, both the emergency department and
maternity department have introcduced schemes to reduce the amount of paper
they use. Between them they are saving around 50 trees a year.

Plans for next year

Next year will see the creation of a carbon management plan to ensure we stay on
target to meet government legislation despite increasing energy demands on the
site. Part of this will include investigation of further renewable energy schemes
alongside the options fo participate in capacity market mechanisms. These are
schemes run by National Grid whereby high energy users are paid to change their
consumption for short periods of time in high use periods, usually during Winter.
These are designed to ensure that there is sufficient capacity on the grid reducing
the potential of black outs.

We will also participate in Clean Air Day — highlighting the harmful effect of pollution
on health, whilst promoting lower carbon forms of transport.
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SECTION TWO

ACCOUNTABILITY REPORT
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REPORT FROM THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE

Economic Outlook and Impact on the Trust

The NHS continues to be under significant pressure both financially and
operationally. Our response to this is to continue to focus on providing high quality
care to our patients through our clinically-led structure. We maintained a stable and
improving financial position in 2016/17 despite the at times extreme pressures on the
hospital, particularly due to increasing demand for urgent care services.

The challenge going forward is only likely to get even greater as the funding levels
for the NHS tighten still further and although we are well prepared to face what lies
ahead with detailed plans in place that are agreed with service leaders and
regulators, the pressure is continuing unabated so the risk of some non-delivery of
targets including financial performance is high.

There is quite considerable uncertainty about future funding levels in the medium
and long term but we are nevertheless working hard to establish sustainable plans
for the future alongside our partners in the health and social care system.

Financial Performance

We planned for a deficit of £15.1 million in 2016/17. This compared favourably with
the deficit of £20.1 million in 2015/16. The actual deficit of £13.8 million was better
than plan by £1.3 million.

We met our other financial duties to manage its capital expenditure within its capital
resource limit, its borrowing within its external finance limit and to pay its suppliers
within 30 days for more than 95% of invoices paid.

Capital Expenditure

We invested £14.7 million in 2016/17 improving our estate, medical equipment and
information technology (IT) assets. This included further substantial investment in
radiotherapy treatment machines and high tech diagnostic imaging equipment. There
are further plans in 2017/18 and beyond to ensure our estate, equipment and
technology is updated to underpin the provision of high quality care for our patients.
We are also planning to increase the capacity of the hospital to address the
pressures we face through the provision of a new assessment hub; this development
will go ahead with building commencing in 2017/18 and due for completion in spring
2018. The development will be financed through a lease with a capital value of
approximately £12.4 million.

Charitable Funds

We are supported by the Northamptonshire Health Charitable Fund whose primary
purpose is to support our work by providing grant funding, making use of the many
generous donations and legacies they receive from the general public and from
active fundraising.

During the year, the charity's governing arrangements were amended and the
Trustees of the charity are now legally independent of our Trust Board with a brief
that continues to ensure the charity contributes to enhancing patient experience.
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To ensure local governance of funds, our senior nurses and managers are heavily
involved as fund advisors actively, recommending the specific projects where funds
should be spent.

During the financial year, the charity paid £1.1m as grants. Of specific note is the full
funding of chemotherapy suite expansion and refurbishment. Other specific grants
contributed towards:

the acquisition of Springfield House as part of plans to improve urgent care
services for our patients.

provision of new equipment for our neo-natal intensive care unit Gosset ward
Do It For Dementia (as discussed earlier in this section).

improvements to patient and staff amenities

creation of - and improvement to - family rooms

sponsorship for staff undertaking extended professional development.

S | o bk A
Iy Laely’

Simon Lazarus

Director of Finance
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE: THE TRUST BOARD

NHS Trust Boards are legally required to consist of more non-executive members
than executive members. The current composition of the Trust’s Board of Directors
is:

Chairman

Five non-executive directors (one of whom is vice-chairman)
One Associate Non- Executive Director

Five executive directors with voting rights

Four executive directors

The executive directors are full time employees of the Trust and non-executive
directors were appointed by NHS Improvement.

Executive directors manage the day-to-day running of the Trust and, together with
the Chair and non-executive directors are responsible for determining our strategic
direction, agreeing our policy framework, monitoring our performance and systems of
internal control and also shaping cuiture for the organisation.

The Trust Board discharges its responsibilities through bi-monthly public Board
meetings and bi monthly Board of Director meetings, an annual public meeting and a
framework of formal subcommittees. The supporting committee structure is designed
to:

o Deliver the Board’s collective responsibility for the exercise of the powers and
performance of the Trust

¢ Assess and manage financial and quality risk

¢ Ensure compliance with Department of Health guidance, relevant statutory
requirements such as the Care Quality Commission requirements and
contractual obligations.

. The current composition of the Board is:
e Chairman
Five non-executive directors (one of whom is vice-chairman)
One Associate Non- Executive Director
Five executive directars with voting rights
Four executive directors

The directors do not have material interests in organisations where those
organisations or related parties are likely to do business, or are possibly seeking to
do business with Northampton General Hospital NHS Trust.

The directors are not aware of any relevant audit information of which our auditors
are unaware and they have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as
directors in order to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and o
establish that our auditors are aware of that information.
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Directors during 2016 /17

* denotes voting members of the Trust Board.

Job Title Name Comments
Chairman® Paul Farenden
Chief Executive Officer* Sonia Swart

Non-Executive Directors*

Phil Zeidler (vice Chair)
Graham Kershaw
Elizabeth Searle

David Noble

QOlivia Clymer

John Archard Jones

Annette Gill (Associate)

Stepped down October
2016

Commenced Nov-15
Commenced Jan-17

Commenced Jan-17

Chief Operating Officer®

Debbie Needham

Medical Director”

Michael Cusack

Director of Nursing®

Carolyn Fox

Director of Finance*

Simon Lazarus

Director of Facilities and
Capital Development

Charles Abolins

Director of Workforce and
Transformation

Janine Brennan

Director of Strategy and
Partnerships

Chris Pallot

Director of Corporate
Development, Governance
and Assurance

Catherine Thorne

Board members

Paul Farenden, CIPFA, MBA

Chairman

Paul was appointed as Chairman on 1st March 2012. A local man, who was
previously chief executive at the Dudley Group of Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust,
Paul has some 40 years’ experience in healthcare finance, management and

leadership. A qualified accountant, Paul has been chief executive in three NHS
Trusts over the last 20 years, where he has led large-scale organisational change.

Paul’s experience has provided him with an in-depth understanding of both the NHS

and the wider healthcare system.
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Phil Zeidler

Vice Chairman

Phil had a successful career as an entrepreneur in financial services, building a
number of businesses, including the largest independent outsourced distributor of
general insurance in the UK. Currently Chairman of two insurance businesses, a
music fund and two strategy-of-change consultancies, his core skills lie in strategic
planning, innovation and developing strategic relationships. He is married to a
consultant paediatrician.

Graham Kershaw

Non-executive director

Graham holds a first class honours degree in business from Leeds Metropolitan
University and an MBA. He is a fellow of both the Chartered Institute of Secretaries
and Administrators and the Chartered Institute of Personnel and Development.
Graham aiso holds a professional marketing qualification. Graham has been a main
board director of a number of major UK retail companies including Lioyds Pharmacy,
Capio UK and Joshua Tetley’s. He is currently managing director of Cogniscence Ltd
a business providing change management and business turnaround input mainly to
the public sector.

David Noble

Non-executive director

David Noble’s career has been in finance covering both the public and private
sectors. Most recently David has spent nine years as Finance Director of the
Equipment Procurement and Support sector of the Ministry of Defence, leading
change programmes to improve the performance of the organisation. He chairs the
audit committee.

Elizabeth Searle

Non-executive director

After qualifying as a nurse and working in cancer and palliative care, Liz Searle held
posts in higher education developing palliative care courses, with Macmilian as
Director of Education Development and Support, and at Sue Ryder Care as Head of
Palliative Care working with their hospices.

Olivia Clymer

Non-exectutive director

Olivia's early career was spent with the Environment Agency, which subsequently
led to roles in related areas in both the public and private sector. Her experience
of the voluntary and community sector and local authority helped to develop her
focus on regeneration and the challenges of social and economic

disadvantage. Olivia has served as a member for the Consumer Council for Water
and as a housing association board member for nine years. She is currently an
associate non-executive director for Dudley and Walsall Mental Health Trust. Her
experience in social care and systems transformation has informed her interest in
the challenging area of sustainable healthcare provision.
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John Archard Jones

Non-executive director

John has 30 years of commercial experience at senior levels in manufacturing, sales
management, project management and major bids. He is a former managing director
of the African region of ICL, a leading technology company. John now works in
business consultancy and is an experienced non-executive director within both the
public sector as well as private and listed companies in the UK and overseas. He is
a former councillor with the London Borough of Barnet and is the founder and former
member of a London-based charity for people with learning disabilities.

Anne Gill

Associate Non-Executive Director

Anne's experience includes a successful career as a senior human resources
executive in consumer goods, retail and public sector organisations, with 10 years as
HR Board Director for a multi-national fast-moving consumer goods (FMCG)
organisation. She has also held leadership roles in supply chain and sales. She is
currently a Board Trustee for the charity MedicAlert and works as an independent
consultant specialising in leadership coaching and organisation development. She
holds an MA in coaching and mentoring practice from Oxford Brookes University and
is a Chartered Fellow of the Institute of Personnel and Development.

Dr Sonia Swart, MA, MB, BCh, MD, FRCP, FRCPath

Chief Executive

Sonia was appointed as Chief Executive on 20th September 2013, having been the
Trust's Medical Director since September 2007 and acting Chief Executive since July
2013. Sonia qualified from the University of Cambridge and went on to train in
general medicine and clinical haematology. She worked as a consultant
haematologist in North Warwickshire before joining Northampton General Hospital in
1994. Prior to becoming Medical Director, Sonia combined an active clinical role
with a number of managerial activities, including head of pathology, clinical director
for diagnostics and clinical lead for the foundation trust application. Sonia has made
a commitment to align the trust's aims, values, objectives and corporate governance
to support a clinically-led quality agenda.

Deborah Needham

Chief Operating Officer/Deputy Chief Execulive

Deborah trained as a Registered General Nurse in Lancashire where she held
positions in both respiratory and emergency medicine units, before moving to
London in 1998 as a ward manager then general manager. After graduating as a
nurse, Deborah gained a diploma in respiratory medicine and nursing care and a BA
(Hons) in healthcare management. Deborah moved to NGH in 2004 and has worked
as a general manager, Deputy COO and care group director. In 2014 Deborah was
substantively appointed to the Chief Operating Officer after a period of acting into the
role. Within her portfolio she is responsibie for the 4 clinical divisions, national
performance standards, emergency planning & resilience, IT and information and the
operational day to day running of the entire hospital. Deborah is married and lives in
Northampton.
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Simon Lazarus

Director of Finance

Simon joined the Trust in March 2014 from the Oxford University Hospitals NHS
Trust where he was the Deputy Director of Finance. Simon has held a number of
senior roles in NHS hospital finance since joining the NHS in 1993. He has a special
interest in improving hospital finances, financial planning and major capital projects.
Simon is a chartered accountant and has a degree in natural sciences from
Cambridge University. Simon started his career in the private sector working in
London before joining the NHS.

Dr Michael Cusack

Medical Director

Dr. Michael Cusack, a consultant cardiologist, has joined our executive team from
the end of September 2014. Mike was closely involved with reconfiguration of
cardiac services across sites, led the Black Country Cardiovascular Network from
2008-2012 and has been involved in various aspects of pathway redesign. He has a
longstanding interest in medical management and has been a clinical director and
more recently a divisional medical director of a large surgical division at Royal
Wolverhampton Hospital. His responsibility there included all surgical specialties,
anaesthetics, theatres, support and maternity services in a medically led
management model.

Carolyn Fox

Director of Nursing

Carolyn began her nursing career in Sheffield and qualified as a Registered Nurse in
1990. She held staff nurse positions and went on to become a Ward Manager in
respiratory medicine. Carolyn worked in London as a Clinical Nurse Specialist before
relocating to the North West. With an interest in quality, Carolyn worked as a
National Programme Manager, NHS Quality Improvement Scotland and Assistant
Director of Nursing, Salford Royal Foundation Trust before joining Aintree University
Hospital as Deputy Director of Nursing.

Charles Abolins, FBIFM, MHCIMA

Director of Facilities and Capital Development (non-voting)

Responsible for the Trust's estates and facilities, procurement and capital
development, purchasing and supply. After graduating in hospitality management
from Birmingham College of Food and Tourism, Charles has held a number of
facilities management posts in the NHS. Since joining NGH, Charles has been
responsible for leading and implementing complex, major capital building
programmes and managing a wide range of facilities support services. He is the
Trust’s lead for sustainability.

Janine Brennan :

Director of Workforce and Transformation (non-voting)

Janine was appointed as Director of Workforce & Transformation on 2nd April 2013,
having worked previously as Director of Workforce and Organisational Development
at Royal Berkshire NHS Foundation Trust. She qualified in law and human resources
management and has worked in a number of acute Trusts, as well as the public
sector and not for profit
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organisations. Janine’s special interest is in developing staff commitment and
engagement in ways that lead to improvements in the care we give to patients.

Chris Pallot MSc, BA (Hons), DipHSM, DipM

Director of Strategy and Partnerships (non-voting)

Chris has worked at the Trust since January 2010. He joined the NHS Management
Training Scheme in 1995 after graduating from university and since then has gained
a postgraduate Diploma in Marketing and an MSc in Management. During his
career, Chris has held previous positions at Kettering General Hospital, the NHS
Modernisation Agency, Northamptonshire Heartlands PCT and NHS
Northamptonshire. In previous roles he has been responsible for operational
management, service improvement and commissioning & contracting. As Director of
Strategy and Partnerships, he has responsibility for strategy development,
contracting, market development and clinical coding services.

Catherine Thorne

Director of Corporate Development, Governance and Assurance (non-voting)
Catherine was appointed as Director of Corporate Development, Governance and
Assurance in January 2015 having previously held the post of Director of
Governance for London North West Healthcare NHS Trust. She started her career
clinically within radiotherapy and oncology services, transitioning into a variety of
senior NHS roles in quality assurance, service improvement and governance.
Catherine acts as the Board Secretary in addition {o responsibility for clinical
governance, health and safety, and compliance, risk and legal services.
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Table of Attendance 2016/17
A = Maximum number of meetings the Director could have attended

B = Number of meetings Director actually attended

Trust Board / Audit Quality Finance, Woerkforce Remuneration
Board of Committee Governance Investment & committee Comimittee
Director Committee Performance
Meetings Committee
Name = oo A B A B A B AL B AR AT B
Chairman: =0l AT B A L B A B A B A B A
Paul Farenden 12 10 o 12 8 12 9 12 6 1
"Chiefexecttive = A onB o AT B A B N e B A B A
Dr Sonia Swart 12 11 Ce 12 8 12 10 12 9 1
‘Non:executive: Al B! AR eBE A e B A e B i A e B e A
Directors . B e i s o e Bt
Graham Kershaw 12 10 4 3 12 3 12 11 1
David Nohle 12 11 4 3 12 9 Lo 1
Elizabeth Searle 7 4 3 1 7 5 0
Phil Zeidler 12 11 4 3 12 g 1
Olivia Clymer 12 10 4 ] 12 11 12 0 12 g 1
John Archard 3 3 1 1 3 3 3 1 3 0 1
Jones
Anne Gilt 3 3 1 1 3 2 3 1 3 3 1 1
{Associate)
Executive Directors | A | aB e e B A B P AR R A B A B
Deborah Needham 12 11 R 12 9 12 i1 12 ik
Simon Lazarus 12 11 4 4 12 7 12 11 i
Carolyn Fox 12 11 : 12 1 12 10 12 1"
Dr Michael Cusack 12 11 - 12 11 12 11
Chris Pallot 12 9 12 7 12 g L
Janine Brennan 12 10 12 10 12 10 12 11 1 1
Charles Abolins 12 1 12 ] 12 9 12 8
Catherine Thorne 12 12 4 3 12 10 12 10

Board Meetings

The Board meets in public session every other month with a Board of Directors meeting in
the intervening months. Where the Board meets in public this is also followed by a second
session held in private. Information regarding Board meetings, including agenda and papers,
is published on our website.

Audit commitiee

The Audit Committee meets around six times per year. lts purpose is to review the systems
of integrated governance, risk management and internal control, to ensure that there is an
effective internal audit function, to review the findings of the external auditor, to review the
findings of other significant assurance functions and considers the draft annual report and
financial statements before submission to the Board.
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Finance Investment and Performance Committee

The Finance Investment and Performance Committee meets monthly. The committee’s
purpose is to maintain a detailed overview of the Trust’s assets and resources in relation to
the achievement of financial targets and business objectives and the financial stability of the
Trust on behalf of the Board. In addition, this committee is responsnble for ensuring the
delivery of alt key performance metrics.

Quality Governance Committee

The Quality Governance committee meets monthly. The purpose of the Committee is to
ensure there is an effective system of integrated governance, risk management, and internal
control across the clinical activities of the organisation that support the organisation’s
objectives of delivering the best possible outcomes of care to patients.

Workforce Committee

The workforce committee meets monthly. The purpose of the committee is to provide
assurance to the Trust Board on organisational development and workforce performance
and on the achievement of associated key performance indicators and to make
recommendations to the Trust board on key strategic organisational development and
workforce initiatives.

Declarations of Interest

The Trust has a duty fo ensure that all its dealings are conducted to the highest standards of
integrity and probity. The statutory obligations are set out in the Code of Conduct and
Accountability, published by the Department of Health and to this end we are obliged to
compile and maintain a register of interest of directors, which may potentially influence their
role.

The register is reviewed regularly and the Board receives a quarterly corporate governance
report in which updates are reported. The current register of interest table is shown below.

Directors Interest Declarations:

Paul Farenden Hon Treasurer of the retirement fellowship
David Noble - Director, David C Nobie Ltd
Phil Zeidler - Chairman iGO4 Limited

Chairman iGO4 Partners Limited

Chairman iGO4 Solutions Limited

Chairman Curium Solutions Limited
Chairman Deadhappy Limites

Non-Executive Director AssureOne Group
Non-Exectutive Director Blue Badge Company
Chairman of Ride High Limited

Director of Northampton Charitable Funds

Wife is consultant paediatrician at NGH
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Olivia Clymer

John Archard-Jones

Janine Brennan

Chris Paliot

Non-Executive Director for Dudley and Walsall Mental Health Trust

Consultant Director First for Wellbeing
Director and Owner Africa Consulting Ltd.
Trustee Northants Health Charity

Husband is an employee of Oxford University Hospitals — Director of
Clinical Services

Chairman, Veluntary Impact Northamptonshire
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Statement of Chief Executive’s Responsibilities as Accountable Officer of the Trust

The Chief Executive of the NHS Trust Development Authority has designated that the Chief
Executive should be the Accountable Officer to the trust. The relevant responsibilities of
Accountable Officers are set out in the Accountable Officers Memorandum issued by the
Chief Executive of the NHS Trust Development Authority. These include ensuring that:

- there are effective management systems in place to safeguard public funds and assets and
assist in the implementation of corporate governance;

- value for money is achieved from the resources available to the trust;

- the expenditure and income of the trust has been applied to the purposes intended by
Parliament and conform to the authorities which govern them;

- effective and sound financial management systems are in place; and

- annual statutory accounts are prepared in a format directed by the Secretary of State with
the approval of the Treasury to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs as at the end of
the financial year and the income and expenditure, recognised gains and losses and cash
flows for the year.

To the best of my knowledge and belief, | have properly discharged the responsibilities set
out in my letter of appointment as an Accountable Officer.

| confirm that, as far as | am aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the trust's
auditors are unaware, and | have taken all the steps that | ought to have taken to make
myself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the trust’s auditors are
aware of that information.

| confirm that the annual report and accounts as a whole is fair, balanced and
understandable and that | take personal responsibility for the annual report and accounts
and the judgments required for determining that it is fair, balanced and understandable.

-

C. N
=

Debbie Needham

Deputy Chief Executive

Date

25 May 13-
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities in Respect of the Accounts

The directors are required under the National Health Service Act 2006 to prepare accounts
for each financial year. The Secretary of State, with the approval of the Treasury, directs
that these accounts give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the trust and of the
income and expenditure, recognised gains and losses and cash flows for the year. In
preparing those accounts, directors are required to:

- apply on a consistent basis accounting policies laid down by the Secretary of State with the
approval of the Treasury;

- make judgements and estimates which are reasonable and prudent;

- state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the accounts.

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the trust and to enable them to
ensure that the accounts comply with requirements outlined in the above mentioned
direction of the Secretary of State. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of
the trust and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and
other irregularities.

The directors confirm to the best of their knowledge and belief they have complied with the
above requirements in preparing the accounts.

By order of the Board

Date ?’ ( ) [:}( Debbie Needham

Deputy Chief Executive

mm\ \w;m )
Date 2,5th ﬂ\qj \7] Simon Lazarus \/

Finance Director
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Annual Governance Statement 2016/2017

1. Scope of Responsibility
As Accountable Officer, | am responsible for maintaining a sound system of
internal control that supports the achievement of the Trust’s policies, aims and
objectives, whilst safeguarding the public funds and departmentai assets for
which | am personally responsible, in accordance with the responsibilities
assigned to me.
| am also responsible for ensuring that the Trust is administered prudently and
economically and that resources are applied efficiently and effectively.

| acknowledge my responsibilities as set out in the Accountable Officer
Memorandum, including in relation to the production of statutory accounts,
effective management systems and regularity and propriety of expenditure.

As Chief Executive | am accountable to the Trust Board. | am also
responsible, via the NHS Accounting Officer, to Parliament for the
stewardship of resources within the Trust

2. Governance framework of the organisation
The Trust’'s governance framework and system of internal control is designed
to manage risk to a reascnable level rather than eliminate all risk of failure to
achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is
based on an ongoing process designed to:

» |dentify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the organisation’s
policies, aims and objectives and

o Evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact
should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and
economically

During 2016 the Trust Board has reviewed its governance arrangements and
made some adjustments in reporting that align and embed improved systems
of control and risk management to support the organisational operational
structure.

In addition in April 2016 the Trust Board approved a three year risk
management strategy and implementation plan to support improved risk
management and assurance mechanisms across the organisation.

Trust Board and Committee structure

Northampton General Hospital NHS Trust has a Board of Directors (the
Board) which compromises both Executive and Non-Executive Directors and
has met monthly throughout the year.

Voting members comprise the Chair and five non-Executive Directors, one
Associate non-Executive Director and five Executive Directors, including the
Chief Executive along with four non-voting Directors.

46




The role of the Board is to govern the organisation effectively and in doing so
to build public and stakeholder confidence that their health and healthcare is
in safe hands and ensure the Trust is providing safe, high quality patient —
centred care.

The Board holds its meetings in public bi monthly and papers are available on
the Trust website. The Board regularly reviews performance against national
standards and regulatory requirements and a summary of performance
against these priorities is available through the Trust's Annual report. The
Board places a strong emphasis on quality and safety of patient care and in
addition to performance reports, regularly hears directly from patients and
carers, including patient stories and ward visits.

With reference to the requirements of the Trust’s standing orders, the Director
of Corporate Development, Governance and Assurance and Trust secretary
has assessed the arrangements for the discharge of statutory functions. No
irregularities or gaps in legal compliance have been identified.

The Trust Board approved the organisation’s Quality Account in June 2016,
further to review by the Quality Governance Committee. The accuracy of the
Quality Account is assured through internal review and data checking
processes as part of the Trust's data quality arrangements.

The Trust’s External Auditors also undertook an audit of the 2016/17 Quality
Account and their findings are being taken into account for the production of
this year's Quality Account which is due to be agreed by the Board in June
2017.

During 2015/16 the Board reviewed its effectiveness against the Care Quality
Commission’s Well Led framework where a full gap analysis and action plan
was agreed by the Trust Board. This was again reviewed in December 2016
and will be reviewed once again when information from the Care Quality
Commission is made available following their latest consultation on their
inspection regime.

The Board undertakes a bi-monthly programme of Board development
activity. During 2016/17 this has largely centred on ensuring the Board
understands the changing healthcare landscape and in particular the work in
relation to Sustainability and Transformation programmes and how they link
with organisational strategic aims related to ensuring safe and sustainable
services via clinical collaboration.

Development activity also includes updates from the work undertaken in the
previous year related to the organisational Quality Improvement (Ql) agenda.
This takes the form of updates and also front line staff presentations in
respect to Q! projects undertaken from various wards and departments across
the organisation. In addition development sessions also include updates to
Board member's statutory and mandatory training requirements throughout
the year.
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The principle committees of the Trust Board which support it in undertaking its
responsibilities are:

Audit Committee

The Audit committee has overall responsibility for independently monitoring,
reviewing and reporting to the Trust Board on all aspects of governance, risk
management and internal control. It is supported in this role by the Quality
Governance committee.

Quality Governance Committee

The Quality Governance committee monitors, reviews and reports on the
quality and safety of services provided by the Trust. This includes the review
of governance, risk management and internal control systems to ensure the
delivery of safe, high quality, patient centred care.

Finance Investment and Performance Committee

The Finance, investment and Performance committee undertakes on behalf of
the Trust Board objective scrutiny of the Trust’s financial plans, investment
policy and major investment decisions.

Additionally it is responsible for overseeing the delivery of all key performance
metrics for finance and operational delivery. The committee reviews the
Trust’'s monthly financial and operational performance and identifies key
issues and risks requiring discussion or decision by the Trust Board.

Workforce Committee

The Workforce committee monitors, reviews and reports on the organisational
development and workforce performance of the Trust. This includes the
achievement of associated key performance indicators and advising the Trust
Board on key strategic organisational and workforce initiatives.

Remuneration and Appointments Committee

The Remuneration and Appointments committee has delegated authority from
the Board to appoint and remove the Chief Executive and together with the
Chief Executive to appoint and remove other Directors. In addition, it sets the
remuneration, allowances and other terms and conditions of office for the
Trust’s Executive Directors.
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Board and Subcommittee Attendance

Name Position Date of Board
Commencing | Record of R .
Appointment | Attendance | g g E
April 2016 % g g : £
E S8 EEg 28 EEe
2017 B g E S¢E | 55 §ek
< ao iC o8 O 20 <O
Paul Farenden Non- Executive 1.3.12 10/12 X X X X
Director, Chair
Phil Zeidler Non- Executive 1.12.08 12112 X X X
Director, Vice Chair
David Noble Non- Executive 1.1.13 1112 X X X X
Director
Elizabeth Non- Executive 1.1.13 4/4 X ¥ X
Searle* Director
Graham Non- Executive 01.01.13 11/12 X X X X
Kershaw Director
Associate Non- 01.12.08
Executive Director
John Archard- Non- Executive 01.01.17 3/3 X X
Jones Director
Olivia Clymer Non- Executive 21115 10/12 X X X X
Director
Annette Gill Non- Executive 01.01.17 3/3 X X ¥
Director (Associate)
Sonia Swart CEO 23.9.13 1112 X X X
Debbie Chief Operating 10.4.14 1112 X X X
Needham Officer/ Deputy CEO
Catherine Director of Corporate | 19.1.15 1212 Attend X X
Thorne Development
Governance and
Assurance
Simon Lazarus Director of Finance 11.3.14 1112 Attend X X
Janine Brennan | Director of Workforce | 2.4.13 1012 X % X
and Transformation
Charles Abolins | Director of Facilities 1991 1112 X X X
Chris Pallot Director of Strategy 11.10.10 912 X X
and Partnerships
Mike Cusack Medical Director 26.9.14 1112 X X
Carolyn Fox Director of Nursing 20.7.15 1112 X X X

*Stepped down — 31/10/16

3. The risk and control framework and risk assessment

As designated accountable Officer | have overall responsibility for risk

management with specific responsibilities delegated to other Executive

Directors and senior managers within the organisation.

Risk Management framework
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The trust has a comprehensive Risk Management Strategy and Policy which
has Board approval and is available to staff via the Trust’s intranet pages.

These documents describe the Trust's overall risk management strategy,
responsibilities for risk at each level of the organisation, the risk management
process and the Trust's risk identification, evaluation and control system.

The leadership and governance framework for risk management is as follows:

The Audit Committee meets 4-5 times annually and oversees the
overall performance of the risk management system. Additionally the
Trust's Board-level Quality Governance committee on a monthly basis
and monitors reviews and reports on the quality of services provided by
the Trust. it provides assurance 1o the Audit Committee and the Trust
Board that effective governance, risk management and internal control
systems are in place to ensure that the Trust’s services deliver safe,
high quality, patient-centred care. Key risks are highlighted to and
reviewed by the Trust Board both as part of its regular monitoring of
performance and in the context of specific issues that may arise.

The Trust has an Assurance Compliance and Risk (ARC) Group which
is chaired by the Director of Corporate Development, Governance and
Assurance providing executive oversight of risk management issues.
The group is responsible for ensuring the development and
implementation of effective systems and processes for risk
management at each level of the Trust. All new risks with a proposed
score of 15 and above (‘Significant’) are reviewed by a Risk Group who
also undertakes a monthly review of corporate directorate and
Divisional / Directorate risks with a score of 12 (‘High') and above and
those risks with high consequence but low likelihood.

The Risk Group reports to the ARC group and reviews the Trust’s
corporate risk register on an ongoing basis and this is presented to the
Trust Board and its sub committees on a quarterly hasis.

The Trust has a Governance team with a focus on integrated risk
management — the team support the process of identification,
assessment, analysis and management of risks and incidents at every
level of the organisation and aggregation of results at a corporate level.

The Director of Corporate Development, Governance and Assurance is
the Trust's Senior Information Risk Owner (SIRO}. Working closely with
the Medical Director as Caldicott Guardian, the SIRO is responsible for
taking ownership of information risk at Board level and advising the
Chief Executive accordingly.

For each of the Trust’s Divisions a Divisional Director has lead
responsibility for governance and risk issues and is responsible for
coordinating risk management processes within the Divisions, including
management of the Divisional risk register supported by the Divisional
manager. The Divisional management groups have responsibility for
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monitoring, managing and where necessary escalating risks on their
risk registers and significant risks are reviewed at monthly performance
review meeting.

Risk management training is delivered to staff in accordance with the
Trust's risk management training needs analysis. This begins at corporate
induction which all staff are required to attend.

There is clear policy and guidance on the type of courses that staff need to
attend and the frequency of attendance required. Attendance at mandatory
risk management training courses is monitored and fed-back to Divisions
and corporate directorates via a central monitoring database with Human
Resources which allows corrective action to be taken by management
teams as required aimed to improve attendance rates throughout the year.

Board Assurance Framework (BAF)

Throughout 2016/17 the organisation continues to review processes for
developing the BAF and risk management processes, with the Board
approving a revised risk management strategy and implementation plan in
2016.

The BAF is based around the Trust's strategic objectives and is mapped to
the Care Quality Commission’s Fundamental Standards. [t identifies the
principal risks to the achievement of those objectives, the key controls in
place to manage those risks and the sources of assurance about the
effectiveness of those controls.

It also details any gaps in conirol and assurance in relation to the risks,
including strategic objectives related to service delivery, workforce,
finance, service transformation, and infrastructure and information
systems, together with actions to address them. The actions include
identifying additional resources, putting in place new systems, processes,
operating procedures and monitoring arrangements, strengthening project
and programme management, and effective working with partners.

The BAF is updated monthly by the Executive Director leads with a full
review at the end of each quarter which is then presented to the Trust
Board. In addition risks to objectives are reported to a Trust Board
assurance committee for monitoring and oversight. It is also crossed
referenced to the Corporate Risk Register.

The Trust has received a substantial assurance opinion from internal audit
on the Board Assurance Framework.

The Trust’s principal risks can be found listed in Appendix 1.

Internal Audit
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The Trust’s internal audit function is provided by TIAA who contribute to
assurances available to me as Accountable Officer and to the Board in
underpinning the assessment of the effectiveness of the organisation’s
system of internal control.

TIAA have delivered the 2016/17 internal audit plan as Agreed at the start
of the year through the Audit committee.

Counter Fraud

Northampton General Hospital NHS Trust Local Counter Fraud service
ensures an annual plan of proactive work to minimise the risk of fraud
within the Trust and is fully compliant with NHS Protect Counter Fraud
Standards for providers. Preventative measures include reviewing Trust
policies to ensure they are fraud-proof utilising intelligence, best practice
and guidance from NHS Protect.

The Trust is committed to promoting and maintaining an absolute standard
of honesty and integrity, and to eliminating fraud and illegal acts committed
within the Trust and detection exercises are undertaken where a known
area is at high risk of fraud.

Fraud is deterred by publicising proven cases of NHS fraud and staff are
encouraged to report suspicions of fraud through utilising communications,
presentations and fraud awareness literature throughout the Trust's sites.
The Local Counter Fraud Specialist liaises with Internal Audit in order to
capture any fraud risks from internal audits undertaken within the Trust.
Counter Fraud reports are presented to the Audit and Risk Committee and
include details of reported suspicions of fraud in addition to actual fraud.

Stakeholder involvement in risk

Partners and stakeholders are involved in managing risks which impact on
them through their involvement in and contributions to many aspects of the
work of the Trust, including for example:

+ Patients and the public

o The work of the, the Patient Advice and Liaison Service and
specific patient representative groups.

o Patient membership of key Trust committees and groups.

o The work of the local Health and Wellbeing Boards.

o Meetings of the Trust Board held in public which include
monthly Patient Stories.

o An extensive volunteering programme across hospital
departments including a new group of volunteers specifically
dedicated to supporting the Trust’s Friends and Family Test
(FFT) agenda, handing out postcards for completion and
collating data

o Development of FFT infograms for each ward with a “You
said...We did” focus
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o Representation on the Patient & Carer Experience and
Engagement Group (PCEEG) from a Patient Representative
and internal focus groups {such as BME, Dignity, end of life).

o Expert patient involvement in the redesign of dermatology
and rheumatology programmes across Northampton and
Kettering hospitals

o Plans for 2017/18 include development of a network of
Patient and Family partners launched through a “Quality
Conversation” event in early 2017.

o Strong focus on encouraging staff to raise concerns

o Freedom to Speak Up Guardian appointed

o Board to Ward and “Beat the Bug” visits by Executive and
non-Executive Directors.

o Monthly Core Brief {o staff by Executive team.

o Partnership forum with staff-side representation.

o Staff Engagement Strategy that includes specific vehicle
through which staff views are sought on key matters.

o Expert patient involvement in the redesign of dermatology
and rheumatology programmes across Northampton and
Kettering hospitals

¢ Partners

o Regular performance discussions with commissioners
and NHS Improvement.

o Executive meetings and discussion with Board Members at
Kettering General Hospital NHS Foundation Trust and the
establishment of a Federation agreement with them.

o Weekly Operations Executive Meeting comprising the Chief
Executive Officers of Health and Social Care partners across
the Northamptonshire County.

o Participation in the Sustainability and Transformation
Programme for Northamptonshire.

o System Resilience Group, A&E Boards, Sustainability and
Transformation Board

Compliance matters

The Trust's Workforce Equality and Diversity Strategy was refreshed and
reviewed in 2016. It builds on the work already done and progress made
on equality and diversity over the years and sets out our co-ordinated and
integrated approach in relation to our workforce.

Our Workforce Equality Objectives/Four Year Plan was also reviewed and
refreshed in 2016. The two main objectives link to the Equality Delivery
System (ED2) outcomes relating to the workforce, with the key actions
linked to the Workforce Race Equality Standard (WRES), health and
wellbeing, staff survey results, divisional objectives and the leadership and
management development programme. Alongside our Trust Equality
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Objectives/Four Year Plan each of our Divisions has been asked to
produce 2-3 of their own equality objectives based on their specific
equality monitoring data.

The Trust has undertaken and published the data required for 2016 in
accordance with the NHS England Workforce Race Equality Standard
(WRES) and our annual Workforce Equality and Diversity Report and
Monitoring Report have also been published on our website along with
other key equality and diversity documents.

The Trust has an Equality and Diversity Staff Group that meets on a
quarterly basis and it reports into the Trust's Workforce Committee.

As an employer with staff entitled to membership of the NHS Pension
scheme, control measures are in place to ensure all empioyer obligations
contained within the scheme regulations are complied with. This includes
ensuring that deductions from salary, employer’'s contributions and
payments in to the Scheme are in accordance with the Scheme rules, and
that member pension scheme records are accurately updated in
accordance with the timescales detailed in the Regulations.

Northampton General Hospital maintains an Environmental Management
System which is externally verified by and accredited to the Investors in
the Environment Scheme {Green Level). The Trust has a Sustainability
Strategy that has been approved by the Board with accompanying
Sustainable Development Action Plans, progress against which is
monitored through the Sustainable Development Committee. An
adaptation policy is in preparation, following a review of the risks to the
Trust arising from the changing climate. The Trust regularly reviews and
publishes its Good Corporate Citizenship scores.

Progress in carbon reduction, climate change mitigation and adaptation
along with other sustainable development initiatives are reported in the
annual report and to the Board. Northampton General Hospital NHS Trust
was one of only forty trusts recognised by the SDU, NHSI and HFMA for
Excellence in its Reporting of Sustainability for the year 2015/16.

Details of compliance with the Care Quality Commission’s Essential
Standards of Quality and Safety can be found in Section 4 below.

Information Governance (IG)

Northampton General Hospital NHS Trust is committed to ensuring it
manages all the information it holds and processes in an efficient, effective
and secure manner through the application of robust IG policies and
procedures to support the delivery of high quality patient care. The IG
team also run a series of audits and checks across the organisation to
ensure compliance.
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The Trust has had one data security breach during the year which has
been reported to the Information Commissioners Office and details are
included within section 4.

Quality Account

The Trust produces an annual Quality Account report in respect to its
quality priorities and the quality of services by an NHS healthcare provider.
This Quality Account is an important way that the Trust reports and
demonstrates improvements to the services delivered

In addition to a review of the quality of the services the Quality Account
includes specific statements relating to assurance and the Trust's
performance against national standards.

The indicators within this document are subject to external audit scrutiny
and the auditors are required to provide an independent assurance opinion
to the organisation. During 2016/17 the Trust received an unqualified
limited assurance opinion for its Quality Account.

4. Review of the effectiveness of risk management and internal control

As Accountable Officer, | have responsibility for reviewing the
effectiveness of the system of internal control. My review is informed in a
number of ways.

The Head of Internal Audit provides me with an opinion on the overall
arrangements for gaining assurance through the Assurance Framework
and on the controls reviewed as part of Internal Audit's work.

The Head of Internal Audit Opinion for 2016/17 concludes in summary
that:

Reasonable assurance can be given that there is a generally sound
system of internal control, designed to meet the organisation’s
objectives, and that controls are generally being applied consistently.
However, some weakness in the design and/or inconsistent application
of controls, put the achievement of particular objectives at risk

This is based on:

a) An assessment of the design and operation of the underpinning Assurance
Framework and supporting processes; and

b) An assessment of the range of individual opinions arising from risk-based
audit assignments contained within internal audit risk-based plans that have
been reported throughout the first nine months of the financial year. This
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assessment has taken account of the relative materiality of these areas and
management’s progress in respect of addressing control weaknesses.

Additional areas of work that may support the opinion will be determined
locally but are not required for Department of Health purposes e.g. reliance
being placed upon Third Party Assurances.

c) TIAA has carried out 21 assurance reviews to date, which were designed to
ascertain the extent to which the internal controls are adequate and to ensure
that activities and procedures are operating to achieve the Trust’s objectives.
For each assurance review an assurance assessment was provided. A
summary is set out below:

Assurance Number of
Assessments Reviews

Limited Assurance
No Assurance

TIAA has also undertaken two advisory reviews where an assurance opinion
was not provided.

During the course of the period, ten limited/no assurance opinion reports have
been issued. A summary of each is provided in the commentary below.
Although the ten are a high proportion of the individual opinions for the year,
this reflects the targeting of the internal audit plan on areas of risk and
opportunity to further improve, and therefore the opinion reflects not just those
individual audit results but a wider consideration of the organisational system
of internal control

| have been advised on the implications of the result of my review of the
effectiveness of the system of internal control by the Quality Governance
Committee, Risk Management Group and the Audit Committee and a plan to
address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the system is in
place. Key roles have been as follows:

e The Board has played a key role in reviewing risks to the delivery of
the Trust’s performance objectives through monthly monitoring and
discussion of the Corporate Performance Report and detailed
financial and quality and safety reports, and through Board and
committee reporting on progress against other strategic objectives.

e The Audit and Risk Committee has overseen the effectiveness of
the risk management arrangements.

e The Risk Management Group has reviewed the Trust's risk register
and the Board Assurance Framework and monitored key clinical
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and non-clinical risks highlighted by Trust committees and individual
managers.

¢ Executive Directors have ensured that key risks have been
highlighted and monitored within their functional areas and the
necessary action taken to address them.

¢ Both Internal and External Audit have provided scrutiny and
assurance in relation to governance and control arrangements
across a wide range of the Trust’s activities.

The Trust has identified the following significant control issues and the
actions which have been or are being taken to address them.

Compliance with Care Quality Commission (CQC) Essential
Standards of Quality and safety

Northampton General Hospital NHS Trust is registered with the Care
Quality Commission (CQC) and following the CQC Chief Inspector of
Hospital's Inspection in January 2014 with a follow up inspection in
September 2014 The Trust received an overall rating of ‘Requires
Improvement’.

The Trust underwent a further CQC inspection in February 2017 and at the
time of writing this statement the final report and rating is awaited.

Data Security

The Trust reported one Information Governance incident to the Information
Commissioner’'s Office in 2016/17

Details of the Incident

An anonymised data request was made by an ex-trust doctor for a report
on their activity at NGH. A member of staff ran the report and anonymised
the data by deleting the 5-6 columns of the report which contain personal
identifiable information. This information was sent via an NGH email
account to the unsecure email account of the requester.

It was later brought to the Trust’s attention that the report was not
anonymised but contained sensitive information including personal
identifiable data (PID) of 6668 patients at the far right of the data columns
within the spreadsheet. Both the member of staff's Line Manager and the
Clinical Change Manager, who is the administrator for the IT system,
confirmed that PID is usually only contained in the first 5-6 columns of the
report. No explanation can be provided as to why the system generated
further PID at the end of the report.

The IG serious incident procedure was initiated with a grading report to the
Caldicott Guardian and the Senior Information Risk Owner. The incident
was graded as a level 3 reportable incident. Based on this grade, the
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incident was escalated to the Information Commissioners’ Office (ICO) via
the Information Governance Incident reporting tool.

The ICO carried out their investigation and the information Governance
Team fully cooperated with the ICO providing the necessary
documentation and responses to provide assurance to the ICO.

The ICO closed this case and issued a decision notice on the 21st
December 2016 of no further action is necessary at this stage. The ICO
also stated that it was satisfied that the Trust had the appropriate policies
and procedures in place to provide staff with the guidance required in
handling such situations.

Lessons Learned

1. All future reports from that system must be sent to and from NHS mail
email accounts

2. A procedure/policy will be developed with the specific scope of
covering data exiraction and sharing from that system.

3. An anonymised report will be programmed into the system for requests
where PID is not required.

4. Staff must ensure all attachments or embedded document/reports are
scrutinised for PID.

5. Teams or departments that send information out of the Trust regularly
must have a process in place where a senior member staff or fellow
colleague reviews the information before it is sent.

6. Care must be taken when physically transferring information or
documents which contain PID from on location to another, onsite and
offsite. All transfers must be carried out in line with Trust policies.

National Performance Standards

We have experienced significant challenges with our performance
standards especially with the pressure on urgent care in quarters 3 and 4
of 2016/17. This also impacted on our RTT performance and in particualr
some key elective speciaities, although we achieved at a Trust level
including diagnostics wait time expectations.

4hr A&E standard

2016/17 has been another challenging year for the Trust’s urgent and
emergency care pathways. Our emergency department has seen an
additional 2,080 patients (1.8% increase), patients together with 2,000
more admissions than the previous financial year representing a 7%
increase.

After a challenging start to the year, during June, July and August the
acuity of patients decreased and performance was sustained above 90%
standard however this deteriorated from September onwards with the
Trust seeing an increase in both acuity and activity.
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These issues contributed to a high bed occupancy rate throughout autumn
and winter of 2016/17 and these issues remain challenging for the Trust
with additional factors of high numbers of delayed discharges, with often in
excess of 10% of acute beds occupied with patients waiting for ongoing
care and support outside of an acute hospital setting.

The external support required to reduce the number of patients who are
delayed continues to be a challenge and the financial cuts in aduit social
care have impacted performance within the hospital, therefore along with
increased collaborative working with partners in health and social care the
plan to put in place a 60 bedded acute assessment hub with new model of
care is an absolute necessity.

Cancer waiting times

The Trust had a challenging year with regards to meeting the Cancer
Waiting Times Standards during 2016-17. This highlighted the need for an
intense focus following concerns that the 31 day and 62 day standards in
cancer care were not being delivered.

An interim Cancer management specialist was recruited in August in order
to support the new Cancer Services management team. A refreshed
Cancer Recovery Plan and tumour site action plans were produced with
monthly oversight of these by the Cancer Board, underpinned by a newly
launched Access and Operational Policy.

Performance prior to this intense focus saw the Trust failing to meet the 62
day standard for 16 months, finally reaching target in December 16 at 86%
against the standard of 85%. The Trust has sustained its performance
against the 31 day standard meeting this each month from July 16
onwards.

The number of patients exceeding the 62 day wait for a
diagnosisftreatment in September 16 was 115, as at March 17 this stands
at 48 and has seen a reduction of 58%, however continued focus is
required to ensure this is reduced to acceptable levels and does not rise
again.

Pressures over the past year have included access {o medical records for
weekly MDT meetings, ability for Radiology to sustain access to
investigations and reporting within 7 days, staffing capacity in Oncology
and Cancer Services, availability of histopathology for MDT meetings and
timely reporting and winter pressures.

The Trust continue to attend bi-weekly meetings at the CCG in order to
discuss their improvement programme, and provide assurance around
patient breaches of the standard, this is now supported by the Trust
cancer breach panel established in January 2017.

Improvements continue to be made on building relationships with our
tertiary providers.
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In order for the Trust to sustain its improvement journey clinicians,
divisional management teams and Cancer Services need to continue to
work together in order to deliver the best possible care and in a timely
manner to all patients on a cancer pathway.

RTT

We have maintained achievement at a trust level of RTT, however due 1o
the urgent care pressures we stopped a significant proportion of elective
work over the winter. We outsourced orthopaedic work and focussed on
delivering day case activity in house. This led to a deterioration of
performance in elective specialities and in particular within orthopaedics.

Re-allocating the specialist elective ward to orthopaedics and continuing
with outsourcing will support improvement and attainment of the target
during 2017/18.

Quality & accuracy of waiting list data & associated risks

The programme of work throughout 2016/17 has included audits against
the accuracy and use of “clock stops” and RTT status codes, the reviewing
of data accuracy for SUS returns against both locaf peers (peers as
agreed under the Lord Carter programme) and nationally, as well as
responses to internal audit reports as required.

The preparation for data migration to a new patient administration system
(PAS) has now required a strong focus on all aspects of data beyond that
of waiting lists and performance measurement toc ensure that the data
migrated is the most accurate it can be; the change in the move to the new
PAS system has provided a greater opportunity to further investigate more
aspects of data.

A programme of reviewing all national returns has been ongoing
throughout the year with a focus on checking national guidance against
the criteria used for the reports 1o generate the figures as well as checks
with areas to ensure local criteria is correct; any requirements for change
are presented at the Data Quality Steering Group (DQSG) for review and
agreement to change with changes documented on the Information
department’s reporting database.

This group will also ensure that any change to national guidance is
identified and implemented in a timely manner with full documentation and
sign-off maintained.

Our access policy has been reviewed in light of national recommendations
and is currently out for consultation, and training on this and other aspects
of data quality will form part of a new role specific mandatory training
programme in 2107/18.

Current areas of risk include:
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1. Non adherence to the access policy and timely input of data onto PAS.
This is being mitigated by providing fraining to all key staff on the use of
the access policy with more intensive training for individuals as identified
through the audit and validation work is, specifically around pathways for
Referral to Treatment (RTT) and diagnostics. Mandatory role specific
annual training is being developed to include data quality, patient
pathways and the access policy for 2017/18.

2. Multiple systems being accessed to provide information both internally
and externally, which could lead to discrepancies in the information being
presented. This is being mitigated by a full assessment of internal and
external data returns including information being processed through the
data warehouse.

3. Data Migration to the new PAS may present a number of areas of data
quality issues and the recording of pathways when the trust moves from a
referral based system to a system more aligned with the capture of
pathway activity. This is being mitigated by members of the data quality
team be wholly engaged with the migration programme and seeking out
possible areas of concern to correct and educate as necessary prior to
migration and then time dedicated to the auditing post “go live”.

Never events

There has been one Never Event incident reported by Northampton
General Hospital during 2016/17.

The incident was reported onto STEIS (Strategic Executive Information System) in
June 2016 and involved a retained foreign body {“bung”) left in place after a
laparoscopic hysterectomy.

A “bung”, which had been made from sterile surgical theatre gloves filled
with sterile swabs, was used on a patient undergoing a hysterectomy and
was unintentionally left in situ at the end of the operation.

The patient was discharged home with the “bung” still in place.

The patient returned to the Trust several days later as planned whereby
the “bung” was discovered; she was well and there were no complications
(bleeding or infection) as a result of the incident. The patient continued to
progress well and made an uncomplicated recovery from surgery.

Since the incident, changes in practice have been made which include the
inclusion of all swabs used for the "bung” to be included within the swab
count, which is checked throughout the procedure and documented.

The learning from the incident was shared both locally within the
gynaecology governance and departmental meetings in addition to
organisational learning through the Trust's quarterly Dare to Share
Learning Event.
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Financial Improvement Plan

Northampton General Hospital has an established programme for
improving quality and efficiency. This is the Changing Care @ NGH
programme which consists of projects led by clinical leaders and executive
directors. In 2016/17 the programme delivered £12.2 million of savings.

For 2016/17 the Trust started the year with a planned deficit of £15.1
million. The final deficit reported prior to audit of the accounts was £13.8
million.

The Trust is continuing to work with Health Economy Partners including
commissioners, other healthcare providers and local government to
identify a medium term sustainability and transformation plan aimed at
returning the health system to a more sustainable financial position within
five years. NGH does however like many NHS providers currently face a
very challenging financial environment and is anticipating a deficit of £13.5
million in 2017/18 based on the latest available information at the time of
writing.

Nurse Recruitment

The national shortage of trained nurses continues to pose a significant risk
to the organisation. We continue with efforts to mitigate this risk and in
addition to an overseas nurses recruitment programme the Trust has
moved to a twelve hour shift standardisation within nursing which has seen
an improvement in shift fill rates and improved continuity of care for our
patients.

In addition a revised staff retention strategy is being implemented in order
to support our existing staff and reduce turnover rates.

Trust Estate

During 2016/17 the Trust has undertaken a piece of work to better
understand the nature of all risks related to the aging estate of
Northampton General Hospital. This has allowed the organisation to
prioritise its capital programme and escalate planned maintenance to
support the building infrastructure. During the early part of 2017 a full risk
assessment paper was resented to the Board and a further plan of
mitigation and actions will be produced for 2017/18.

Conclusion

With the exception of the internal control issues that | have outlined in this
statement, my review confirms that Northampton General Hospital NHS
Trust has a generally sound system of internal controls that supports the
achievement of its policies, aims and objectives and that those control
issqes have been or are being addressed.

.

Debbie Needham
Deputy Chief Executive Officer
Northampton General Hospital NHS Trust
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Appendix 1
Organisational Principal risks

. Risk of suboptimal standards of care and patient experience related to
difficulties in recruiting to substantive nursing posts across the
organisation.

. Risk of suboptimal standards of care and patient experience, in
addition to a failure to meet national performance targets, due to high
demand on emergency and urgent care services.

. Risk of failing to meet emergency and urgent care demand and failing
to meet national performance targets due to large numbers of delayed
transfers of care leading to shortages in bed capacity.

. Risk of systems failures related in relation to the Trusts’ estate due to
ageing infrastructure.

. Risk of suboptimal standards of care and patient experience related to
difficulties in recruiting to the medical workforce posts across the
organisation.

. Risk the Trust may not meet its statutory duties in relation to financial
controls due to increased demand and activity, particularly related to
emergency pathway pressures.

. Risk of suboptimal standards of care and patient experience due to
increased demand on cancer pathways together with late referrals.

. Risk of not meeting cost improvement targets due to organisational
pressure, poor organisational and stakeholder engagement causing
slippage in programme schemes.

. Risk of action by the ICO for failure of staff to comply with Trust

systems and processes which ensure compliance with confidentiality of
person identifiable information.
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STAFF REPORT

Remuneration

A Remuneration & Appointments Commitiee meets at least annually and is
comprised of non-executive directors. The duties of the Remuneration &
Appointments Committee are set out in the Terms of Reference:

The primary role of the Remuneration and Appointments Committee is to establish a formal
process for developing policy on executive remuneration and to oversee the appointment
process for executive directors.

The Remuneration and Appointments Committee will determine the Remuneration and
terms of service for the Chief Executive and executive directors, acting in accordance with
the scheme of delegation and reservation of powers to the Board and approve any non-
contractual benefits in refation to the termination of employment for executive directors.

The Remuneration & Appointments committee will oversee the process for the appointrment
of hew members to the Trust board of directors ensuring that there is a formal, lawfuf
procedure in place.

The Committee will also ensure that systems and processes are in place for the
development of board members where appropriate.

Pay Multiples

Reporting bodies are required to disclose the relationship between the remuneration of the
highest-paid director in their organisation and the median remuneration of the organisation’s
workforce.

The banded remuneration of the highest paid director in the Trust in the financial year
2016/17 was £225-230k (2015/16, £225-230k}. This was 10.38 times (2015/16, 10.49 times)
the median remuneration of the workforce, which was £22k (2015/16, £22k).

In 2016/17 and 2015/16 no employees received remuneration in excess of the highest-paid
director. Remuneration ranged from £1k for part-time staff to £182k for the next highest paid
director and £213k for the highest paid agency locum (full year effect) (2015/16 £1k - £180Kk)

Total remuneration includes salary, non-consolidated performance-related pay, benefits-in-
kind but not severance payments. It does not include employer pension contributions and
the cash equivalent fransfer value of pensions.

The ratio has decreased in 2016/17 by 0.11. Nursing staff represent the largest increase in
Total Average Staff Numbers. The majority of staff on Agenda for Change terms and
conditions received a 1% pay increase. This has contributed to the increase in the overall
median remuneration of the workforce.
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SALARY AND PENSION REPORT

Salary and pension entitlements of senior managers

Remunearation

201847
Satary Expense Performance Pay Lang term Al Pension- Tatal - Salary &
payments and Bonzses | Performance Pay| related Benafits Benefits
Name and Title (taxabla) to and Bonuses
nearest £100* )
{hands of £5,009) {bands of £5,000} | {bards of £5,000} | {bands of £2,500) | (bands of £5,000)
£000 £ £000 £000 2000 £900
Paul Farenden - Chairman 20 - 25} 1,800] 20- 25
Sonia Swarl - Chief Executive Officer 225 - 2304 1} 236 - 2301
Exehorah Needham - Chief Operating Officer / Deputy Chief Executive Oficer 125 - 130 37.5-40 185-170
|Michael Cusack - Medical Diraclor 185 - 190y 47.5 - 50 235 - 2404
Carolyn Fox - Direclor of Nursing, Midwilery & Palisnl Services 110 - 115 105 - 107.5; 215 - 220)
Simen Lazars - Director of Finance 120 - 126 32.5 -3 155-180
Charles Apoling - Direclor of Facilities & Capital D p 85- 55‘ 85 - B0
Janine Brennan - Director of Workiorce and Transformation 120- 125 30 - 32, 150~ 155
Chris Paliot - Director of Slrategy & Parinerships 95 - 100 525-3 130 - 135
Calherine Tharne - Diestor of Cerporate Developmant, Governance &
Assurance 109 - 105 225 - 256] 126 - 130)
Phil Zeidler - Non-Executive Director (vice Chairman) 5-19 4 5- 10
Graham Kershaw - Non-Execulive Direclor 5- 10 60 5- 10
Cavid Noble - Non-Executive Direclar 5 - 10 901 5- 108
[Efzabath Seara - Hon Execiiive Difector ({lo 31 Celober 16) 0-5 Q-5
Ofivia Clymer - Non-Execulive Director 5- 10 500 5- 104
John Archard-Jones - Non-Executive Direttor (1 January 17 onwards) f-5 Q-3
Annslte Giil - Associate Non-Executive Direclor (1 January 17 omyards) B-§ Q- 5]
2015-16
Salary Expense Performance Pay L.ong term All Penslon- Tolal - Satary &
payments and Benuses | Performance Pay| related Benefits Bensfits
Name and Title (taxable) 10 arl Bopuses
nearest £700% .
{krands of £5,009) {bands of £8,000} | {bands of £5,000) { {bands of £2,500) { {bands of £5,600}
£000 E £000 £060 £000 E000

Paul Farenden - Chairman 20 - 25§ 2,500 20 - 25]
Sonia Swarl - Chiefl Execulive Officer 225 - 230! 0] 225 - 230
Deborah Needham - Chief Operating Officer / Depuly Chief Executive Officer 125 - 1304 2.5 - 3 150 - 155
Wichael Cusack - Medical Direcior 180 - 1851 7.5- 3 95.- 200]
Car Fox - Directar of Nursing, Midwifery & Palient Services 75 - 801 200 - 202 75 - 260]
Simon Lazarus - Dicector of Finance 120 - 125 17.5 - 20 40 - 145
Charles Abelins - Direclor of Fagilifies & Capilal Developmen! 95 - 100} 0 95 - 100
Janing Brennan - Direclor of Workforce and Transformalion 120 - 125] 5-7.5 130 - 135)
Chris Pallof - Director of Stralegy & Partnerships a5 - 1004 16- 17.5 115~ 120
Calherine Thome - Director of Corporate Development, Governance &
Assurance 160 - 105 o 100 - 105)
Phil Zeidler - Non-Executive Director (Vice Chairman) 5-10; 600 5-19
Graham Kershaw - Non-Exectilive Diractor 5- 10 1400 5-19
David Noble - Non-Executive Dirgclor 5 - 10) 700 5- 19
Elizabeth Searle - Non-Exetutive Director (fo 31 Gelober 16) 5 - 10| 500 5-19
Oiivia Clymer - Non-Execulive Director -8 0-5
John Archarg-Jones - Mon-Executive Direclor {1 January 17 onwards)
Annelie Gl - Assaciale Nan-Execuiive Director (1 January 17 omvards)

Salary Neles

Chartles Abolin's 2016-17 salary represents 11 month's only
John Archard-Jones & Annette Gill were appointed to he Board In 2016-17. Therefore ne salary values are reporled for 201516

Carolyn Fox's 203518 salary represents a part year (July - Maich}

Ofivia Clymers 2015-16 salary repiesents a pari year (Nowember - Manch)

Elizabeth Searle's 2015-16 salary represents a full year

‘The bensfils paid to Non-Executihes and Chairman above refate to travel and subsistence behueen home & ofice |

Ali penslon telated benefits tepresent Lhe annual increass n talal pension benefits entitiement. This rapresents the values payatle at ihe baginning and end of the financial year, adjusted for inflation, Irres paclive of whether or
not the position was hald for fuff or pan year and length of NHS senics. Where this value is negative & il balence is shown

“Mole: Taxabie expenses and benefits In kind are expressed to the nearest £100.
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Pension Benefits

Total Ltempr sum at
accrued |Pension Age
Real Real increase | pensfon at| related to Reat Cash

Name & Title increase In| in pension Pension accrued Cash Increase |Equivalent| Employer's

pension at| lump sumat | Age at 31 | pension at |Equivaient| inCash | Transfer |condribution

Pension | Pension Age [March 2017} 31 March | Transfer |Equivalent|Valuee at 31 to
Age (bands| (bands of | {bands of | 2617 (bands| Value at1| Transfer | March |stakeholder
of £2,500} £2,500) £5,000} of £5,000} | April 2046 Value 2017 penslon
£000 £000 £600 £000 £008 £000 £000 £000

Sonja Swart - Chief Executive Officer A /A A NIA] /A /A MAA 0
Dehorah Needham - Chief Qperating Qfficer / Deputy Chief Exacutive
Officer 25-5 {-2.5 40 - 45 110- 115 535 42 5804 0)
Michael Cusack - Medical Director 25-5 2-2.9 45 -850 120 - 125 71 ad a0 0
Carolyn Fox - Director of Nursing, Midwifery & Patient Services 5-7.5 15 -17.5 30-35 180 - 105 453 a8 551 0
Simon Lazarus - Birector of Finance 25-5 0-2.9) 35 - 40 90 - 85 5485 46] 592 0]
Charles Abelins - Director of Facities & Capital Development A N/A] DA A NIA /A /A 0
Janine Brennan - Director of Workforce and Transformation 0-25 5-7.5 45- 50 140 - 145 859 89 947 0]
Chiis Pattot - Director of Strategy & Partnerships G- 2.5 0-2.5) 25-30 75-80) 377 55 432 0]
Catherine Thome - Director of Comporate Cevelopment, Govemnance &
Assurance 0-2.5 25-5 35 - 40) 110 - 115 £44, &9 712 0

As Non-Executie members da not receive pensicnable remuneration, hare will ba no entries n respect of pensions far Nen-Executive mernbers._

A Cash Equivatenl Transfer Value (CETV) is the acluadally assessed capitat value of the pension scheme benefls accrued by a member at a particular point in lime. The benefils valied ame the mamber's
aocrued benefils and any conlingent spouse’s {or olher allowable beneficiary's) pensian payabla from Ihe scheme. A CETV is a payment made by a penslon scheme, or amangement lo secure pension
benefils in ancther pansion scheme or amangement when the member leaves a scheme and chooses Lo iransfer the benefils accrued in their former scheme. The pension fgures shown relate to the
benefis that the ndiidugl has accrued &5 a consequence of their total membership of Ihe pension scheme, nol just their senice In a senior capaciy 1o which the disclosure applies. The CETV figures
and the ather pension detalls include the value of any pension benefits in anolher scheme or amangement which the indivdual has transfemed lo the NHS pension scheme. They also include any
addilional pension benefit aconted 1o the mamber as a fesult of their purchasing additlonal years of pension sence in the scheme al thelr own cost. CETVs are caleulated in accordance wilh the
Qccupational Pensions Schemes (Transfer Values) Regulalions 2008,

Real Increase in CETV - This reflects the increase in CETV efectiely funded by the employer. & does nol Include the increase in accrued pension due 1o infaion, buti paid by the emplay
ncludiag the valug of any benefls lransfered fom asother scheme of arangement) and uses common market valuation factors for the slart and end of the period.

A rate of 0% Consumer Price Index (CP) annual inflation has been used to calculate fhe real increases,

Ne lump sum is shown for senior managers who anly have membership in the 2008 Seelion of the NHS Pension Scheme, untess they chose to move their 1995 Section benelils under Choice. No CETV
is shown for pensicners, senior managers over 60 (1985 Section) or over 65 (2008 Seclion)

Off-Payroll Engagements Table 1

For all off-payroll engagements as of 31 March 2017, for more than £220 per day and that last
longer than six months

Narrative

Number of existing engagements as of 31 March 2017 21

Of which, the number that have existed:
for less than one year at the time of reporting 11
for between 1 and 2 years at the time of reporting 10
for between 2 and 3 years at the time of reporting 0
for between 3 and 4 years at the time of reporting 0
for 4 or more years at the time of reporting 0

Confirmation that all existing off-payroll engagements have at some point been subject to a risk
based assessment as to whether assurance is required that the individual is paying the right
amount of tax and, where necessary, that assurance has been sought.
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Off-Payroll Engagementis Table 2
For all new off-payroll engagements between 1 April 2016 and 31 March 2017, for more than £220

Number of new engagements, or those that reached six months in
duration, between 1 Aptil 2016 and 31 March 2017 11
Number of new engagements which include contractual clauses giving
the Trust the right to request assurance in relation to income tax and

National Insurance obligations 10
Numberfor whom assurance has been requested I 1

assurance has been recelved
assurance has not been received
engagements terminated as a result of assurance not being received

Q=0

Off-Payroll Engagements Table 3

For any off-payroll engagements of board members, and/or, senior officials with significant financial
responsibility, between 1 April 2016 and 31 March 2017

Number of off-payroll engagements of board members, and/or senior
officers with significant financial responsibility, during the year 0

Number of individuals that have been deemed "board members, and/or
senior officers with significant financial responsibility” during the
financial year. This figure includes both off-payroll and on-payrofl
engagements 10

Expenditure on consultancy

Details of our expenditure on consultancy can be found at Note 8 on page 95 in the
Annual Accounts

Exit packages
The Trust has no exit package costs in 2016/17
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OUR STAFF

STAFF NUMBERS
Staff Numbers
2016-17 2015-16 2014-15
: | |
Average Staff Total Permanently Other Total Permanently Other Total
Employed Employed
Numbers Number Number | Number Number | Number
Number Number

Medical and dental 558 504 54 529 494 36 534
Administration and 1036 952 34 983 910 73 984
Estates*
Healthcare 1074 299 175 1065 875 150 1003
assistants and
other support staff
Nursing, midwifery 1469 1303 166 1411 1268 143 1364
and health visiting
staff
Nursing, midwifery 1 0 1 ¢ 0 0 0
and health visiting
learners
Scientific, 519 488 31 515 480 35 509
therapeutic and
technical staff**
Healthcare Science 150 150 148 148 0 152
Staff
Other 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL 4806 4296 510 4651 4174 477 4546

*  For 2016-7 figures composed of “Administrative & Clerical” and “Estates and Ancillary” staff groups

** For 2016-17 figures composed of “Add Prof Scientific and Technic” and “Allied Health Professionals” staff groups

SICKNESS ABSENCE

Sickness Absence %

Apr | May | Jun Jui Aug | Sep | Oct Nov | Dec | Jan Feb | Mar
16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 17 17 17
Short 24 | 2231237 [231 |204 |204 |256 |212 (240 |289 | 273 | 252
Term 2% % % % Y% % % % % % % %
Absence
Long 16 | 1721189 | 170 (173 | 172 | 137 | 166 135 |1.24 | 1.41 1.18
Term 9% | % % % % % % % % % % %
Absence
Total 41 | 396|426 (401 |378 | 376 1393 |3.78 |375 |4.14 (414 |3.70
Sickness | 1% | % % % % % % % % % % %
Absence
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Total Sickness Absence Rate (%) 2016/17

S.CD% S B ——— S N
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200% ————
1i00% ——— —
000% —

Apr-16  May-16  Jun-16 Jul-16 Aug-16  Sep-16  Oct-16  Nov-16  Dec-16 Jan-17  Feb-17  Mar-17

—Total Sickness Absence

Staff Sickness absence

201617 2015-16

Number Number
Total Days Lost 40,583 38,400
Total Staff Years 4,277 4,143
Average working Days Lost 9.49 9.27|

ILL-HEALTH RETIREMENTS

Retirements due to ill-health

2016-17 2015-16
Number Number

Number of persons retired early on ill health grounds 2 4

£000s £000s

Total additional pensions liabilities accrued in the year 241 135
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Equality

During 2016/17 we refreshed and reviewed our Workforce Equality and Diversity
Strategy. The updated strategy details how we will address requirements of the
Public Sector Equality Duty. It builds on the work already done and progress made
on equality and diversity over the years and sets out our co-ordinated and integrated
approach in relation to our workforce.

Our equality objectives/four year plan was also reviewed and refreshed during
2016/17. The two main objectives link to the Equality Delivery System (EDS2)
outcomes relating to the workforce, with the key actions linked to:

Workforce Race Equality Standard (WRES),

health and wellbeing,

staff survey results,

divisional objectives

leadership and management development programme.

The objectives are:

EDS2 Goal Objective
1. Representative and supported We will improve our staff satisfaction
workforce rates as reported in the annual staff

survey. We will make year on year
improvements on our staff survey results,
aiming to achieve top 20% of acute
Trusts for staff engagement.

We will improve the experiences and
treatment between White staff and BME
staff by progressing WRES and
monitoring outcomes.

2. Inclusive leadership We will improve our leadership and
management capability.

The detailed action plan can be accessed via our website:

http://www.northamptongeneral.nhs.uk/WorkforUs/Equality, DiversityHumanRights/E
guality DiversityHumanRights.aspx

2016 NHS Staff Survey Equality and Diversity Key Findings

The demographics of our workforce responding to the staff survey were broadly
similar to our overall demographic profile were broadly similar with the exception of
disabled staff - 15% of respondents were disabled compared to the 4% of our
workforce - and ethnic background where 14% of the respondents were Black and
Minority Ethnic compared to 79% of our workforce.
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The percentage of staff reporting they had experienced discrimination at work in the
last 12 months has not changed since the 2015 survey and we were benchmarked
as average when compared to acute Trusts.

There was also no change in relation to the key finding which relates to the
percentage of staff who believe that the organisation provides equal opportunities for
career progression and/or promotion; we were benchmarked as below average when
compared to other acute Trusts.

The survey has highlighted some areas of concern and the continuing work the
organisational development and improving quality and efficiency teams will work to
bring about a shift in culture, where everyone is focused on the values, positive
behaviours, quality, continuous improvement and meaningful staff engagement to
sustainably improve staff satisfaction at work.

Workforce Race Equality Standards

Following the introduction of the National Workforce Race Equality Standard by NHS
England, we produced baseline data for each of the nine indicators in April 2015 and
these were published on our website.

We repeated the exercise in 2016 and compared these results to establish if there
have been improvements in the experiences or the treatment of White staff and BME
staff. Due to a change in two of the indicators in 2016 (1 and 9) no direct
comparison could be made with the previous year’s resulits, but of the remaining 7,
there were 6 improvements and one deterioration. To address this work is underway
to roll out equality training to managers. In addition work has commenced on
strengthening the information and support available in relation to bullying and
harassment across the organisation.
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Gender Distribution of Staff

Directors and non-executive directors

Gender -

- Count |

%

Female

-

i 43.7_5..._:

Male

9

56.25

_Grand Total

'3 6

1000

Senior managers (Band 8a and above) and senior medical staff

. Gender.

. Count [

G

Female

217

Male

204

48.46

'Grand Total -

B

Senior Managers (Band 8a and above)

144

71.2

Male

58

28.71

Grand Total

T2

D00

Breakdown by senior manager pay scales

. PayScale | Cou

Male

XNO8/XR08

99

30

XNO9/XR09

27

16

XN10/XR10

7

XN11/XR11

5

13

6

e e

Senior Medical Staff (Consultants)

Female

73

73333

Male

146

66.67

Grand Total -

10000
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Breakdown by senior medical staff (consultant) pay scales

EE -V P B e ST B e iy e o

MDO1

MC21

YC53

YC62

YC72

YC73

YM51

(o)
DN NN ==

YM52

YM53

—
—

(8]

YM54

YMS5

-
o

YMS56

8]

YMS7

—
-

YM58

YMS9

YM6G0O

YM61

YMG2

YM63

YM65

YM68

YM&9

o w o= aNaloewo|hNoow oo~

YM70

YM72 44

i\)%—\—x—x—-\-—a_xmono

YM73

a=iNolo|=lo mon|m|o wiwniala som o Ba =

Total: o A9 TR 4

All Employees

. Gender | . Count | %

Female 3909 7919

Male 1027 20.81

‘Grand Total'| . 4936 | 100

Disability Related Polices

We have three key policies relating to the recruitment and continuing employment of
staff with a disability:

¢ recruitment, selection and retention policy
o employment of people with a disability policy
e management of sickness absence policy.
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The purpose of the recruitment, selection and retention policy, together with the
associated procedures, is to provide a framework which promotes a professional
approach and the highest possible standards throughout the recruitment and
selection process and to ensure a proactive and lawful approach to equality and
diversity issues within the process, including the recruitment of people with a
disability.

The purpose of the management of sickness absence policy is to provide managers
with clear guidelines when managing either short term or long term sickness
absence and other absence in connection with sickness. it is also designed to
ensure compliance with the requirement of any relevant employment legislation
including the Equality Act 2010.

Supporting both of these policies is the employment of people with a disability policy.
The aim of this policy is:

e Toraise awareness of the employment of people with disabilities throughout
the organisation and ensure employees are aware of our commitment to
people with a disability or someone’s association with a person with a
disability

¢ To ensure recruitment procedures are reviewed and developed to encourage
applications and the employment of people with disabilities or someone
associated with a person with a disability

e To ensure that staff and potential job applicants with a disability, or associated
with a person with a disability, are treated fairly and receive the same
opportunities as other staff to develop with appropriate and reasonable
support. _

o To take all reasonable steps to ensure that the working environment does not
prevent people with a disability or those associated with a person with a
disabled person from taking up positions for which they are suitably qualified.

» To assist staff who become disabled during their employment to adapt to the
disability and to continue in post wherever possible, or, if this is not possible,
to be redeployed or retrained, where this is practicable.

The policy provides guidance on the recruitment and ongoing employment of people
with a disability. The policy focuses in particular on the responsibilities of all staff
groups during the recruitment and selection process of an individual who has
identified they have a disability or associate with a person who has a disability, in
addition to the management of a current employee who develops or has an existing
disability.

We have made a commitment to operate under the Government's Disability
Confident Scheme (formally Positive about Disabled People ‘Two Ticks' Scheme)

We have been certified as a Disability Confident Employer and as part of this
commitment, we will:

1. Get the right people for our organisation - which includes providing fully
inclusive and accessible recruitment processes, offering interviews to people
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with disabilities who meet the minimum criteria for the job and making
reasonable adjustments as required.

Keep and develop our staff - which includes supporting employees to manage
their disabilities or health conditions.

This policy is underpinned by our workforce equality and diversity strategy.

2.
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SECTION THREE:

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS




kPG

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
NORTHAMPTON GENERAL HOSPITAL NHS TRUST '

We have audited the financial statements of Northampton General Hospital NHS Trust for the
year ended 31 March 2017 on pages 80 to 121 under the Local Audit and Accountability Act
2014. These financial statements have been prepared under applicable law and the accounting
policies directed by the Secretary of State with the consent of the Treasury as relevant to NHS
Trusts in England. We have also audited the information in the Remuneration and Staff Report
that is subject to audit.

This report is made solely to the Board of Directors of Northampton General Hospital NHS
Trust, as a body, in accordance with Part 5 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014. Our
audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Board of the Trust, as a body,
those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose.
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone
other than the Board of the Trust, as a body, for our audit work, for this report or for the opinions
we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Directors, the Accountable Officer and auditor

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors' Responsibilities set out on page 45, the
Directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements which give a true and fair
view. Our responsibility is to audit, and express an opinion on, the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland).
Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for
Auditors.

As explained in the statement of the Chief Executive's responsibilities, as the Accountable
Officer of the Trust, the Accountable Officer is responsible for the arrangements to secure
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of the Trust's resources. We are required
under section 21(3)(c), as amended by schedule 13 paragraph 10(a), of the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014 to be satisfied that the Trust has made proper arrangements for
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. Section 21(5)(b) of the
Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 requires that our report must not contain our opinion if
we are satisfied that proper arrangements are in place.

We are not required to consider, nor have we considered, whether all aspects of the Trust's
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources are
operating effectively.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves abtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from
material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of:
whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Trust's circumstances and have been
consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasconableness of significant accounting
estimates made by the Directors; and the overall presentation of the financial statements.

In addition we read all the financial and non-financial information in the annual report and
accounts to identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to identify
any information that is apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with,
the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the audit. If we become aware of
any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our
report.

Scope of the review of arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness
in the use of resources

We have undertaken our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, having regard
fo the guidance on the specified criterion issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General in
November 2016, as to whether the Trust had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly
informed decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for
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taxpayers and local people. The Comptroller and Auditor General determined this criterion as
that necessary for us to consider under the Code of Audit Practice in satisfying ourselves
whether the Trust put in place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2017.

We planned our work in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice. Based on our risk
assessment, we undertook such work as we considered necessary to form a view on whether,
in all significant respects, the Trust had put in place proper arrangements to secure economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources, :

Opinion on financial statements
in our opinion the financial statements:

« give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Trust as at 31 March 2017 and of
the Trust's expendilure and income for the year then ended; and

« have been properly prepared in accordance with the accounting policies directed by the
Secretary of State with the consent of the Treasury as relevant to NHS Trusts in England.

Emphasis of Matter — Going Concern

In forming our opinion on the financial statements which is not modified, we have considered
the adequacy of disclosures made in note 1.1 in the financial statements concerning the use of
going concern basis for the preparation of the accounts. The Trust has a lean of £18.85 million
repayable to the Department of Health in February 2018 and the Department of Health has yet
to confirm the refinancing arrangemenis around the repayment of this loan. This matter, along
with other matters also explained in note 1.1 in the financial statements, indicate the existence
of a material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt on the Trust's ability to continue as a
going concern.

Opinion on other matters
{n our opinion:

+ the parts of the Remuneration and Staff Report subject to audit have been properly
prepared in accordance with the accounting policies directed by the Secretary of State with
the consent of the Treasury as relevant to NHS Trusts in England; and

« the other information published together with the audited financial statements in the Annual
Report and Accounts is consistent with the financial statements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We are required to report to you i

« in our opinion the governance statement does not comply with the Department of Health
Group Accounting Manual 2016/17; or ‘

» we issue areport in the public interest under section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability
Act 2014; or

+ we make a written recommendation to the Trust under section 24 of the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014,

We have nothing to report in respect of the above responsibilities.

Other matters on which we report by exception — referral to Secretary of State

We have a duty under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (the 2014 Act) to refer a
malter to the Secretary of State if we have reason to believe that the Trust Is, taking into
account the NHS Finance Manual Guidancae on Breakeven Duly and Provisions, taking a
course of action that, if followed to its conclusion, will lead to a breach of its ‘breakeven duty’
set out at paragraph 2(1) of Schedule 5 to the National Health Service Act 2006.
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On 23 May 2017, we referred a matter to the Secretary of State under section 30 (1)(a) of the
2014 Act in relation to the breach of the Trust's breakeven duty due to the reported deficit of
£13.8 million in 2016/17, and a cumulative deficit of £43.3 million at 31 March 2017.

Other matters on which we report by exception - adequacy of arrangements to secure
value for money

In considering the Trust's arrangements for securing sustainable resource deployment, we
identified the following matters:

o the Trust has reported a deficit of £13.8 million in 2016/17; and

e the Trust has failed to deliver a number of operational targets for the year. In
particular the Trust failed to meet its Accident and Emergency and cancer waiting
time targets.

On the basis of our work, with the exception of the matters above, we are satisfied that, in all
material respects Northampton General Hospital NHS Trust put in place proper arrangements
to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ending 31
March 2017.

Certificate

We certify that we have completed the audit of the accounts of Northampton General Hospital
NHS Trust in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014
and the Code of Audit Practice.

Tony Crawley

for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

31 Park Row

Nottingham

NG1 6FQ

31 May 2017
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Northampton General Hospitat NHS Trust - Annual Accounts 2016-17

Statement of Comprehensive Income for year ended
31 March 2017

Gross empioyee benefits

Other operating cosis

Revenue from patient care activities
Other operating revenue

Operating surplus/{deficit)

Investment revenue
Other gains and (losses)
Finance costs
Surplusf{deficif) for the financial year
Public dividend capital dividends payable
Transfers by absorption - gains
Transfers by absorption - {losses)
Net Gain/{loss) on transfers by absorption
Retained surplus/(deficit) for the year

Other Comprehensive Income

Impairments and reversals taken to the revaluation reserve
Net gainf{loss) on revatuation of property, plant & equipment
Net gain/{loss) on revaluation of intangibles
Net gainf{loss} on revatuation of financial assets
Other gain /loss) (exptain in footnote below)
Net gain/{loss) on revaluation of available for sale financiaf assels
Net actuarial gain/{foss) on pension schemes
Other pension remeasurements
Reclassification adjustments
On disposal of available for sale financial assets
Total comprehensive income for the year

Financial performance for the year

Retained surplus/{deficit) for the year

Prior period adjustment to correct errors and other performance
IFRIC 12 adjustment {including IFRIC 12 impairments}
Impairments {excluding IFRIC 12 impairments)

Adiustments in respect of denated gov't grant asset reserve elimination

Adijustment re absorption accounting
Adjusted retained surplusf(deficit)

2016-17 2015-16
NOTE  £000s £000s
10.1 (203,764) (191,283)
8 (105,839) (94,833)
5 262,949 248,771
8 36,291 24,791
(11,363) {12.554)
12 29 32
13 273 (83)
14 (813) (440)
(11,874) (13,045)
(3,290) (4,041)
0 0
0 0
0 0
{45,764) {17,086)
201617 2015-16
£000s £000s
0 0
16 {3,815) 5,906
0 0
0 0
0 0
0 0
0 0
0 0
0 0
{18,579) 17,180
(15,164) {17,088)
0 0
0 0
1,732 {3,315)
{415) 250
0 0
{557 {20,151)

The increase in impairment of £1,732k relates in full to the quarterly BCIS net negative indices applied to the
Buildings and is exciuded from retained deficit and statutory breakeven in accordance with the DH Group

Accounting Manual (GAM), note 16 refers.

Donated asset adjustment of £415k (consisting of £323k donated depreciation less £738k donated additions) is
excluded from retained surplus and statutory breakeven duty in accordance with the DiH Manual for Accounts.
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Northampton General Hospital NHS Trust - Annual Accounts 2016-17

Statement of Financial Position as at

31 March 2017

Non-current assets:
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Investment property

Other financial assets

Trade and other receivables
Total non-current assets
Current assets:

Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Other financial assets

Other current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Sub-total current assets
Non-current assets held for sale
Total current assets

Total assets

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Other liabilities

Provisions

Borrowings

Other financial liabilities

DH revenue support loan

DH capital loan

Total current liabilities

Net current assets/(liabilities)
Total assets less current liablilities

Non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Other liabilities

Provisions

Borrowings

Other financial liabilities

DH revenue support loan
DH capital loan

Total non-current liabilities
Total assets employed:

FINANCED BY:

Public Dividend Capital
Retained earnings
Revaluation reserve
Other reserves

Total Taxpayers' Equity:

NOTE

16
19
22.1
21
22.1
23
24
25

26

The notes on pages 85 to 121 form part of this account.

31 March 2017

31 March 2016

£000s
158,405 158,921
1,204 1,270

0 0

0 0

200 209
159,809 160,400
5,770 5,744
23,887 16,340
0 0

0 0

1,621 1,602
31,278 23,666
0 375
31,278 24,061
191,087 184,461
(24,109) (24,345)
(753) (710)
(4,808) (2,802)
(208) (276)

0 0
(18,861) 0
{1,399) (628)
(50,128) (28,761)
(18,850) (4,700)
140,959 155,700
0 0

0 0
(1,055) (979)
(1,203) (1,411)
0 0
(19,979) (18,851)
(10,428) (7,186)
(32,665) (28,427)
108,294 127,273
119,268 119,258
(48,356) (33,420)
37,392 41,435
0 0
108,294 127,273

The financial statements on pages 80 to 84 were approved by the Board on 25 May 2017 and signed on its

ik Sk

behalf by

Deputy Chief Executive:
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Northampton General Hospital NHS Trust - Annual Accounts 2016-17

Statement of Changes in Taxpayers’ Equity
For the year ending 31 March 2017

Public Retained Revaluation Other Total
Dividend earnings reserve reserves reserves

capital

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
Balance at 1 April 2016 119,258 (33,420} 41,435 0 127,273
Changes in taxpayers’ equity for 201617
Retained surplus/(deficit) for the year 0 {15,164} 1] 0 (15,164)
Net gain / (loss) on revaluation of property, plant, 0 a {3,815) 0 {3,815)
equipment
Net gain / (loss} on revaluation of intangible assets 0 Q (] 0 0
Net gain / (loss} on revaluation of financial assets 0 0 o] 0 0
Net gain / {loss} on revaluation of available for sale 0 0 o] 0 0
Impairments and reversals 0 0 o] 0 0
Other gains/{loss) (provide details below) Q 0 [t 0 0
Transfers between raserves 0 228 {228} 0 [H
Reclassification Adjustments
Transfers between Reserves in respect of assets 0 0 0 0 0

transferred under absorption

On disposal of available for sale financial assets 0 0 0 0 0
Reserves eliminated on dissclution ; o 0 4] 0
Qriginating capital for Trust established in year 0 0 0 0 0
Temporary and permanent PDC received - cash 0 o 0 0 0
Temparary and permanent PDC repaid in year o] 1] 0 0 0
PDC written off 1] 4} 0 0 0
Transfer due to change of status from Trust to Foundatio [¢] o] 0 0 0
Other movements 0 t] 0 0 0
Net actuarial gainf{loss) on pension 0 0 0 Q 0
Other pensions remeasurement 0 0 0 0 \;
Net recognised revenue/{expense) for the year 0 {14,936} 14,043) 0 {18,979}
Balance at 31 March 2017 119,258 {48,356) 37,392 0 108,294
Balance at 1 April 2015 119,240 {16,684) 35,879 0 138,435
Changes in taxpayers’ equity for the year ended 31

March 2016

Retained surplus/{deficit) for the year 4] (17,086) 0 ¢] (17,086}
Net gain / (loss) on revaluation of property, plant, 0 0 5,906 ¢] 5,906
equipment

Nat gain / {loss) on revaluation of intangible assets 0 4] 0 0 0
Met gain / (foss) on revaluaticn of financial assets 0 0 0 0 0
MNet gain / (loss) on revaluation of assets held for sale 0 0 0 0 1]
Impairments and reversals 0 0 0 0 1]
Other gains / (loss) 0 0 1] 0 0
Transfers between reserves 0 350 {350) 0 0
Reclassification Adjustments

Transfers between revatuation reserve & retained 0 0 t] 0 0
earnings reserve in respect of assets transferred under

On disposal of available for sale financial assets 0 0 0 0 0
Criginating capital for Trust established in year o 0 0 0 0
New PDC received - cash 18 0 0 0 18
PDC repaid in year 0 0 0 0 a
Other movements o] 0 0 0 0
Net actuasial gain/(Joss) on pension o 1] 0 0 0
Other pension remeasurement 0 [t 0 0 0
Net recognised revenue/{expense) for the year 18 {16,736) 5,556 0 {11,162}
Balance at 31 March 2016 119,258 {33,420) 41,435 0 127,273
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Northampton General Hospital NHS Trust - Annuat Accounts 2016-17

Information on reserves

1

Public dividend capital

Puhlic dividend capital (PDC) is a type of public sector equity finance based on the excess of assets over liabilities.
Additional PDC may also be issued to NHS trusts by the Department of Heaith. A charge, reflecting the cost of capital
uilised by the NHS foundation {rust, is payable to the Department of Health as the public dividend capital dividend.

Income and expenditure reserve
The balance of this reserve is the accumulated surpluses and deficits of the NHS trust.

Revaluaticn Reserve

Increases in asset values arising from revaluations are recognised in the revaluation reserve, except where, and to the
extent that, they reverse impairments previously recognised in operating expenses, in which case they are recognised in
operating income. Subsequent downward movements in asset valuations are charged to the revaluation reserve to the
extent that a previous gain was recognised unless the downward movement represenis a clear consumption of economic
benefit or a reduction in service potential.
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Northampton General Hospital NHS Trust - Annual Accounts 2016-17

Statement of Cash Flows for the Year ended 31 March 2017

201617 20t5-16
NOTE  £000s £000s

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Operating surplus/({deficit) {11,363) (12,554)
Depreciation and amortisation 8 9,703 9,941
Impairments and reversals 18 1,732 {3,315)
Other gains/(losses) on foreign exchange 13 0 4]
Donated Assets received credited to revenue but non-cash 6 (738) N
Government Granted Assets received credited to revenue but non-cash 0 0
Release of PFl/deferred credit 0 0
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories {26} 217
(increase)/Decrease in Trade and Other Receivables {7,508) {5,446)
{Increase)/Dacrease in Other Current Assels 0 0
Increasel{Decrease) In Trade and Other Payables 1,843 3,314
(increase)/Dacrease In Other Current Liabilities 43 (t1)
Provisions utifised {1,440} (687)
Increase/{Decrease) in movement in non cash provisions 3,502 1.978
Net Cash Inflow/{Outflow) from Operating Activities (4,250} {6,570}
Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Interest Received 29 32
(Payments) for Properly, Plant and Equipment {15,381} (13,298)
(Payments) for Intangible Assets (628} (398)
(Payments) for Investments with DH 0 a
(Payments) for Other Financial Assels o 0
(Payments) for Financial Assets (LIFT) 0 0
Proceeds of disposal of assets held for sale (PPE) 585 0
Proceeds of disposal of assets held for sale {Intangible) 0 0
Proceeds from Disposat of Investment with DH 0 0
Proceeds from Disposat of Other Financial Assels 0 0
Proceeds from the disposal of Financial Assets (LIFT) 0 0
Loans Made in Respect of LIFT 0 0
Loans Repaid in Respect of LIFF 0 0
Rental Revenue 58 0
Net Cash Inflow/{Qutflow} from Investing Activities {15,337) {13,664)
Net Cash Inform [ {outflow} before Financing (19,587) (20,234)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Gross Temporary and Permanent PDC Received 0 18
Gross Temporary and Permanent PDC Repaid 0 \]
Loans raceived from DH - New Capital Investment Loans 4,707 6,651
Loans received from DH - New Revenue Support Loans 34,852 35,351
Other Loans Received 0 73
Loans repaid to DH - Capital Investment Loans Repayment of Principal (694) (427)
Loans repaid to DH - Working Capital Loans/Revenue Suppost |oans (14,873) {16,500)
Other Loans Repaid (158) (208)
Cash transferred to NHS Foundation Trusts or on dissolution 1] 0
Capital Element of Payments in Respect of Finance Leases and On-SofFP PFl and LIFT {121) {44}
Interest paid {723) (381}
PDC Dividend {paid)/refunded (3,387) (3,811}
Capital grants and other capital receipts {excluding donated / government granted cash

receipts) ] 0
Net Cash inflow/(Outffow) from Financing Activities 19,606 20,722
NET INCREASE/{DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 19 488
Cash and Cash Equivalents (and Bank Overdraft} at Beginning of the Period 1,602 1,114
Effect of exchange rate changes in the balance of cash held in foreign currencies 0 0
Cash and Cash Equivalents {and Bank Overdraft} at year end 25 1,621 1,602
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MNarthampton General Hospital NHS Trust - Annual Accounts 2016-17

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

1.

1.1

1.2

1.3

Accounting Policies

The Secretary of State for Health has directed that the financial statements of NHS trusts shall meet the accounting requirements of the
Department of Health Group Manual for Accounts, which shalt be agreed with HM Treasury. Consequentiy, the following financial
statements have been prepared in accordance with the DH Group Manual for Accounts 2016-17 issued by the Department of Heaith.
The accounting policies contained in that manual foliow International Financial Reporting Standards to the extent that they are
meaningful and appropriate to the NHS, as determined by HM Treasury, which is advised by the Financial Reporting Advisory Board.
Where the Manual for Accounts permils a choice of accounting poficy, the accounting policy which is judged to be most appropriate {o
the particular circumstances of the trust for the purpose of giving a true and fair view has been selected. The particular policies adopted
by the trust are described below. They have been applied consistently in dealing with items considered material in relation to the
accounts.

Accounting convention
These accounts have been prepared under the histerical cost convention modified to account for the revaluation of property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets, inventories and cerlain financial assets and financial liabilities.

Guoing Concern

Internationat Accounting Standard 1 requires the Board fo assess, as pari of the accounts preparation process, the Trust's ability to
continue as a going concern, in the context of non-rading entities in the public sector the anticipated continuation of the provision of a
service in the future is normally sufficient evidence of going concern. The financial statements should be prepared on a going concern
basis unless there are plans for, or no realistic alternative other than, the dissolution of the Trust without the transfer of its services to
another entity within the public sector.

In preparing the financial statements the Board of Directors has considered the Trust's overall financial position against the requirements
of 1AS1. The Board has also based its assessment on guidance from NHS mprovement about what is required to undertake a Trust's
Going Concern assessment.

Continuity of service:

The Trust recorded a deficit of £13.8m which was £1.3m better than its planned deficit of £15.1m in 2016-17. This improved position
included £1.1m of STP incentive and bonus. This was in addition to the core STF funding of £8.6m received as the Trust met most of its
STF financial and operational {rajectories. Further, the Trust delivered £12.2m of its challenging CIP programme.

The Board of Directors and NHS Improvement approved the Trust's two-year plan of £13.5m deficit in 2017/18 and £10.2m deficit in
2018/19. The income assumpticns included in the plan are supported by signed contracts with Commissioners. The plan also recognises
risks to its delivery such as bed capacity, appropriate demand management schemes as well as chalienges to meeting the STF
conditions, Non-recurrent STF funding of £8.7m is included in each of the two years. The plans include expecied CIP programme
delivery of £12.2m in 2017/18 and £10.7m in 2018/19.

The approved plans, supported by signed commissioner contracts constitute reasonable evidence that the NHS intends that the Trust
will continue to provide healthcare services to the people of Morthamptonshire.

Financing:

The Board of Directors also has a reasonable expectation that the Trust will have access to adequate resources in the form of financial
support from the Depariment of Heaith (NHS Act 2006,s42a) to continue to deliver the full range of mandatory services for the
foreseeable future. The Trust has been reliant on cash support from the Department of Health in meeting its payment obligations and
has drawn down a total of £39.559m at 31 March 2017, made up of £19.979m (revenue support loans), £14.873m (revolving working
facility - fully repaid in March 2017) and £4.707m (capital foan).

Of the revenue support loans, £18.85m is repayable in February 2018 which will be less than 12 months from the reporting date. The
Depastment of Health is yet to advise of refinancing arrangements regarding this loan however the uncertainty about the refinancing
does not of itself affect the Trust's going concern basis.

The Board of Directors has therefore satisfied itself that on the basis that the Trust will continue to provide healthcare services and that
its cash requirements will be supported by the Depariment of Heaith, it considers it appropriate that the accounts for the year ended 31
March 2017 should be prepared on a Going Concern basis.

Acquisitions and discontinused operations

Activities are considered to be ‘acguired’ only if they are taken on from outside the public sector. Activities are considered to be
‘discontinued’ only if they cease entirely. They are not considered to be "discontinued’ if they transfer from one public sector body to
another.

Movement of assets within the DH Group

Transfers as part of reorganisation fall to be accounted for by use of absorption accounting in fine with the Treasury FReM. The FReM
does not require retrospective adoption, so prior year transactions {which have been accounted for under merger accounting) have not
been restated. Absorption accounting requires that entities account for their transactions in the period in which they took place, with no
restatement of performance required when functions transfer within the public sector. Where assets and liabilities transfer, the gain or
Joss resulling is recognised in the SOCI, and is disclosed separately from operating costs.

Other transfers of assets and liabilities within the Group are accounted for in line with fAS 20 and similarly give rise to income and
expenditure entries.
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Charitable Funds :

Under the provisions of IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements, those Charitable Funds that fall under common control
with NHS bodies are consolidated within the entity's financial statements. In accordance with |1AS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements, restated prior period accounts are presented where the adoption of the new policy has a material impact. The Trust
previously decided not to consolidate the charity on the basis of materiality. The Northamptonshire Health Charitable Fund is an
independent body from 1 April 2016.

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the NHS trust’s accounting poticies, management is required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
those estimates and the estimates and underlying assumptions are continually reviewed. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations (see below) that management has made in the process
of applying the NHS trust’s accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements.

» Ongoing status as a going concemn;

« That no major service discontinuation is anticipated,

¢ Selection of indices for land and building valuations;

s All lease liabilities have been identified through a review of contract documentation.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
peried, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment {o the carrying amounts of assets and fiabilities within the next
financial year.

* Provisions - estimation provided to assess likelihood of possible financial obligations,

» Partially completed spells - estimation required regarding length of stay and case mix;

« Employee Benefits - estimate of levels of employee benefits not fully paid in year;

+ Receivabies - including injury cost recovery and other accounts receivable - estimation required to assess the level of where it is
probable that the debt is irrecoverable

Further details of these estimations are given with each related note to the Accounts.

Revenue
Revenue in respect of services provided is recognised when, and to {he extent that, performance occurs, and is measured at the fair

value of the consideration receivable. The main source of revenue for the trust is from commissioners for healthcare services.

Revenue relating to patient care spells that are part-completed at the year end are apportioned across the financial years on the basis of
tength of stay at the end of the reporting period compared to expected total length of stay using the financial year's case-mix and tariff
rules.

Where incomae is received for a specific activity that is to be delivered in the following year, that income is deferred.

The NHS frust receives income under the NHS Injury Cost Recovery Scheme, designed to reclaim the cost of treating injured individuals
to whom personal injury compensation has subsequently been paid e.g. by an insurer, The NHS trust recognises the income when it
recelves nofification from the Department of Work and Pension's Compensation Recovery Unit that the individual has lodged a
compensation claim. The income is measured at the agreed tariff for the treatments provided to the injured individual, less a provision
for unsuccessful compensation claims and doubtful debls.

Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Salaries, wages and employment-related payments are recagnised in the period in which the service is received from employees. The
cost of leave earned but not taken by employees at the end of the period is recognised in the financial statements. This is calculated en
a sample based estimation of accrued leave not taken and permitted to be carried forward into the following financiat year.

Retirement benefit costs

Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the NHS Pension Schemes. These schemaes are unfunded, defined
benefit schemes that cover NHS employers, General Practices and other bodies, alfowed under the direction of the Secretary of State in
England and Wales. The schemes are not designed 1o be run in a way that would enable NHS bodies to identify their share of the
underlying scheme assets and liabilities. Thevefore, the schemes are accounted for as though they were defined contribution schemes:
the cost to the NHS body of participating in a scheme is taken as equal to the contributions payable to the scheme for the accounting
period.

For early retirements other than those due to ill health the additional pension liablities are not funded by the scheme. The full amount of
the liability for the additional costs is charged to expenditure at the time the NHS trust commits itself to the retirement, regardless of the

method of payment.
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The schemes are subject to a full actuarial valuation every four years and an accounting valuation every year.

Other expenses
Other operating expenses are recegnised when, and to the extent that, the goods or services have been received. They are measured
at the fair value of the consideration payable.

Property, plant and equipment

Recognition

Property, plant and equipment is capitalised if:

« it is held for use in delivering services or for administrative purposes;

« it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service potential will be supplied to the NHS frust;

« it is expected {o be used for more than one financial year;

« the cost of the items can be measured reliably; and either

e the item cost at least £5,000; or

« Collectively, a number of items have a totat cost of at least £6,000 and individually have a cost of more than £250, where the assets
are functionally interdependent, they had broadly simuitaneous purchase dates, are anticipated to have simultanaous disposal dates and
are under single managerial control.

« [tems form part of the initial equipping and setting-up cost of a new building, ward or unil, irrespective of their individual or collective
cost.

Where a large asset, for example a building, includes a number of components with significantly different asset lives, the components
are freated as separate assets and depreciated over their own useful economic lives.

Valuation

All properly, ptant and equipment are measured initially at cost, representing the cost directly attributable fo acquiring or constructing the
asset and bringing it to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.
All assels are measured subsequently at fair value. :

l.and and buildings used for the Trust's services or for administrative purposes are stated in the statement of financial position at their
revalued amounts, being the fair value at the date of revaluation less any impairment.

Revaluations of property, plant and equipment are performed with sufficient regularity to ensure that carrying amounts are not materially
different from those that would be determined at the end of the reporting period. Current values in existing use are determined as
foliows:

o Land and non-specialised buildings — market value for existing use.

« Specialised buildings — depreciated replacement cost, modern equivalent asset basis.

HM Treasury has adopted a standard approach to depreciated replacement cost vajuations based on modern equivalent assets and,
where it would meet the location reguirements of the service being provided, an alternative site can be valued.

Propetties in the course of construction for service or administration purposes are catried at cost, less any impairment loss. Cost
includes professional fees and, where capitalised in accordance with 1AS 23, borrowing costs. Assets are revalued and depreciation
commences when they are brought into use.

Fixtures and equipment are carried at fair value, with the carrying value of existing assets written off over their remaining useful lives.
The Trust only indexes equipment where the asset life is greater than 5 years, using the CHAZ index, which is RP! less housing costs.

An increase arising on revaluation is taken to the revaluation reserve except when it reverses an impairment for the same asset
previously recognised in expenditure, in which case it is credited to expenditure to the extent of the decrease previously charged there.
A revaluation decrease that does not result from a loss of economic value or service potential is recognised as an impairment charged
to the revaluation reserve to the extent that there is a balance on the reserve for the asset and, thereaiter, to expenditure. impairment
losses that arise from a clear consumption of economic benefit should be taken to expenditure. Gains and losses recognised in the
revaluation reserve are reported as other comprehensive inceme in the Statement of Comprehensive income.

Subsequent expenditure

Where subsequent expenditure enhances an asset beyond its original specification, the directly attributable cost is capitalised. Where
subsequent expenditure restores the asset to its original specification, the expenditure is capitalised and any existing carrying value of
the item replaced is written-out and charged to operating expenses.

Intangibie assets

Recognition

Intangible assels are non-monatary assets without physical substance, which are capable of sale separately from the rest of the trust's
business or which arise from contractual or other legal rights. They are recognised only when it is probable that future economic
henefits wilt flow to, or service potential he provided to, the trust; where the cost of the asset can be measured reliably, and where the
cost is at least £5000.

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially recognised at cost. Software that is integral to the operation of hardware, for example
an operating system, is capitalised as part of the relevant item of property, piant and equipment. Software that is nol integrai to the
operation of hardware, for example application software, is capitalised as an intangible asset. Expenditure on research is not
capitalised: it is recognised as an operating expense in the period in which it is incurred, Internally-generated assets are recognised ff,
and only if, all of the following have been demonstrated:
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e the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use;

¢ the infention to complete the intangible asset and use it;

« the ability 1o sell or use the intangible asset;

« how the intangible asset will generate prabable future economic benefits or service potential;

« the avaitability of adequate technical, financial and other resaurces to complete the intangible asset and sell or use it; and
« the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its development

Measurement

The amount inifially recegnised for internally-generated intangible assets is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when the
criteria above are inttially met. Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised, the expendiiure is recognised in the
period in which it is incurred.

Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at current value in existing use by reference to an active market, or, where no
active market exists, at the lower of amortised replacement cost (modern equivatent assefs basis) and value in use where the asset is
income generating. Internally-developed software is heid at historic cost to reflect the opposing effects of increases in development
costs and technological advances.

Depreciation, amortisation and impairments
Freehold land, assets under construction or devetopment, and assets held for sale are not depreciated/amortised.

Otherwise, depreciation or amortisation is charged to write off the costs or valuation of property, plant and equipment and intangible non-
current assets, less any residual value, on a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives. The esfimated useful life of an asset is
the period aver which the NHS trust expects to obtain economic benefits or service potential from the asset. This is specific to the NHS
trust and may be shorter than the physical life of the asset ifself. Estimated useful lives and residual values are reviewed each year end,
with the effect of any changes recognised on a prospective basis. Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of
ihe lease term and the estimated usefu lives.

At each financial year-end, the NHS trust checks whether there is any indication that its property, plant and equipment or intangible non-
current assets have suffered an impairment loss. If there is indication of such an impairment, the recoverable amount of the assetis
estimated to determine whether there has been a loss and, if so, its amount. Intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for
impairment annually at the financial year end.

A revaluation decrease that does not result from a loss of ecenomic value or service potential is recognised as an impairment charged
{o the revaluation reserve to the extent that there is a balance on the reserve for the asset and, thereafier, to expenditure. Impairment
fosses that arise from a clear consumption of economic berefit are taken to expenditure. Where an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased 1o the revised estimate of the recoverable amount but capped at the amount that
would have been determined had there been no initial impairment loss. The reversal of the impairment loss is credited {o expenditure to
the extent of the decrease previously charged there and thereafter to the revaluation reserve,

Donated assets

Denated non-current assets are capitalised at current value in existing use, if they will be held for their service potential, or otherwise at
value on receipt, with a matching credit {0 income. They are valued, depreciated and impaired as described above for purchased assets.
Gains and losses on revaluations, impairments and sales are treated in the same way as for purchased assets. Deferred income is
recognised only where conditions attached to the denation preclude immediate recognition of the gain.

Government grants

Government grant funded assets are capitalised at current value in existing use, if they will be held for their service potential, or
otherwise at fair value on receipt, with a matching credit to income. Deferred income is recognised only where conditions attached to the
grant preciude immediate recognition of the gain.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount wilt be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather
than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met when the sale Is highly probable, the asset is avaitable for immediate
sale in its present condition and management is committed to the sale, which is expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale
within one year from the date of classification. Non-current assets held for sale are measured at the lower of their previous carrying
amount and fair value Jess costs to sell. Fair value is open market value including alternative uses.

The profit or loss arising on disposal of an asset Is the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount and is recognised
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. On disposal, the balance for the asset on the revaluation reserve is transferred to retained
earnings.

Property, plant and equipment that is to be scrapped or demoiished does not qualify for recognition as held for sale. Instead, itis
retained as an operational asset and its economic fife is adjusted. The asset is de-recognised when it is scrapped or demolished.

Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially afl the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.
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The trust as lessee

Property, plant and equipment hetd under finance leases are inifially recognised, at the inception of the lease, at fair value or, if fower, at
the present value of the minimum lease payments, with a matching lability for the lease obligation to the lessor. Lease payments are
apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liabiity. Finance charges are recognised in calculating the trust's surplus/deficit.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Lease incentives are recognised
initially as a liability and subsequently as a reduction of rentals on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Contingent rentals are recognised as an expense in the periad in which they are incurred.

Where a lease is for fand and buildings, the land and building components are separated and individually assessed as to whether they
are gperating or finance leases.

The trust as lessor

Amounis due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the amount of the NHS trust's net investment in the
leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods 50 as {o reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the trust's net
investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Inifial direct costs incurred in
negoliating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on a siraight-line
basis over the lease term.

Inventories

Drugs and consumables are valued at current replacement costs; this is considered to be a reasonable approximation te fair value due
ta the high furnover of stocks. Fuel Oil is vaiued at the lower of cost and net realisable value, recognising that it has limited commercial
value.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash is cash in hand and deposits with any financial institution repayable without penalty on nofice of not more than 24 hours. Cash
equivalents are investments that mature in 3 months or less from the date of acquisition and that are readily convertible 1o known
amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value.

In the Staiement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrats that are repayable on demand and that
form an integrat part of the NHS trust’s cash management.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the NHS trust has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable
that the NHS trust will be required to setife the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The
amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure required to settte the obligation at the end of the reporting
periad, taking into account the risks and uncertainties. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
abligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows using HM Treasury's discount rates.

Early retirement provisions are discounted using HM Treasury's pension discount rate of positive 0.24% (2015-16: positive 1.37%) in
real ferms. Al other provisions are subject to three separate discount rates according to the expected timing of cashflows from the
Statement of Financial Position date:

+ A shori term rate of negative 2.70% {2015-16: negative 1.55%) for expected cash flows up to and including & years

+ A medium term rate of negative 1.95% (2015-16: negative 1.00%) for expected cash flows over 5 years up to and including 10 years
+ A long term rate of negative 0.80% (2015-16; negative 0.80%) for expected cash flows over 10 years.

All percentages are in real terms.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to setile a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, the receivable
is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursements wilt be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured

reliably.

A restructuring provision is recognised when the NHS trust has developed a detailed formal plan for the restructuring and has raised a
valid expectatiun in those affected that it will carry cut the restructuring by siarting to implement the plan er announcing its main features
to those affected by it. The measurement of a restructuring provision inciudes only the direct expenditures asising from the restructuring,
which are those amounts that are both necessarily entailed by the restructuring and not associated with ongoing activities of the entity.

Clinical negligence costs

The NHS Litigation Authority {NHSLA} operates a risk pooling scheme under which the trust pays an annual confribution to the NHSLA,
which in return settles all clinicat negligence claims. The contribution is charged to expenditure. Although the NHSLA is administratively
responsible for all clinical negligence cases the legal liability remains with the NHS trust. The tofal value of clinical negligence provisions
carried by the NHSLA on behalf of the trus{ is disclosed at Note 34,
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Non-clinical risk pooling

The NHS trust participates in the Property Expenses Schema and the Liabilities to Third Parties Scheme. Both are risk pooling schemes
under which the NHS trust pays an annual confribution to the NHS Litigation Authority and, in return, receives assistance with the costs
of ctaims arising. The annual membership confributions, and any excesses payable in respect of particular claims are charged to
operating expenses as and when they become due.

Carbon Reduction Commitment Scheme (CRC)

CRC and similar allowances are accounted for as government grant funded intangible assets if they are not expected to be realised
within twelve months, and otherwise as other current assets. They are valued at open market value. As the NHS trust makes emissions,
a provisicon is recognised with an offsetting transfer from deferred income. The provision is settled on surrender of the allowances. The
asset, provision and deferred income amounts are valued at fair value at the end of the reporting period.

Contingencies

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the NHS frust, or a present abligation that is not
recognised because it is not probable that a payment will be required to setfle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be
measured sufficiently reliably. A contingent liability is disclosed unless the possibility of a payment is remote.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed by the ocourrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain futtire events not wholly within the confrol of the NHS frust. A contingent asset is disclosed where
an inflow of economic benefils is probable.

Where the time value of money is material, contingencies are disclosed at their present value.

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised when the NHS trust becomes party to the financial instrument contract or, in the case of frade
receivables, when the goods or services have been delivered. Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights have
expired or the asset has been fransferred,

Financial assets are classified into the following categories: financial assets at fair value through profit and loss; held {o maturity
investments; available for sale financial assets, and loans and receivables. The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the
financial assets and is determined at the time of initiat recognition.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments which are not quoted in an active market.
After initial recognition, they are measurad at amortised cost using the effective interest methed, less any impairment. Interestis
recognised using the effective interest method,

Financial assets are initially recognised at fair vaiue. Fair value is determined by reference to quoted market prices where possible,
ctherwise by valuation techniques.

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated {uture cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset, to the inilial fair value of the financial asset.

At the end of the reporting period, the NHS frust assesses whether any financial assets, other than those held at ‘fair value through profit
and foss’ are impaired. Financial assets are impaired and impairment losses recognised if there is objective evidence of impairment as
a result of one or more events that oceurred after the initial recognition of the asset and that have an impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the asset.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the assef's
carrying amount and the present value of the revised future cash flows discounted at the asset's original effective interest rate. The loss
is recognised in expenditure and the carrying amount of the asset is reduced through a provision for impairment of receivables

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
oceurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through expenditure to the extent
that the carrying amount of the receivable at the date of the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not baen recognised.

Financial liabilitles

Financial abilittes are recognised cn the statement of financial positicn when the NHS trust bacomes party to the contractual provisions
of the financial instrument or, in the case of trade payables, when the goods or services have been received. Financial liabilities are de-
recognised when the liability has been discharged, that is, the liability has been paid or has expired.

Loans from the Department of Health are recognised at historic cost. Otherwise, financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value.
Value Added Tax
Most of the activities of the frust are outside the scope of VAT and, in general, output {ax does not apply and input tax on purchases is

not recoverable. Irrecoverable VAT is charged to the refevant expenditure category or included in the capitalised purchase cost of fixed
assets. Where output tax is charged or input VAT is recoverable, the amounts are stated net of VAT.
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Foreign currencies

The NHS trust's functional and presentational currency is sterling. Transactions denominated in a foreign currency are translated into
sierling at the exchange rate ruting on the dates of the transactions. Af the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in
forelgn currencies are retranslated at the spot exchange rate on 31 March. Resulting exchange gains and losses for either of these are
recognised in the trust’s surplus/deficit in the period in which they arise.

Third party assets
Assets belonging to third parties {such as money held on behalf of patients) are not recognised in the accounts since the trust has no
heneficial interest in them. Details of third party assets are given in Note 41 to the accounts.

Public Dividend Capital (PDGC) and PDC dividend

Public dividend capital represents taxpayers’ equity in the NHS trust. At any time the Secretary of State can issue new PDC to, and
require repayments of PDC from, the trust. PDG is recorded at the value received, As PDC is issued under legistation rather than under
contract, it is not treated as an equity financial instrument,

An annual charge, reflecting the cost of capital utitised by the trust, is payable to the Department of Health as public dividend capital
dividend. The charge is calculated at the real rate set by HM Treasury {currently 3.5%) on the average carrying amount of all assels
less liabilities {(except for donated assets and cash balances with the Government Banking Service). The average carrying amount of
assels is calculated as a simple average of opening and cfosing relevant net assels.

tn accordance with the requirements laid down by the Department of Health (as the issuer of PDC), the dividend for the year is
calculated on the actual average relevant nef assets as sei out in the “pre-audit” version of the annual accounts. The dividend thus
calculated is not revised should any adjustment to nef assels occur as a result the audit of the annual accounts.

Losses and Special Payments

Lasses and special payments are items that Parliament would not have contemplated when it agreed funds for the heatth service or
passed legislation. By their nature they are items that ideally should nof arise. They are therefore subject to special control procedures
compared with the generality of payments. They are divided into different categories, which govern the way that individual cases are
handled.

Losses and special payments are charged to the relevant funclional headings in expenditure on an accruals basis, including losses
which would have been made good through insurance cover had the NHS trust not been bearing its own risks (with insurance premiums
then being included as normal revenue expenditure). However, the note on losses and special payments is compiled direcily from the
losses and compensations register which reports amounts on an accruals basis with the exception of provisions for future losses.

Subsidiaries

Material entifies over which the NHS frust has the power to exercise control are classified as subsidiaries and are consolidated. The
NHS trust has control when it is exposed to or has rights to vatiable returns through its power over another entity. The income and
expenses; gains and losses; assets, liabilities and reserves; and cash flows of the subsidiary are consolidated in full into the appropriate
financial statement lines. Appropriate adjustments are made on consolidation where the subsidiary's accounting policies are not aligned
with the NHS trust or where the subsidiary's accounting date is not co-terminus.

Subsidiaries that are classified as *held for sale’ are measured at the lower of their carrying amount or ‘fair value less costs to sell’.

The Trust has not identified any subsidiaries. Should any of these be identified in the future, further disclosures will be provided.

Assoclates

Material entities over which the NHS frust has the power to exercise significant influence so as to obtain economic or other benefits are
ciassified as associates and are recognised in the NHS trust's accounts using the equity method. The investment is recognised initially
at cost and is adjusted subsequently to reflect the NHS trust share of the entity’s profit/loss and other gains/losses. [t is also reduced
when any distribution is received by the NHS trust from the entity.

Associates that are classified as *held for sale’ are measured at the lower of their carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell

The Trust has not identified any associates. Should any of these be identified in the future, further disclosures will be provided.
Joint arrangements

Matenial entities over which the NHS trust has joint control with one or more other entities are classified as joint arrangements. Joint
conirot is the contractually agreed sharing of controf of an arrangement. A joint arrangement is either a joint operation or a joird venture.

A joint operation exists where the parties that have joint control have rights fo the assets and obligations for the liabilities relating to the
arrangement. Where the NHS trust is a joint operator it recognises its share of, assels, liabilities, income and expenses in its own
accounts. The Trust has not identified any joint operations. Should any of these be identified in the future, further disclosures wilt be
provided.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the nef assets of the

arrangement. Joint ventures are recognised as an investment and accounted for using the equity method. The Trust has not identified
any joint ventures. Should any of these be identified in the future, further disclosures will be provided.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

Notes to the Accounts - 1, Accounting Policies (Continued)

1.33

1.34

Research and Development

Research and developmeant expenditure is charged against income in the year in which it is incurred, except insofar as development
expenditure refates to a clearly defined project and the benefits of it can reasonably be regarded as assured. Expenditure so deferred is
limited to the value of future benefits expected and is amortised through the SOCI on a systematic basis over the period expected to
benefit from the project. it should be revalued on the basis of current cost. The amortisation is calculated on the same basis as
depreciation, on a quarterly basis.

Accounting Standards that have been issued but have not yet been adopted

The HM Treasury FReM does not require the following Standards and Interpretations to be applied in 2016-17. These standards are still
subject to HM Treasury FReM interpretation, with [FRS 9 and IFRS 15 being for implementation in 2018-19, and the government
implementation date for IFRS 18 still subject to HM Treasury consideration.

¢ IFRS 9 Financial Instruments — Application required for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, hut not yet adopted

by the FReM: early adoption is not therefore permitted

» IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers - Application required for accounting periods beginning on or after T January 2018,
but not yet adopted by the FReM: early adoption is not therefore permitted

« IFRS 18 Leases — Application required for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019, but not yet adopted by the FRehM:
early adoption is not therefore permitted.

Gifts

Gifis are items that are voluntarily denated, with no preconditions and without the expectation of any return. Gifts include all transactions
economically equivalent to free and unremunerated transfers, such as the loan of an asset for its expected useful life, and the sale or
lease of assets at below market value.
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2. Pooled budgets
The NHS Trust dees not have any pooled budget arrangements.

3. Operating segments
The Trust Board considers alf of its operations fo be the provision of Healthcare operated as a single segment.
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4, Income generation activities

The Trust has no formal registered income generation schemes.

For the purpose of reporting Catering and Non-staff car parking are treated as income generation activities.
The combined income and costs of these schemes are shown below.

Summary Table - aggregate of all schemes 201617 2015-16
£000s £000s
Income 2,700 2,585
Full cost 1,350 1,239
Surplusi{deficit) 1,350 1,346

5. Revenue from patient care activities

2016-17 215-18
£000s £000s

NHS Trusts 0 0
NHS England 44,975 41,332
Clinical Commissioning Groups 214,485 204,058
Foundation Trusts 1,008 829
Department of Health 0 0
NHS Other (including Public Health England and Prop Co) 107 107
Additional Income for delivery of healthcare services 0 0
Norn-NHS:

Local Authorities 0 0

Private patients 910 792

Overseas patients (non-reciprocal) 134 185

Injury costs recovery 1,329 1,468

Other Non-NHS patient care income 0 0
Total Revenua from patient care activities 262,949 248,771
6. Other operating revenue

2016-17 2015-16
£000s £000s

Recoveries in respect of employee benefits 3,132 3,021
Patient transport services 0 0
Education, training and research 10,824 11,306
Charitable and other contributions fo revenue expenditure - NHS 0 0
Charitable and other contributions to revenue expenditure -non- NHS 399 427
Receipt of charitable donations for capital acquisitions 738 177
Support from DH for mergers 0 0
Receipt of Government grants for capital acquisitions 0 0
Non-patient care services to other bodies 1,481 1,415
Sustainability & Transformation Fund inceme 10,739 0
income generation (Other fees and charges) 2,700 2,585
Rental revenue from finance leases 0 0
Rental revenue from operating leases 58 45
Other revenue 5,220 5,815
Total Other QOperating Revenue 35,291 24,791
Total operating revenue {note §+6) 298,240 273,562

Other revenue includes :

Pharmacy Sales £417k (£1,310k)

Accommodation Charges £519k {£483k)

Provision of Services to private hospitals £7 19k (E482k)
Sustainability & Transformation Fund (STF) Income

- core STF £9,619k
- incentive STF £258k
- bonus STF £862k

7. Overseas Visitors Disclosure

£000s £000s
income recognised during 2016-17 (invoiced amounts and accruals} 134 185
Cash payments received in-year (re receivables at 31 March 2018) 33 23
Cash payments received in-year {fro invoices issued 2016-17) 79 35
Amounts added to provision for impairment of receivables (re receivables at 31 March 2016) 138 11
Amounts added to provision for impairment of receivables (iro invoices issued 2016-17) 28 193
Amounts written off in-year (irrespective of year of recegnition) 338 140
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8. Operating expenses

Services from other NHS Trusts

Services from CCGs/NHS England

Sarvices from other NHS bodies

Sarvices frem NHS Foundation Trusts

Total Services from NHS bodies*

Purchase of healthcare from non-NHS bodies

Purchase of Social Care

Trust Chair and Non-executive Directors

Suppties and services - clinical

Supplies and services - general

Consultancy services

Establishment

Transport

Service charges - ON-SOFP PFls and other service concession arrangements
Service charges - On-SOFP LIFT contracts

Total charges - Of-SOFP PFIs and other service concession arrangements
Total charges - Off-SOFP LIFT contracts

Busliness rates paid to local authorities

Premises

Hospitality

Insurance

[.egal Fees

impairments and Reversals of Receivables

Inventories write down

Depreciation

Amaortisation

impairments and reversals of properly, plant and equipraent
impairments and reversals of intangible assets

impairments and reversals of financial assets [by class]
impairments and reversals of non current assets held for sale
internal Audit Fees

Audit fees

Other auditor's remuneration

Clinical negligence

Research and development (excluding staff costs)
Education and Training

Change in Discount Rate

Capital Granis in Kind

Other

Total Operating expenses (excluding employee benefits)

Supplies & services clinical includes value of drugs including gases of £27 698k (£27,757k}

Other auditors remuneration includes :

KPMG £40k {£46k)

- Expenses in relation to Salary Sacrifice Schemes £30k {£34k}
- Quality Accounts Audit Fee £10k (£12k}

Other expenditure includes :

Translation Services £87k (£91k)

Home Oxygen Service £123k (£126k)
Professional Subscriptions £228k (£171k)
Professional Fees £452k (£263k)

Employee Benefits

Employee benefits excluding Board members
Board members

Total Employee Benefits

Total Operating Expenses

*Searvices from NHS bodies does not inciude expenditure which falls into a category below
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2016-17 2015-16
£000s £000s

53 234
0 0
o 0
1,349 1,260
1,402 1,494
2,759 2,901
0 0
56 54
59,412 57,614
3,514 3,401
239 774
3,399 2,998
205 139
0 0
0 0
0 0
o 0
769 771
10,947 8,913
12 8
219 215
277 296
517 790
126 141
8,923 9,008
780 935
1,732 (3,315)
0 0
0 0
o 0
138 141
45 54
40 46
8,005 5,718
0 0
838 757
15 13
0 0
1,470 969
105,839 94,833
202,306 189,809
1,458 1,474
203,764 191,283
309,603 286,116
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9. Operating Leases

The Trust has a variety of operating leases, the majority of which when considered on an individuat basis are of nen material

vatue. These include medical equipment, leased cars, photocopiers and pathology systems.

9.1. Northampton General Hospital NHS Trust as lessee

Payments recognised as an expense
Minimum lease payments

Contingent rents

Sub-lease payments

Total

Payable:

No later than one year

Between one and five years

After five years

Total

Total future sublease payments expected to be received:

9.2. Northampton General Hospital NHS Trust as lessor

An optician's shop and Boot's chemist operate on the Trust's site under operating leases.

Recognised as revenue
Rental revenue

Contingent rents

Total

Receivable:

No later than one year
Belween one and five years
After five years

Total

2616-17
Other Total 2015-16
£000s £000s £000s
675 579
4] 0
0 0
675 579
702 702 533
1,990 1,990 602
454 454 4]
3,146 3,146 1,135
0 0
2016-17 2015-16
£000s E000s
58 45
0 Q
58 45
58 45
0 0
0 0
58 45

A nursery is situated on the hospital site, the building being originally funded by the childcare provider, with the land being leased at a
peppercorn fent. At the end of the lease the building has the potential to transfer to the Trust, this is currenty assumed to have a zero fair

value.
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10. Employee benefits

10.1. Employee benefits

201817 201516
Total Total
£000s £000s
Employee Benefits - Gross Expenditure
Salaries and wages 171,329 163,187
Social securily costs 15,3285 11,754
Employer Contributions to NHS BSA - Pensions Division 17,045 16,333
Cther pension costs 5 9
Termination benefits 0 0
Total employee benefits 203,764 191,283
Employee costs capitalised 0 0
Gross Employee Benefits excluding capitalised costs 203,764 191,283
10.2. Retirements due to ill-health
2016-17 2015-16
Number Number
Number of persons retired early on il health grounds 2 4
£000s £000s
Total additionat pensions liabilities accrued in the year 241 135

10.3. Pension costs

Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the two NHS Pension Schemes. Details of the benefits payable and rules of the
Schemes can be found on the NHS Pensions website at www.nhshsa.nhs.uk/pensions. Both are unfunded defined benefit schemes that cover NHS
employers, GP practices and other bodies, allowed under the direction of the Secretary of State in England and Wales. They are not designed to be
rin in a way that would enable NHS bodies to identify their share of the underlying scheme assets and liabilities. Therefore, each scheme Is accounted
for as if it were a defined contribution scheme: the cost to the NHS body of participating in each scheme is taken as equal to the confributions payable
to that scheme for the accounting period.

in order that the defined benefit obligations recognised in the financial statements do not differ materially from those thal would be determined at the
reporling date by a formal actuarial valuation, the FReM requires that "the period between formal valuations shall be four years, with approximate
assessments in intervening years". An outiine of these follows:

a) Accounting valuation

A valuation of scheme liability is carrled out annually by the scheme actuary (currently the Government Actuary's Department) as at the end of the
reporting period. Fhis utifises an actuarial assessment for the previous accoeunting period in conjunction with updated membership and financial data
for the current reporting period, and are accepted as providing suitably robust figures for financial reporting purposes. The valuation of scheme liability
as at 31 March 2017, is based on valuation data as 31 March 2018, updated to 31 March 2017 with summary globat member and accounting data. In
undertaking this actuarial assessment, the methedaology prescribed in IAS 19, relevant FReM interpretations, and the discount rate prescribed by HM
Treasury have also been used.

The latest assessment of the liabilities of the scheme is contained in the scheme actuary report, which forms part of the annual NHS Pension Scheme
(England and Wales) Pension Accounts. These accounts can be viewed on the NHS Pensions website and are published annually. Copies can also
be ¢btained from The Stationery Office.

b} Full actuarial {funding) valuation
The purpose of this valuation is to assess the level of liability in respect of the benefits due under the schemes (taking into account their recent
demographic experience}, and to recommend contribution rates payable by employees and employers.

The last published actuarial vajuation undertaken for the NHS Pension Scheme was completed for the year ending 31 March 2012, The Scheme
Regulations altow for the levet of confribution rates to be changed by the Secretary of State for Health, with the consent of HM Treasury, and
consideration of the advice of the Scheme Aciuary and appropriate employee and employer representatives as deemed appropriate.

The next actuarial valuation is to be carried out as at 31 March 2016. This will set the employer contribution rate payable from April 2018 and will
consider the cost of the Scheme relative to the employer cost cap. There are provisions in the Public Service Pension Act 2013 to adjust member
benefits or contribution rates if the cost of the Scheme changes by more than 2% of pay. Subject to this 'employer cost cap’ assessment, any required
revisions to member benefits or contribution rates will be determined by the Secretary of State for Health after consultation with the refevant
stakeholders.
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11. Better Payment Practice Code

11.1, Measure of compliance

Non-NHS Payables

Total Non-NHS Trade Invoices Paid in the Year

Total Non-NHS Trade Inveices Paid Within Target
Percentage of NHS Trade invoices Paid Within Target

NHS Payables

Total NHS Trade Invoices Paid in the Year

Total NHS Trade Invoices Paid Within Target
Percentage of NHS Trade Invoices Paid Within Target

2016-17 2016-17 2015-16 2015-16
Number £000s Number £000s

93,148 111,972 97,099 104,056
92,303 109,534 96,360 103,534
99.09% 97.82% 99.24% 99.50%
2,127 20,938 2,154 19,783
2,085 20,858 2,132 19,746
98.03% 99,62% 98.98% 94.81%

The Better Payment Practice Code requires the NHS body to aim fo pay all valid invoices by the due date or within 30 days of receipt of a valid

invaice, whichever is later. The Trust surpassed the 95% target.

11.2, The Late Payment of Commercial Debts (Interest) Act 1998

Amounts included in finance costs from claims made under this legislation
Gompensation paid to cover debt recovery costs under this legislation
Total

12, Investment Revenue

Rental revenue

PFl finance lease revenue (planned)
PF1 finance lease revenue (contingent)
Other finance fease revenue
Subtotal

Interest revenue

LIFT: equity dividends receivable
LIFT: loan interest receivable

Bank interest

Other loans and receivables
impaired financial assets

Other financial assets

Subtotal

Total invesiment revenue

13. Other Gains and Losses

Gainf(L.oss) on disposat of assets other than by sale (PPE)

Gain/{Loss) on disposal of assets other than by sale (intangibles}

Gain/(Loss) on disposal of Financial Assets other then held for sate

Gain {Loss) on disposal of assels held for sale

Gain/{loss} on foreign exchange

Change in fair value of financial assets carried at fair value through the SoCl
Change in fair value of financial liabilities carried at fair value through the SoCl
Change in fair value of investment property

Recycling of gain/(loss) from equity on disposal of financial assets held for sale
Total ’
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14. Finance Costs
201817 201516
£000s £000s

Inierest

Interest on loans and overdrafts 749 387

Interest on obligations under finance leases 50 33
Interest on obligations under PFI contracts:

- main finance cost 0 0

- contingent finance cost 0 0

Interest on obligations under LIFT contracts:

- main finance cost 0

- contingent finance cost ' 0
Interest on late payment of commercial deht 0
Total interest expense 799
Other finance costs 9
Provisions - unwinding of discount 5
Total 813

S
]
O VWi O O

S
N

15. Auditor Disclosures

15.1. Other auditor remuneration
201617 2015-16
£000s £000s

Other auditor remuneration paid to the external auditor:

. Audit of accounts of any associate of the trust

. Audit-related assurance services Quality Acts
. Taxation compliance services

. All taxation advisory services not falling within item 3 above

. internal audit services

. All assurance services not falling within items 1 to 5

. Corporate finance fransaction services not falling within items 1 to 6 above

. Other non-audit services not falling within tlems 2 to 7 above Satary Sacrifice
Total

-
e

o~ bWk

[=][=J=RE == = = = ]
DO CODONOD

n | 3

02

N.B. These fees exclude VAT

15.2. Limitation on auditor's liability

There is no limitation on auditor's liability for external audit work carried out for the financial years 2016/17 or 2015/16.

99




oGk

‘Auauenb pandde saoipul sajebBou SIS |RISAC AU J0 10948 JBU 81 JO SISISUOD Yze/' L3 uswuedw) Buipiing ur ssesuou 3y (uoieaidsg
‘Aueuenb paidde seaipul saneBau SI0g Ul J0 10aYe 1BU UL 51 YGEE'ET JO LoEN|BAsy Bulpling aaneBau aU; uojen[eA Jo 1800

501851 ¥ Z8Y'L 43 5289} 9TLT LES SL9°LLL 00zZ'sl
0 ¥ 0 0 0 8] 0 0 0
1] o] 0 Q 0 0 0 0 0
veT'L 0 0 Q ] 0 0 AN 0
1] 0] o] 0 ] 0 0 4] 0
Z66'L ] zl 0 798 €25 0 GB8'S 0
AN 2 14 0L L 4" L9291 £0Z'e LES 981801 o0zZ'el
0P85 4 8L (4] 62891 LES S19°LLL 00zl
£05'vp Ll LS5 vl Eid 66.'SZ 6E 26¥°S 0
1] 0 0 0 o] V] 0 0
1] 0 0 0 0 o] 0 0
£Z6'8 Iz anL'e g (A 8% £9€°C 0
o 8] 0 0 0 o] 0 4}
1] 0 0 0 0 o] 0 0
vy 0 0 0 FA4Y 0 0 0
{z52'%) 0 {ge) (o) (6¥1't) 0 0 0
1] 0 0 0 0] 0 0 0
1] 0 0 [ 0 0 0 4]
069°6¢ b4 4" EYELL B4 LBE'9Z Le PeLL 0
206202 SLL 829V 9ZL'C 915 ZLL'lel 00Z'eL
0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 G
0 o 0 0 0 0
(zes's) 0 0 0 (zeL'L) 0
{g99g) 0 0 0 (ge8'c) C
(£52°%) 0 a 0 C
o] 0 0 0 ¢
¢] 0 0 [
a o] 0 ¥
4] 0 0 [
88L 0 4] ¢
aL0'6 0 1] 0
orL'y ork'y ..
119861 Qi1 G/0'6L ger'e 9.8 G622l 00Z'el
$.0003 $,0003 $.000F $.0003 5.0003 £.0003 $.0003F S.000F $.0003
JuRoaIL U
suswied g
UGINIISUOD sBuljjamp
sBumuy ABojouyasy juswidinbe Asuiyoew Japun Buipnjoxs
1210 Qamuund  ucpeuuon;  Modsuer) 9 Jueld sjessYy sBunioma sBuiping pue]

LLOT yaiBy Lg e JBjo)L
s}sasadl FENPISal |4d
SJOBLJUOD |4d 440S-UO

ASEd| AoUBUY U0 pleH
PBIUEID) JUSWILIBAQL) - PDBUMD
pajeuo(] - paumg

paseydnd - paumo
:Buroueuly jessy

LL0Z Y2IB LS 1€ BN|EA Yoog 9N

L10Z oty (2 Y

fuunoooy uondiosgy Japun s1pog 101938 211dnd JaylD woly(ol) siaisuel)
1J S® UOHESLIOYINE U0 JSNi] UCIEPUNad SHN 01 SIjsuely
1ea A al; Buung pableyn

sasuadxe Buelado o} pabfizeyo sjesiaaaysjuswreduy
sa/3953) 0) pabileyd sipsuanaluauRdwy

uoenenay

2[es Jo} UBY] 12410 S[esodsiq

$|esIaAa] PUB 9[BS JC) PiOH SE SUOIIBILISSE9)
suoneoyIssenay

9LOZ 1MdY LIy

uonealdag

LLOT YdIEN LE IV

Bununoooy uonRdlosqy Jopun salpog 101095 2lqnd JOYKD woi (o)) siejsuel]
1+ SEB UONBSUOYINE UO ISNJ] UOIBPUNOL SHN 0} SJ3jsuBl
santasal 0) pableyd stesianalsiusuureduw)

sasuadxa Bupeiado o) pabieyo sjesianal/siuswedul)
uoneneasy

3[es JO} UBY) JSLC S{2S0dsI(]

S|esIaAal pue aes 10 PioH Sk SUCREIYSSE|DRY

SUCLEIINSSEDSY

{L41"714d Buipnjowl) pases suolppyY

SJUBIS) JUSLUUIBACE) B SUCHBUO(] YSE) WOI) S8SBUIIN - SUOIPPY
(s)}98se 2oisAyd "271) SUCKRBUOQG USED UON - SUCHIPRY

peseudIng suonippyY

UOTIONIISU0D J3pUn 19SSy JO SUOIpPY

910z 1MdY L3y

IUQEN|BA 10 1S0D

L9L0T

juswdinba pue jueld ‘Auedold  “1°9)

£1-9107 SIUN0IDY [BRULY - ISN1]. SHN [231dsoH [eJeussy ucidweynoN



L0t

ori'y aLAje se aouejeg
6Z)'¥ {1} Buipnjou|} wewdmnbs © Asuiyoepy weld
0 sBuyamag
1L sBuljemy 1oxa sbu
¢ pueq
41-910T Ul UORINISUOD J9pUf) SIASSY 0] SUOIHNPY
£68°L8 0 0 } 0Z¢ 0 0 9197 95ty L10C uel LIV
{zro'y) ¢ 0 0 (zg1) 0 0 {os8e) 0 UOREXSPUI » SJUSWISAOH
SEV'LY 0 0 L cly 0 o} 90G'9¢ 95F' ¥ 910Z [dy LY
£.0003 S.0003 $.0003 %.0003 0003 5.0003 $.0003 $.0003 $.0003
JungITe Uo
syuawAed g
usINIGSUCD
sbumpy  ABojouynsy  juswdinba Kauiysew 19pun
1033 P SINMPWING  UOIBLLISH| uodsuri] B ueld s]osSY sBumamg sBuiping puen

wawdinbg g jue|d ‘Apedold 10} @duk|eg 2AIaS3Y UOEN|BASY

£1-01.02 SIUN0S2Y [2NUUY - 15011 SHN [eNdsoH [e1auas) uoduieyHoN



204

126°g51 1g ZeL'L Lb z86'2) gEv'e G55 LZ9'12) 00Z'cl
0 0 0 c 0 0 0 0 0
] 0 0 ¢ 0 0 0 0 0
Slg) 0 0 0 0 0 Q GLE'L 0
0 0 0 ] 0 0 0 0 0
L16'L ¥Z 0z ] $LG G 0 +¥58°L 0
629'6¥1 l ZLLL Ll gi¥'eL g2¥'e Tl A AN 0oz'el
126°851 133 zeh4 L (43541 £EV'E 555 1Z9°'12L 00Z°EL
06962 ¥rL £r6LL 15 262°9T 1z el L 0
0 0 0 0 0 ) ) 0
] ] ] 0 0 ] ] ]
9006 62 raR s ¥ ¥el'e (4 9s8'e ]
0 0 0 0 0 ] 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
(reL'z} 0 0 0 LE ] siz'e 0
(g2¢'9} 0 (#0B) 0 (b8¥'g) ] 0 0
(L) 0 0 0 Q 0 (L 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
£9Z'6¢ Gl se¥'0l i¥ 999'82 ] ] 0
119'961 [ g3 6Z8'6¢ £EV's 915 S5.2Z) 00Z'EL
0 0 0 ] ) 0 0 0
0 a ] 0 ¥ 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 o 0 0 0
518°¢ 0 0 ) 0 GlLg's 0
zZel'e c 0 0 0 oLyol (0£L'9)
{00s‘9) o 0 ] 0 0 0
{zag) ] 0 0 0 {zae) ]
0 0 Q 0 8652 0
oL¥) 0 0 0 oir'l 0
oLl 0 0 0 0 0
L ] 0 0 0 Q
966 0 g 0 66L'% Q
b A 8¥Z'0
589°08% Gl £9 £80'68 98L'¢ 9.8 S02'L0L 02661
$,000F $,0003 5.0003 S,0003 $,0003 5.0003 5,0003 5,0003 5,0003
JunosdE U0
sswied g
HOINISUOD sBujjjemp
sBumy ABojouyos)  juswdinbe  Alsunysew J8pun Buipngoxs
1ejoL 2 ANPWING  UONBWAOI] yodsues) 2 JUeld 19SSy sBuramg sBuippung pue’

9102 yaiey (¢ e [ejo)
g)88IO)U] [BNpISa [3d
SJORAUOD |4d d4OS-UO

o5B3| S0UBUY UO piaH
PIWEBID) JUBUWILIBACS) - PRUMO
pajRUO( - PAUMQO)

pASBYLN - PAUMQ
:Buisueuly 19SSy

9L0Z UAER L£ e anjea jood 1N

9102 Wiel LE IV

Bununoooy uondiosgy Japun $3:pod 101028 2[1and JaUl0 Wo{o)) siajsuel]
1 SE UDIIESHOUINE UG JST] UONBPUNCH SHN O} Sisjsuel]
1ea ) 2yi Bupng pabieyn

sasuadxa Bunelado 01 pefieyd siesisAalsiuaLEdW|
5919531 0] pableys siesiaasijusuuiedw)

uonEneASY

2|es 10} uey) Jayie sjesodsi]

s|esianay pue aleg 10) PISH SB SUCIEILISSEIISY
suonedlyISseRay

5107 ludy L 3y

uopeaidag

9102 YyJep LIV

Bununeody uondiosgy JApun salpoyg J0ag oldnd JAUIQ woly o)) siajsuel]
14 SE UCEBSLIOYINE UO }SNJ1 UOHEPUNOH SHN 01 SigjSuBl),
sasuadxs Buielsdo o) padieyd sigsiasaysiuauuedu)

sanasal 0y pableys sjesisaaijuanLedul|

uchen{eASY

8|es 4G} Uel} Jaylo sjesodsig

S[ESISASY PUE S[ES IO} PISH SB SUOIEIYISSERSY

SUOIJEOHISSE[DSY

(L417/14d Buipnjou)) pasee sUORIPPY

SJULIS) JUSWILIBAOL) % SUOIBUO( YSED) LD $9SBYSING - SUORIPPY
(s1088y [EOISAY4 9'1) SUORUOC] YSBD) UON - SUOHIPPY

paselaing suagippy

UONDNIISUOT JapuUn S18SSY JO SUOMPPY

G107 14dy 1 3y

ucHen|ea 1o 1s09

815102

Jeaf-toud Juawdinbe pue jueld ‘Apsdold  “Z2'91

11-9102 SIUNCODY |BAUUY - 18NJL SHN jeudsoH |essuss uojdwieyuonN



Northampton General Hospital NHS Trust - Annual Accounts 2016-17

16.3. (cont). Property, plant and equipment
The Northamptonshire Health Charitable Fund has extended and refurbished the NGH Chemotherapy Suite, spending £518k in 2016/17,
which is due to open end of April 2017. Also, £220k worth of equipment has been donated, including ulfrasounds, incubators & ventilators.

BCIS (Building Cost Information Service) indices provided by Cushman & Wakefield have been applied to the Buildings on a guarterly basis.
The next site revaluation exercise of NGH's Land & Buildings is due in April 2019.

Equipment is depreciated on current cost evenly over the estimated life of the asset.

Plant & Machinery 5-15 years
Transport 7 years
LT. 5 years
Furniture & Fittings 5 years

Where the useful economic life of an asset is reduced from that initially estimated due to the revaluation of an asset for sale,
depreciation is charged {o bring the value of the asset to its value at the point of sale.

The gross carrying amount of fully depreciated assets still in use is £25,820k (£23,311Kk)
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Northampton General Hospital NHS Trust - Annual Accounts 2016-17

18. Analysis of impairments and reversals recognised in 2016-17

Property, Plant and Equipment impairments and reversais taken to SoCi
Loss or damage resulting from normal operations

Over-specification of assets

Abandonment of assets in the course of construction

Total charged to Departmental Expendifure Limit

Unforeseen obsolescence

Loss as a result of catastrophe

Other

Changes In market price

Total charged to Annually Managed Expenditure

Total Impairments of Property, Plant and Equipment changed to SoCt

Intangible assets impairments and reversals charged to SoCl
Loss or damage resulting from normal operations
Over-specification of assets

Abandonment of assets in the course of construction

Total charged to Departmental Expenditure Limit

Unforeseen ohsolescence

Loss as a result of catastrophe

Other

Changes in market price

Total charged to Annually Managed Expenditure

Total Impairments of Intangibles charged to SoCi

Financial Assets charged to SoCl
Loss or damage resulting frem normal operations
Total charged to Departmental Expenditure Limit

Loss as a result of catastrophe
Other
Total charged to Annually Managed Expenditure

Total Impairments of Financial Assets charged to SoCl

Non-current assets heid for sale - impairments and reversals charged to SoCl.
Loss or damage resuiting from normal operations

Abandonment of assets in the course of construction

Total charged to Departmental Expenditure Limit

Unforeseen obsolescence

Loss as a result of catastrophe

Other

Changes in market price

Total charged to Annually Managed Expenditure

Total impairments of non-current assets held for sale charged to SoCl
Total Impairments charged to SoCl - DEL

Total Impairments charged to SoCl - AME
Overall Total Impairments

Donated and Gov Granted Assets, included above
PPE - Donated and Government Granted Asset Impairments: amount charged to SOCI - DEL
Intangibles - Donated and Government Granted Asset Impairments: amount charged to SOC1 - DEL
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Northampton Generaj Hospital NHS Trust - Annual Accounts 2016-17

18. Analysis of impairments and reversals recognised in 2016-17
Property Intangible
Plant and Assets
Equipment

Impairments and reversals taken to SoCl
Loss or damage resulting from normal operations
Qver-specification of assets

Financial

Assets

Non-

Gurrent

Assets

Held for

Sale

Total
£000s

[ fo= e I v ]

0
0
Abandonment of assets In the course of construction 0
Total charged to Departmental Expenditure Limit 0

Unforeseen obsolescence 0
Loss as a result of catastrophe o]
Other 1]
Changes in market price 1,732

ojlooc o

[ == =)

[=]fe= e ol ]

Total charged to Annually Managed Expenditure 1,732

oclcooCc

Qoo oo

Total Impairments of Property, Plant and Equipment changed 1,732 0

Donated and Gov Granted Assets, included above
PPE - Donated and Government Granted Asset Impairments: amount charged to SOCI - DEL
Intangibles - Donated and Government Granted Asset Impairments: amount charged to S0C1 - DEL

19. Investment property

At fair value

Balance at 1 April 2016

Additions Through Subsequent Expenditure

Other Acquisitions

Disposals

Property Reclassified as Held for Sale

Loss from Fair Value Adjusiments - Impairmenis

Loss from Fair Value Adjustments - Reversal of impairments
Gain from Fair Value Adjustments

Transfers to NHS Foundation Trust on authorisation as FT
Transfers (to} / from Other Public Sector Bodies under absorption accounting
Other Changes

Balance at 31 March 2017

20. Commitments

201,  Gapital commitments
Contracted capital commitmenis at 31 March not otherwise included in these financial statements:

Praperty, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Total

20.2, Other financial commitments

Not later than one year

Later than one year and not later than five year
Lader than five years

Total
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31 Marc
2017
£000s

h

£000s

o o

31 March
2016
£000s

= = B R B i e i Y - Y o Y}
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31 Marc
2017
£000s

h

2,941

0

31 March
2016
£000s

3,438
65

2,941

3,803

31 Marc
2017
£000s

h

31 March
2016
£000s
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Narthampton General Hospital NHS Trust - Annual Accounts 2016-17

21. Inventories

Drugs Consuma Workin  Energy Loan Other Of which
bies Progress Equipme held at
nt Total NRV

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
Balance at 1 April 2018 1,904 3,794 1] 46 a V] 5,744 5,698
Additions 27,736 25,338 ¢} 0 0 G 53,072 0
Inventories recognised as an expense in
the period {27,699) {25,221} 0 0 v} 0 (52,920) 0
Write-down of inventories {including losses} {126) 0 0 0 0 1] (126} 0
Reversal of write-down previously taken to
SOCH 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Transfers to NHS Foundation Trust on
authorisation as FT 0 0 0 Q 0 ¢ Q 0
Transfers {to)/from Other Public Sector
Bodies under Absorption Accounting 0 0 0 0 0 o] 0 0
Balance at 31 March 2017 1,815 3,909 0 46 1] 0 5,770 5,698
22.1. Trade and other receivables

Current Non-current

31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March

2017 2016 2017 2016

£000s £000s £000s £000s
NHS receivables - revenue 15,136 9,742 Q 0
NHS receivables - capital 0 0 0 0
NHS prepayments and accrued income 0 0 ] 0
Non-NHS receivables - revenue 1,668 1,250 1] 0
Non-NHS receivables - capital 0 21 0 0
Non-NHS prepayments and accrued income 2,908 1,923 0 0
PDC Dividend prepaid to PH 37 0 0 0
Provision for the impairment of receivables (752) (834) 0 0
VAT 810 473 0 0
Current/nan-current part of PF| and other PPP arrangements prepayments and accrued :
income exctuding PF! lifecycle 1] 0 o 0
Interest receivables [H] 0 0 0
Finance lease receivables L] 9 200 209
Operating lease receivables 0 0 Y 0
Other recelvables ' 4,240 3,756 0 0
Total 23,887 16,340 200 209
Total current and non current 24,087 16,549
included in NHS receivables are prepaid pension contributions: 0

NHS receivables - revenue
- Estimated value of partially completed spelis £2,625K {E1,436k)

Other receivables include:
- Injury Cost Recovery claims (ICR} £2,653K (£2,5682k}
- Salary overpayments/other recoverable pay £347K (£546k)

The great majority of trade is with Clinical Commissiening Groups as commissioners for NHS patient care services. As Clinical Commissioning
Groups are funded by Government to buy NHS patient care services, no credit scoring of them is considered necessary.

31 March 31 March

22.2. Receivables past their due date but not impaired 2017 2016
£000s £000s
By up {o three mornths 857 678
By three to six months 338 121
By more than six months 552 45
Total 1,744 842

This includes £89k (£176k) relating to invoices raised to Clinical Commissioning Groups for Non Contracted Activity data,
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Northampton Generat Hospital NHS Trust - Annual Accounis 2016-17

22.3. Provision for impairment of receivables 201617  2015-16
£000s £000s

Balance at 1 April 2016 {834) (1,308}
Amount written off during the year 599 1,262
Amount recovered dusing the year 0 0
(Increase)/decrease in receivables impaired {517) {790}
Transfers to NHS Foundation Trust on authorisation as FT 0 0
Transfers (to)/from Other Public Sector Bodies under Absorption Accounting 0 0
Balance at 31 Narch 2017 {752) (834)

The Trust provides for non recovery of receivables as follows:

All Non-NHS Trade receivables over 60 days old from date of invoice unless known reascn for payment delay.
17.41% {16.46 %) (local provision) of recognised Injury Cost Recovery claims are provided for.

All salary overpayments for which no recovery plan is in place, are provided for in full.

23. Other Financial Assets - Current
31 March 31 March

2017 2016

£000s £000s
Current part of loans repayable transferred from non-current assets 1] 0
NLF deposits over 3 months [1] 4]
Closing balance 31 March 0 0

110




Northampton General Hospital NHS Trust - Annuat Accounts 2016-17

24, Other current assets

EL) Emissions Trading Scheme Allowance
Other Assets
Total

25. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Opening balance
Net change in year
Closing balance

Made up of

Cash with Government Banking Service

Commercial banks

Cash in hand

Liquid deposits with NLF

Current investments

Cash and cash equivalents as in statement of financial position
Bank overdraft - Government Banking Service

Bank overdraft - Commercial banks

Cash and cash equivalents as in statement of cash flows

Third Party Assets - Bank balance {not included above)
Third Party Assets - Monies on deposit
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31 March 31 March
2017 2016
£000s £000s

0 1]
0 0
0 0

31 March 31 March
2017 2016
£000s £0600s

1,602 1,114
19 488
1,621 1,602
1,645 1,543
61 50
15 ¢}

v} 0

0 0
1,621 1,602
0 0

0 0
1,621 1,602
0 0

0 0
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Nerthampton General Hospitat NHS Trust - Annuat Accounts 2016-17

27. Trade and other payables
Current

31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Non-current

31 March 2017 31 March 2016

£000s £000s £000s £000s
NHS payables - revenue 855 578 0 0
MHS payables - capital 0 4] 0 0
MNHS accruals and deferred income 1,167 1,000 0 0
Nan-NHS payables - revenue 2,961 2,390 0 0
Non-NHS payables - capital 3,113 5,192 0 0
Non-NHS accruals and deferred income 8,109 7,966 0 0
Social security costs 4,028 3,551 0 0
PDC Dividend payable to DH 0 680 0 0
Accrued Interest on DH Loans 75 38 0 0
VAT ¢ 0 0 0
Tax H 0 0 0
Payments received on account 0 0 0 0
Other 2,801 3,169 0 0
Total 24,109 24,345 0 0
Total payables (current and non-current) 24,109 24,345
Included above:
to Buy Out the Liability for Early Retirements Over 5 Years 0 1]
number of Cases Involved (number) 0 0
oufstanding Pension Contributions at the year end 2,380 2,347
28. Other liabilities

Current Non-current

31 March 2017 31 March 2016

31 March 2017 31 March 2016

£000s £000s £000s £000s
Lease incentives 0 0 [H o]
Qther - Employee Benefits 753 710 4] 1)
Total 753 710 0 0
Total other iiabilities {current and non-current) 753 710
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Norihamptan General Hospital NHS Trust - Arnual Accounts 20:16-17

29. Borrowings

Bank overdraft - Government Banking Service
Bank overdraft - commercial banks

Loans from Department of Health

Loans from other entities - SALIX

PFI liabiiities - main liability

LIFT liabilities - main liability

Finance lease liabilities

Other

Total

Total other kabilities (current and non-current)

Borrowings / Loans - repayment of principal falling due in:

0-1 Years
1-2 Years

2 -5 Years
Over 5 Years
TOTAL

Current

31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Non-gurrent

31 March 2017 31 March 2016

£000s £000s £000s £000s
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 Q
20,250 628 30,407 26,037
84 185 B2 166
1] 0 Q 4]
v} 0 0 0
124 121 1,121 1,245
0 t] 0 0
20,458 904 31,610 27,448
52,068 28,352
31 March 2017
DH Other Total
£000s £000s £000s
20,250 206 20,456
1,399 175 1,674
24175 459 24,634
4,833 571 5,404
50,657 1,411 52,068

The Trust has taken advantage of participating in the Energy Efficiency Loan Scheme operated by Salix Finance Ltd.
The Trust has agreed tweive schemes since 2012/13 of which six are fully repaid.
Each of these loans are subject to zero interest and are repayable over 4 years in equat instalments although these have been drawn on

completion of each scheme.

An analysis of the DH loans held by the Trust is as follows:-

| ‘Loan “Analysis of Loan Balance - March 2017
| .Facility | Interest T T T
Loan [Agreement| Amount Rate Repayment Date | Capital | Deficit STF -} Total
Type Date - E000's £000's £000's £000's E00D's
Capital Mar-15 7.207 1.60% 10 year period 5,086 6,088
Capital Mar-16 9,352 1.16% 10 year period 5,741 5,741
Rewenue Feb-16 18,851 1.50% Feb-18 18,851 18,851
Rewente Feb-17 14,515 1.50% Jan-20 11,282 3,233 14,515
Revenue Feb-17 2,995 1.50% Feh-20 2,187 808 2,995
Rewenue Mar-17 2,464 1.80% Mar-20 1,660 809 2,469
Total 55,3898 11,827 33,980 4,850 50,657
30. Other financial liabilities
Current Non-current

Embedded derivatives at fair value through SoCl

Financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit and loss
Amortised cost

Total

Total other financial fiabilities {current and non-current)

31 March 2017 31 March 2016
£000s £000s

31 March 2017 31 March 2016
£000s £000s

[=JL=J ==
oo o o

SIoOOoO o
[=] [ = Q= =]
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Northampton General Hospital NHS Trust - Annual Accounts 2016-17

31. Deferred income

Opening balance at 1 April 2016
- Deferred revenue additicn
Transfer of deferred revenue
Gurrent cdeferred income at 31 March 2017

Total deferred income {current and non-cuerent)

32. Finance lease obligations as lessee

Current Non-current
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 31 March 2017 31 March 2016
£000s £000s £000s £000s
1,775 1,777 0 0
3,660 849 0 0
{2,889} {851) 0 0
2,546 1,775 0 0
2,646 1,775

The Trust car park decking was completed under a Finance Lease arrangement.

Amounts payable under finance leases (Buildings)

Within one year

Between one and five years

After five years

Less future finance charges

Minimum Lease Payments / Present value of minimum lease payments

Inctuded in:
Current bosrowings
MNon-current borrowings

Finance leases as lessee
Future Sublease Payments Expected to be received
Coniingent Rents Recognised as an Expense

33. Finance lease receivables as lessor

Minimum lease payments

31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Present vaiue of minimum

31 March 2017

31 March 2016

£000s £000s £000s £000s
124 121 124 121
550 529 550 529
571 716 571 716
0 0 0 4]
1,245 1,366 1,245 1,366
124 121
1,121 1.245
1,245 1,366

31 March 2017
£000s

0

0

Nerthamptonshire Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust cccupies Battle House under a Finance l.ease arrangement,

Amounts receivable under finance leases (buildings}
Of minimum lease payments

Within one year

Between one and five years

After five years

Less future finance charges

Gross Invesiment in Leases / Present Value of Minimum Lease
Payments

Less allowance for uncellectible lease payments:
Total finance lease receivable recognised in the statement of
financial position
Included in:
Current finance lease receivables
Nen-cursent finance lease receivables

Rental revenue
Contingent rent
Other

Total rentaf revenue

Gross investments in leases

31 March 2017 31 March 2016

31 March 2016
£000s

0

0

Present value of minimum
lease payments

31 March 2017

31 March 2016

£000s £000s £000s £000s
9 g 9 9
36 36 36 36
164 173 164 173
0 0 0 0
209 218 209 218
0 0 0 0
209 218 209 218
9 9
200 208
203 218
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31 March 2017

31 March 2016

0 0
9 0
0 0
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36. Financial Instruments

36.1. Financial risk management

Financial reperting standard IFRS 7 requires disclosure of the role that financial instruments have had during the period in creating or changing the
risks a body faces in undertaking its activities. Because of the continuing service provider relationship that the NHS Trust has with Clinical
Commissioning Groups and the way those Clinical Commissioning Group are financed, the NHS Trust is not exposed to the degree of financial risk
faced by business entities. Also financial instruments play a much more limited role in creating or changing risk than would be typical of listed
companies, to which the financial reporting standards mainly apply. The NHS Trust has limited powers to borrow or invest surplus funds and financial
assets and liabilities are generated by day-to-day operational activities rather than being held to change the risks facing the NHS Frust in undertaking
its activities.

The Trust's reasury management operations are carried out by the finance department, within parameters defined formally within the Trust's standing
financial instructions and paolicies agreed by the board of directors. Trust treasury activity is subject to review by the Trust's internal auditors.

Currency risk
The Trust is principally a domestic organisation with the great majority of transactions, assets and liabilities being in the UK and sterling based. The
Trust has no overseas operations. The Trust therefore has low exposure to currency rate fluctuations.

Interest rate risk
The Trust borrows from government for capital expenditure, subject fo affordability as confirmed by NHS Improvement. The borrowings are for 1 - 25
years, in line with the life of the associated assets, and interest is charged at the National Loans Fund rate, fixed for the life of the loan. The Trust

therefore has low exposure to interest rate fluctuations.

The Trust may also borrow from government for revenue financing subject to approval by NHS Improvement. Interest rales are
confirmed by the Dapartment of Health (the lender) at the point borrowing is undertaken.

The Trust therefore has low expasure to interest rate fluctuations.

Credit risk
Because the majority of the Trust 's revenue comes from contracts with other public seclor bodies, the Trust has low exposure to credit risk. The
maximum exposures as at 31 March 2017 are in receivables from customers, as disclosed in the trade and other receivables note.

Liquidity risk
The Trust ’s operating costs are incurred under contracts with primary care, Clinicat Commissioning Groups, which are financed from resources voted
annually by Pardiament . The Trust funds its capital expenditure from funds obtained within its prudential borrowing limit. The Trust is not, therefore,

exposed to significant fiquidity risks.
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36.2. Financial Assets

At ‘fair value  l.oans and  Available for Total
through receivables sale
profit and
loss’

£000s £000s £000s £000s
Embadded derivatives [ IR R e 0
Receivables - NHS : 15,136 15,136
Receivables - non-NHS 8,141 8,141
Cash at bank and in hand 1,621 1,621
Other financial assets 0 200 209
Total at 31 March 2017 0 25,107 0 25,107
Embedded derivatives 0 S 1]
Receivables - NHS : 9,742 9,742
Receivables - non-NHS . B 6,125 6,125
Cash af bank and in hand i s 1,602 SR 1,602
Other financial assets 0 218 0 218
Total at 31 March 2016 0 17,687 0 17,687

36.3. Financial Liabilities
At “fair value Other Total
through
profit and
loss’

£000s £000s £000s
Embedded derivatives 0 i 1]
NHS payables ] 855 855
Non-NHS payables : E 19,226 19,226
Other borrowings Rl 50,823 50,823
PFI & finance lease obligations e 1,245 1,245
Other financial iabilities 0 753 753
Total at 31 March 2017 0 72,902 72,902
Embedded derivatives Qo 0
NHS payables S 978 978
Non-NHS payables S 19,818 19,816
Other borrowlings g 26,986 26,086
PFI & finance lease obligations 8 R 1,366 1,366
Other financial Habilities 0 710 710
Total at 31 March 2016 0 49,856 49,856

37. Events after the end of the reporting period
There are no material events afler the reporting date of 31 March 2017 which effect the financial position.
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38. Related party transactions
During the year none of the Department of Health Ministers, Trust board members or members of the key management staff, or parties related to any
of them, has undertaken any material transactions with Northampton General Hospital NHS Trust.

The Depariment of Health is regarded as a refated party. During the year Northampton General Hospital NHS Trust has had a significant number of
material ransactions with the Department, and with other entities for which the Department is regarded as the parent Department. For example :

Revenue Transactions

Health Education England £10.4m {£10.4m)

MNene Clinical Commissioning Group £203.7m (£194.7m)

Corby Clinical Commissioning Group £2.4m {£2.6m)

Milten Keynes Clinical Commissioning Group £2.9m (£2.5m)

East Midlands Specialised Commissioning Hub (previously Central Midlands Commissioning Hub) £38.8m (£32.9m)
Central Midlands Local Office £8.0m (£7.7m}

Northamptonshire Healtheare NHS Foundation Trust £1.3m (£1.3m)

Kettering General Hospital Foundation Trust £1.5m (£1.4m)

University Hospitals of Leicester NHS Trust £1.0m (£1.0m}

Expenditure Transactions

NHS Litigation Authority £8.2m (£5.9m} (NHS Resoclution from April 2017)
Nerthamptonshire Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust £1.4m (£1.3m)

NHS Blood and Transplant £1.4m (£1.4m)

in addition, the Trust has had a number of material transactions with other government departments and other central and local government bodies.
Most of these transactions have been with Northampton Borough Council (Business Rates £770k (£746k)), Northamptonshire County Council
(Pathology Services £149k (£150k)) and HM Revenue & Customs (Employers National Insurance contribution £15.4m (£11.8m)), National Health
Service Pension Fund Scheme £17.0m (£16.3m) and NHS Business Services Authority £10.4m (£7.6m}

The Trust has also received revenue and capital payments from Northamptonshire Health Charitable fund.

Grants totalling £341% {(£372k), which were received from the Charity, have been treated in the Trust's Accounts as income and have primarily
contributed towards staff and patients welfare. The Charity also funded £796k {(£248k) of Building Works & Medical Equipment,

The Charitable Fund produces separate Trustees Report and Accounts which are availabte from the Finance Department of the Trust or on the
Charity Commission website www.charity-commision.gov.uk. Shouid you wish to learn more about the Charitable Fund's activities and current
initiatives visit www.nhcfgreenheart.co.uk or contact the Fundraising Team on 01604 545857 or E-mail greenheart@ngh.nhs.uk

39. Losses and special payments
The total number of losses cases in 2016-17 and their total value was as foliows:
Total Value Total Number

of Cases of Cases
£s
Losses 451,533 857
Special paymenis 109,768 41
Gifts 0 0]
Total losses and special payments and gifts 561,301 898

The total number of losses cases in 2015-16 and their fotal value was as follows:
Total Value Total Number

of Cases of Cases
fs
Losses 349,951 427
Special payments 53,686 58
Total losses and special payments 403,637 482
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40.2.

40.3.

40.4.

41.

Capital cost absorption rate

The dividend payahle on public dividend capital Is based on the actual (rather than forecast) average
relevant net assets based on the pre audited accounts and therefore the actual capital cost absorption
rate is automatically 3.5%.

External financing
The Trust is given an externat financing fimit which it is permitted to undershoot.

2016-17 2015-16
£000s £000s
External financing limif (EFL) 23,939 26,297
Cash flow financing 23,697 24,426
Finance leases taken out in the year 1] 1,410
Other capital receipts 0 0
External financing requirement 22,697 25,836
Underf/{over) spend against EFL 242 461

Capital resource limit
The Trust is given a capital rescurce limit which it is not permitted to exceed.

2016-17 2015-16

£000s £00Cs
Gross capitat expenditure 14,669 18,149
Less: book vaiue of assets disposed of {375) {113)
Less: capital grants 0 4]
Less: donations towards the acquisition of non-current assets {738) (177)
Gharge against the capital resource limit 13,566 17,859
Capital resource Himit 13,561 17,877
(Over)funderspend against the capital resource limit 5 18

Third party assets

The Trust held cash and cash equivalents which relate to monies held by the NHS Trust on behalf of
patients or other parties. This has been excluded from the cash and cash equivalents figure reported
in the accounts.

31 March 3% March
2017 2016
£000s £000s

Third party assels held by the Trust 0 0
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